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SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[X] Amended Definitive Information Statement
Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Province, country or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization

SEC ldentification Number
BIR Tax ldentification Number

Address of principal office

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code :

Date of meeting
Time of meeting
Place of meeting

: ILPPPINE NATIONAL BANK

Metro Manila, Philippines

AS096-005555
000-188-209-000

PNB Financial Center
President Diosdado Macapagal Blvd.
Pasay City, Metro Manila, 1300

(632) 8834-0780
(Office of the Corporate Secretary)

April 27, 2021

8:00 a.m.

The 2021 PNB Stockholders’ Meeting will
be conducted through remote
communication. The livestreaming link
will be provided via email to registered
Stockholders.

Approximate date on which the Information Statement March 30, 2021

is first to be sent or given to security holders

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 anaflthe Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of deapplicable only to corporate Registrant):

Title of Each Class

COMMON SHARES

Number of Shares of Commarist
Outstanding or Amount of Debt
Outstanding

1,525,764,850

Are any or all Registrant’s securities listed iBtack Exchange?

Yes [V]

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchande a:

the class of securities listed thel

No [ ]

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE/
COMMON STOCK
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting leé Stockholders of the Philippine National Banke(th
“Bank”) will be conducted through remote communicaton April 27, 2021, Tuesday, at 8:00 a.m..

The Agenda for the Meeting is as follows:

Call to Order

Secretary’s Proof of Notice and Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the 2020 Annual Stocldek’ Meeting held on June 23, 2020
Report of the President on the Results of Operationthe Year 2020

Approval of the 2020 Annual Report

Ratification of All Legal Acts, Resolutions and Beadings of the Board of Directors and
Corporate Officers since the 2020 Annual Stockhaiddeeting

7. Election of Directors

8. Appointment of External Auditor

9

1

N

. Other Matters
0. Adjournment

The details and rationale of each item of the Ageisl attached as Annex “A” of the Information
Statement.

Stockholders of record as of March 29, 2021 shalbmtitled to attend, and to vote at, the meeting.

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, and to safegutird health and ensure the safety of our stocki®lde
and stakeholders, the Bank will conduct its Ann&bckholders’ Meeting through remote communication.
Stockholders who wish to attend the meeting or #oteugh remote communication should register usiiiregPNB
ASM Registration Portal provided at www.pnb.comg#m2021 on or before April 20, 2021. The requiresand
procedure for registration, participation and vgtihrough remote communication are set out in tiferination
Statement and published in PNB’s website_at www.gmh.ph/asm2021. There will be an audio and visual
recording of the meeting.

Stockholders who are unable to attend the meetiag designate their authorized representative by
submitting a signed proxy form via email to pnb_@pmb.com.ph no later than 5:00 p.m. on April 22120A

sample proxy form may be downloaded at www.pnb.pbitasm2021. Validation of proxies will be on Ap2i,
2021 at 5:30 p.m.

Stockholders of record may send their queries amineents to pnb_asm@pnb.com.ph on or before April
23, 2021.

Copies of the Notice of the Meeting, Definitive dnfnation Statement, Management Report and Financial
Statements  (“Documents”) may be viewed and dowmdadfrom the Bank's website at
https://www.pnb.com.ph/2021DIS. Alternatively, tB®ecuments may also be viewed at, and downloaded ft®
PSE EDGE profile at https://edge.pse.com.ph/compatjosures/form.do?cmpy id=139.
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2021 ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING
REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURE FOR PARTICIPATION AND VO TING
THROUGH REMOTE COMMUNICATION
A. Registration for the 2021 ASM and Votingthrough Remote Communication
1. Stockholders of record as of March 29, 2021, whehwid attend the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

(the “ASM”) and vote in absentia should registerotigh the PNB ASM Registration Portal at
www.pnb.com.ph/asm2021 on or before April 20, 20Registration Period”).

2. Stockholders are required to provide the followimgvalidation and verification:

a. For individual Stockholders

e Scanned copy of the front and back portions of $eckholder's valid government-issued
photo ID. This must be in a digital, JPG format with a fiize no larger than 2MB. Valid
government-issued photo IDs include the followibgiver's License, Passport, Unified Multi-
Purpose ID, Professional Regulation CommissionSBs ID, Pag-Ibig ID, and Senior Citizen
ID;

» Valid and active e-mail address;

* Valid and active contact number (landline or mobilenber).

b. For Stockholders with Joint accounts

In addition to the above requirements, a scannquy af an authorization letter signed by all
Stockholders jointly owning the shares designatiingp among them is authorized to cast the vote for
the account. The authorization letter must alsmkeedigital, JPG format with a file size no largean
2MB.

c. For Corporate Stockholders

e Scanned copy of a Secretary’'s Certificate or a daasolution under oath regarding the
authority of the representative to attend the megetand vote for and on behalf of the
Corporation. This must be in a digital, JPG fornvdh a file size no larger than 2MB;

* Scanned copy of the front and back portions ofvakéd government-issueghoto ID of the
Stockholder’s representative. This must be in &aligJPG format with a file size no larger than
2MB. Valid government-issued photo IDs include fo#owing: Driver's License, Passport,
Unified Multi-Purpose ID, Professional Regulatioor@mission ID, SSS ID, Pag-lbig ID, and
Senior Citizen ID;

* Valid and active email address of the Stockholdesfsesentative;

* Valid and active contact number of the Stockhoklepresentative (landline or mobile
number).

d. For Stockholders represented by Proxy

e In addition to the above requirements for the Stodtter, the same requirements shall be
submitted by the Proxy or authorized representative

e« Scanned copy of the Proxy Form or an authorizatetter signed by the Stockholder,
authorizing the Proxy to attend the meeting and #esvote for the account. This must also be
in a digital, JPG format with a file size no largean 2MB.



e. For Stockholders under Broker accounts

e Scanned copy of the broker's certificate signed thg authorized signatory/ies on the
Stockholder's number of shares. This must be iigaad, JPG format with a file size no larger
than 2MB;

» In case of a corporate stockholder, also submdaarsed copy of the certification signed by a
duly authorized officer of such corporate benefi@avner attesting to the authority of the
representative to vote for and on behalf of thepamate beneficial stockholder. This must be in
a digital, JPG format with a file size no largeartt?MB,;

e Scanned copy of the front and back portions of $teckholder’'s valid government-issued
photo ID. This must be in a digital, JPG format with a fiize no larger than 2MB. Valid
government-issued photo IDs include the followibgiver's License, Passport, Unified Multi-
Purpose ID, Professional Regulation CommissionSBS ID, Pag-lbig ID and Senior Citizen
ID;

* Valid and active email address;

¢ Valid and active contact number (landline or mobilenber).

Upon completion of the verification procedure, tB®ckholder will receive an email confirmation
which includes the link which the Stockholder mageuo access the PNB 2021 ASM livestream.
Stockholders who opted during the online registratd vote in absentia will likewise receive a litak
PNB’s secure online voting portal (“Voting Portakjith the Stockholder’'s default username and
password.

The validation and verification procedure may take to three (3) days upon submission of the
required documents. Stockholders are encouragestjister early within the Registration Period.

The Voting Portal contains the agenda items redlibain the Notice of the 2021 PNB ASM. Registered
Stockholders may vote as follows:

(a) For items other than the election of directoegistered Stockholders have the option to vote
“For”, “Against”, or “Abstain”;

(b) For election of Directors, the system of cuative voting shall be followed. Each Stockholder
is entitled to such number of votes equal to thealber of shares he/she/it owns multiplied by the
number of directors to be elected. Under this wpsgstem, the Stockholder has the option to (i)
cast all his/her/its votes in favor of one (1) noe®, or (ii) distribute his/her/its votes among as
many nominees as he/she/it may deem fit;

(c) Once the registered Stockholder has comphettidg, he/she/it can submit his/her/its votes by
clicking the “Submit” button. Upon submission, ttegistered Stockholder may no longer change
his/herlits votes.

The Office of the Corporate Secretary shall taleulalt valid votes cast in absentia and votes cast
through proxies. An independent party will valid#éte voting results, which will be reported by the

Corporate Secretary at the meeting. All votes shbel submitted no later than 5:00 p.m. on April 22,

2021.

Other Information Regarding the 2021 PNB ASM

Only those Stockholders who have completed thestegion and verification procedure within the
Registration Period shall be considered in deteingithe existence of a quorum.

The conduct of the ASM will be streamed live. Votesd queries cannot be submitted through the
livestreaming link. Registered Stockholders may dsetheir queries or comments to
pnb_asm@pnb.com.ph on or before April 23, 2021.ri@sesent but not addressed during the ASM
due to time constraints shall be addressed sepaeate responded to through email.

The proceedings will be recorded in video and afolimat. The Minutes of the ASM will be uploaded
to the PNB website within twenty-four (24) hoursonghe adjournment of the ASM.
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SEC FORM 20-IS

AMENDED DEFINITIVE INFORMATION STATEMENT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 20 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1.

(@)

(b)

Item 2.

@)

(b)

Iltem 3.

)

(b)

DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

In light of the COVID 19 pandemic, and to safegughe health and ensure the safety of the
stockholders and stakeholders, the Annual StocknsldVieeting of the Philippine National Bank
(hereafter “PNB” or the “Bank”) will be conducteirough remote communication on April 27,
2021, Tuesday, at 8:00 a.m.

The Bank’s complete address is PNB Financial Cefersident Diosdado Macapagal Blvd., Pasay
City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

The Notice of Meeting and the Definitive Infornmet Statement may be accessed by qualified
stockholders not later than March 30, 2021.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE NOT B EING REQUESTED
TO SEND US A PROXY AT THIS TIME.

DISSENTER’S RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

Title X — Section 80 of the Revised Corporatidade of the Philippines allows a stockholder to
exercise his right to dissent and demand paymetiteofair value of his shares in certain instances,
to wit: (1) in case an amendment to the Articlesnabrporation will change or restrict the righfs o
such stockholder or class of shares, or authorieéepences in any respect superior to those of
outstanding shares of any class or otherwise exdestiorten the term of the company; (2) in case of
the sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgageg@ledother disposition of all or substantially @il

the company’s properties and assets; or (3) inscaéenerger or consolidation; or (4) in case of
investment of corporate funds for any purpose dtinen the primary purpose of the company

None of the proposed corporate actions to bengtesl to the stockholders for approval constitwtes
ground for the exercise of the stockholder’s apgalaight.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN OR OPPOSITION TO MAT TERS TO BE ACTED
UPON

No person who has been a director of the Baokfthe beginning of fiscal year 2020, or any
associate of the foregoing, has any interest inraaiter to be acted upon in the meeting other than
election to office.

The Bank has not received any information frodiractor that he/she intends to oppose any matter
to be acted upon in the meeting.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4.

@)

(b)

(©)

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS T HEREOF

The total number of common shares outstandirgf &ebruary 28, 2021 is 1,525,764,850 with a par
value of#P40.00 per share. Total foreign equity emship is 91,046,801 common shares or 5.97%.

Pursuant to Article 1V, Section 4.9 of the Bank’g-Baws, every stockholder shall be entitled to one
(1) vote for each share of common stock in his namtee books of the Bank as of March 29, 2021
(the “Record Date”).

With respect to the election of directors, a stadétr may vote such number of shares for as many
persons as there are directors to be elected, orayecumulate said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the number of directors to be eleotede may distribute them on the same principle
among as many candidates as he shall see fit,qadthe total number of votes cast by him shall not
exceed the number of shares owned by him multifdiethe number of directors to be elected.

Pursuant to Sections 23 and 57 of the Revised Catipa Code, the PNB Board of Directors
approved on February 26, 2021 the participation aotihg at the 2021 Annual Stockholders’
Meeting through remote communication. The requimmeand procedure for registration,
participation and voting through remote communaratare provided in this Information Statement
and published in PNB’s website_at www.pnb.com.pin/2321.

Stockholders of the Bank as of the Record Datdl He entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beledfiowners and Management

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and BeneficialOwners (more than 5% of any class
of voting securities as of February 28, 2021)

Name & Address of Record Name of Citizenship No. of Percentage of
Owner and Relationship with Beneficial Common Ownership
Issuer Owner and Shares Held
Relationship
with Record
Owner
All Seasons Realty Corp. Majority-Owned Filipino 912,811,179 | 59.8264653298
- Makati City - and Controlled b
10,005,866 shares LT Group, Inc.
Stockholder
Allmark Holdings Corp. Filipino
- Quezon City —
20,724,567 shares
Stockholder
Caravan Holdings Corporation Filipino
- Marikina City -
82,017,184 shares
Stockholder




Name & Address of Record
Owner and Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial Owner|
and Relationship)

with Record

Owner

Citizenship

No. of Common
Shares Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Donfar Management Limited
- Makati City -
30,747,898 shares

Stockholder

Dunmore Development Corp.
(X-496)
- Pasig City -
15,140,723 shares

Stockholder

Dynaworld Holdings, Inc.
- Pasig City -
11,387,569 shares

Stockholder

Fast Return Enterprises, Ltd.
- Makati City -
18,157,183 shares

Stockholder

Fil-Care Holdings, Inc.
- Quezon City -
25,450,962 shares

Stockholder

Fragile Touch
Investment, Ltd.

- Makati City -
22,696,137 shares

Stockholder

Ivory Holdings, Inc.
- Makati City -
20,761,731 shares

Stockholder

Kenrock Holdings, Corp.
- Quezon City -
26,018,279 shares

Stockholder

Majority-Owned
and Controlled b
LT Group, Inc.

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino




Name & Address of Record
Owner and Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial Owner|
and Relationship)

with Record

Owner

Citizenship

No. of Common
Shares Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Kentwood Development Corp.
- Quezon City -
17,237,017 shares

Stockholder

Key Landmark Investments Ltd.
- British Virgin Islands -
133,277,924 shares

Stockholder

La Vida Development Corp.
- Quezon City -
19,607,334 shares

Stockholder

Leadway Holdings, Inc.
- Quezon City -
65,310,444 shares

Stockholder

Mavelstone International Limited
- Makati City -
29,575,168 shares

Stockholder

Merit Holdings & Equities Corp.
- Quezon City -
17,385,520 shares

Stockholder

Multiple Star Holdings Corp.
- Quezon City -
30,798,151 shares

Stockholder

Pioneer Holdings Equities, Inc.
- Pasig City -
34,254,212 shares

Stockholder

Majority-Owned
and Controlled b
LT Group, Inc.

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino




Name & Address of Record
Owner and Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial Owner|
and Relationship)

with Record

Owner

Citizenship

No. of Common
Shares Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Profound Holdings, Inc.
- Marikina City -
18,242,251 shares

Stockholder

Purple Crystal Holdings, Inc.
- Manila City -
24,404,724 shares

Stockholder

Safeway Holdings & Equities, Inc.

- Quezon City -
12,048,843 shares

Stockholder

Society Holdings Corp.
- Quezon City -
17,298,825 shares

Stockholder

Solar Holdings Corporation
- Pasig City -
82,017,184 shares

Stockholder

Total Holdings Corporation
- Quezon City -
15,995,011 shares

Stockholder

True Success Profits Limited
- British Virgin Islands -
82,017,184 shares

Stockholder

Uttermost Success Limited
- Makati City —
30,233,288 shares

Stockholder

Majority-Owned
and Controlled b
LT Group, Inc.

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

The right to vote or direct the voting of the Bamkhares held by the foregoing stockholders isdddg
in their respective Boards of Directors. The Bargezts to receive from the abovenamed companies




their proxy for the 2021 meeting no later than AR#, 2021, appointing any one (1) of Mr. Lucio C.
Tan or Mr. Harry Tan or Ms. Juanita Tan Lee asaihorized proxies/attorneys-in-fact.

(2) Security Ownership of Management (Individual Direcbrs and Executive Officers as of
February 28, 2021)

Name of Beneficial Owner Amount of Common Citizenship Percentage of
Shares and Nature of Ownership
Beneficial Ownership

Florencia G. Tarriela 2 shares Filipino 0.0000001311
Chairperson £80.00
Independent Director (R)
Felix Enrico R. Alfiler 8,324 shares Filipino 0.0005455624
Vice Chairman P£332,960.00
Independent Director (R)
Florido P. Casuela 162 shares Filipino 0.0000106176
Director £6,480.00

(R)
Leonilo G. Coronel 1 share Filipino 0.0000000655
Director R40.00

(R)
Edgar A. Cua 100 shares Filipino 0.0000065541
Independent Director £4,000.00

(R)
Estelito P. Mendoza 1,150 shares Filipino 0.0000753720
Director £46,000.00

(R)
Christopher J. Nelson 100 shares Filipino 0.0000065541
Director £4,000.00

(R)
Federico C. Pascual 39 shares Filipino 0.0000025561
Independent Director P1,560.00

(R)
Carmen K. Tan 5,000 shares Filipino 0.0003277045
Director £200,000.00

(R)
Lucio C. Tan 14,843,119 shares Filipino 0.9728313639
Director P593,724,760.00

(R)
Michael G. Tan 62,250 shares Filipino 0.0040799210
Director £2,490,000.00

(R)
Sheila T. Pascual 110 shares Filipino 0.0000072095
Director £4,400.00

(R)

10




Vivienne K. Tan 10 shares Filipino 0.0000006554
Director £400.00

(R)
Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso 418,395 shares Filipino 0.0274219845
Director/President P16,735,800.00

(R)
Domingo H. Yap 1 share Filipino 0.0000000655
Independent Director R40.00

(R)
Subtotal 15,338,763 shares 1.0053163173

P613,550,520.00 -

(R)
All Executive Officers & 15,463,813 shares 1.0135122067
Directors as a Group £618,552,520.00 -

(R)

Item 5.

(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

There are no voting trust holders of 5% or moréhefBank’s shares.

(4) Changes in Control

There has been no change in control of the Bankglthe fiscal year 2020.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

(a) Directors and Executive Officers

On June 23, 2020, the Bank reported to the Bangkdr& ng Pilipinas (BSP) the election of fifteen
(15) members of the Board of Directors at the 2888ual Stockholders’ Meeting. Ms. Florencia G.
Tarriela, Mr. Felix Enrico R. Alfiler, Mr. Edgar ACua, Mr. Federico C. Pascual and Mr. Domingo

H. Yap were re-elected as independent directors.

As defined in Section 38.2 of the 2015 Implementitges and Regulations of the Securities and
Regulation Code (Republic Act No. 8799) (IRR of tBRC), an independent director refers to a
person who, apart from his fees and shareholdisgedependent of Management and free from any
business or other relationship which could or caadsonably be perceived to materially interfere
with his exercise of independent judgment in cauigyout his responsibilities as a director in any

covered company.

The re-election of the following directors of PNBrfthe year 2020-2021 was exempted from

confirmation by the Monetary Board (MB):

Florencia G. Tarrieli
Felix Enrico R. Alfilel
Florido P. Casue
Leonilo G. Corone
Edgar A. Cu

Estelito P. Mendo:
Christopheld. Nelsin
Federico C. PascL

Sheila T. lascua
Lucio C. Tar

Carmen K. Ta
Michael G. Ta
Vivienne K. Tai

Jose Arnulfo A. Velos
Domingo H. Ya

11




The Bank’s Corporate Governance and Sustainab@itynmittee, acting as the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, considered the shortlistanididates nominated to sit as members of the
Board of Directors for 2021-2022 according to thespribed qualifications and disqualifications. A
total of fifteen (15) nominees were considered.March 10, 2021, the Board of Directors confirmed
the nomination of the following individuals for eteén to the Board of Directors for the year 2021—
2022:

Florencia C Tarriela
Felix Enrico R. Alfilel
Florido P. Casue
Leonilo G. Corone
Edgar A. Cu

Estelito P. Mendo:
Federico C. PascL
SheiaT. Pascue
Carmen K. Ta

10. Lucio C. Tan

11, LucioC. Tan i

12, Michael C. Tar

13. Vivienne K. Tal

14, Jose Arnulfo A. Velos
15, Domingo H. Yaj

CoNor~wWNE

(Please refer to pages 14 to 29 of this InformaStetement for the profiles of the nominees and
incumbent directors.)

The aforementioned nominees were approved and rowedi by the Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee, in compliance with therMal of Regulations for Banks (MORB) of the
BSP on the qualifications of a director and in adeace with the procedure for the nomination and
election of independent directors set forth in R8& of the IRR of the SRC and Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) Memorandum Circular (M@®). 19, Series of 2016, Code of
Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Compaxfie&C MC No. 19, Series of 2016").

Mr. Felix Enrico R. Alfiler, Mr. Edgar A. Cua, MFederico C. Pascual, Ms. Florencia G. Tarriela,
and Mr. Domingo H. Yap are nominated as independirgctors. After due evaluation, the

Corporate Governance and Sustainability Commitextified that said nominees are qualified in
accordance with the MORB and Rule 38 of the IRRhefSRC. All of the nominees for independent
director were nominated by Ms. Ruth Pamela E. Tahgth comply with the requirements on

independent directors. None of the nominees daéeckto Ms. Tanghal.

Except for the nominations of Mr. Alfiler and MsaiTiela, all nominations are compliant with SEC
MC No. 4, Series of 2017 and Recommendation 58EE MC No. 19, Series of 2016 on the term
limits of independent directors. On February 17220he Bank sent a letter to the BSP requesting
for the temporary exemption from the nine (9) yaamulative term limit rule for Mr. Alfiler and Ms.
Tarriela whose terms have already lapsed basecdeotio8 3 of BSP Circular 969, SEC MC No. 4,
Series of 2017 and Recommendation 5.3 of SEC MCl18pSeries of 2016, for an additional period
of two (2) years.

In justifying the re-nomination of Ms. Tarriela arMdr. Alfiler as independent directors despite
having served as independent directors for the mmaxi cumulative term of nine (9) years, the
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Commitkedng as the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, and the members of the Board considéted Tarriela’s and Mr. Alfiler's in-depth
knowledge of the Bank’s business as well as théh@Bank’s affiliates and subsidiaries due torthei
length of service as independent directors of taekB Furthermore, Ms. Tarriela’s and Mr. Alfiler's
accomplishments and expertise in the banking imdushd their experience as past officers and
directors of various institutions in the field afidnce and banking have greatly contributed, arld wi
continue to contribute, to the improvement and ghowf the Bank’s business and the Bank's
continuous compliance with regulatory requiremeifitee Corporate Governance and Sustainability
Committee and the members of the Board believeithatin the best interest of the Bank to retain
Ms. Tarriela and Mr. Alfiler as independent dirastas they will help the Bank reach its goals & th

12



ensuing year and improve the Bank’s over-all penfamce. Considering that Ms. Tarriela and Mr.
Alfiler are well versed with the operations anduiegments of the Bank, they are in a better pasitio
compared to new independent directors to help #ngkBnaneuver through the new normal of doing
business under the pandemic scenario.

The Monetary Board, however, was unable to graamtBank’s request for extension of the term of
Ms. Florencia G. Tarriela and Mr. Felix Enrico Rfiker as Independent Directors of the Bank due
to the clear wording of the law. The response efMonetary Board was contained in a letter dated
April 6, 2021 which was received by the Bank ordsdate via e-release. With that, the Bank was
constrained to amend its list of nominees for doeship for 2021-2022. With the endorsement of
the Bank’'s Corporate Governance and Sustainab@isynmittee and approval of the Board of

Directors at its Special Board Meeting held on ABri2021, the following were nominated for the

position of Independent Directors for the year 2@R22, in lieu of Ms. Tarriela and Mr. Alfiler:

1. Mr. Wilfrido E. Sanchez; and
2. Mr. Angelito M. Villanueva.

In view of the foregoing, the following is the anted list of nominees for directorship for the year
2021 - 2022 to be submitted to the stockholdergfection at the 2021 ASM:

Mr. Florido P. Casuela;

Mr. Leonilo G. Coronel;

Mr. Edgar A. Cua ;

Mr. Estelito P. Mendoza;
Mr. Federico C. Pascual;
Ms. Sheila T. Pascual;

Mr. Wilfrido E. Sanchez;
Ms. Carmen K. Tan;

. Mr. Lucio C. Tan;

10. Mr. Lucio C. Tan lll;

11. Mr. Michael G. Tan;

12. Ms. Vivienne K. Tan;

13. Mr. Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso;
14. Mr. Angelito M. Villanueva; and
15. Mr. Domingo H. Yap.

N~ WNRE

The Certificates of Qualification of the indepentdirectors pursuant to SEC MC No. 5, Series of
2017 were submitted by the Bank to the SEC on Mag&;12021 and April 12, 2021.

Below are the profiles of the incumbent directorsl afficers of the Bank and the nominees for
directorship as of April 8, 2021. The informatibaelow addresses the requirements of Section 49 of
the Revised Corporation Code.
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Profile of Directors and Executive Officers togethewith their Business Experience covering at
least the Past Five (5) Years

Name FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA

Age 74

Nationality Filipino

Education O Bachelor of Science in Business Administration degrMajor in

Economics, University of the Philippines

0 Masters in Economics degree from the UniversitZalifornia, Los
Angeles, where she topped the Masters Comprehensive
Examination

Current Position in the Bank O Chairman of the Board/Independent Director
Date of First Appointment 0O May 29, 2001 (as Director)
0 May 24, 2005 (as Chairman of the Board)
O May 30, 2006 (as Independent Director)
Directorship in Other Listed 0O Independent Director of LT Group, Inc.
Companies
Other Current Positions O Chairman/independent Director of PNB Capital ancegtment

Corporation, PNB-Mizuho Leasing and Finance Corfionaand
PNB-Mizuho Equipment Rentals Corporation

O Independent Director of PNB International Investisedorp.
O Director of Eton Properties Philippines Inc.

O Columnist for “Business Options” of the Manila Balh and
“FINEX Folio” of Business World

O Director/Vice President of Tarriela Management Camp and
Director/Vice President/Assistant Treasurer of GoBavelopment
Corporation

O Life Sustaining Member of the Bankers Instituteted Philippines

O Trustee of Tulay sa Pag-unlad, Inc. (TSPI) Develepm
Corporation, TSPl MBA, and Foundation for Filipino
Entrepreneurship, Inc.

O Director of Financial Executive Institute of theiljipines (FINEX)
Foundation

C Independent Director of PNB Life Insurance, Inc.
O Director of Bankers Association of the Philippines
O Undersecretary of Finance
0

Alternate Monetary Board Member of the BSP, LanaBaf the
Philippines and the Philippine Deposit InsurancepBmation

O Deputy Country Head, Managing Partner and firsipii& Vice
President of Citibank N. A.

0 Country Financial Controller of Citibank N.A. Plpipines for 10

Other Previous Positions

years
O President, Bank Administration Institute of the lPipines
Awards/Citations 0 2014 Most Outstanding Citibank Philippines Alumnvaadee for

community involvement
0 2018 Go Negosyo Woman Intrapreneur Awardee
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Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

FELIX ENRICO R. ALFILER

71

Filipino

0 Bachelor of Science and Masters in Statistics ftben University
of the Philippines

0 Vice Chairman/Independent Director

0 January 1, 2012

0 None

O Chairman/Independent Director of PNB General Insu@o., Inc.,
PNB RCI Holdings Co., Ltd. and PNB Internationatéstments
Corp.

C Independent Director of PNB-IBJL Leasing and Firanc
Corporation and PNB Savings Bank

0 Senior Advisor to the World Bank Group ExecutiveaBdb in
Washington, D.C.

0 Special Assistant to the Philippine Secretary ohaRce for
International Operations and Privatization

O Director of the BSP

0 Assistant to the Governor of the Central Bank efBhilippines

O Senior Advisor to the Executive Director at theehnmational
Monetary Fund

0 Associate Director at the Central Bank

0 Head of the Technical Group of the CB Open Markan@ittee

0O Monetary Policy Expert in the Economics Sub-Comaeitbf the
1985-1986 Philippine Debt Negotiating Team whichgateated
with over 400 private international creditors foetrescheduling of
the Philippines’ medium- and long-term foreign debt

00 Advisor at Lazaro Bernardo Tiu and Associates, Inc.

O President of Pilgrims (Asia Pacific) Advisors, Ltd.

O President of the Cement Manufacturers Associatidn thee
Philippines (CeMAP)

O Board Member of the Federation of Philippine Indest(FPI)

O Vice President of the Philippine Product Safety aQdality
Foundation, Inc.

O Convenor for Fair Trade Alliance.
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Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Government Civil Service
Eligibilities

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

Awards/Citations

FLORIDO P. CASUELA

79

Filipino

0 Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, ddajin
Accounting from the University of the Philippines

0 Masters in Business Administration from the Uniugrof the
Philippines

0 Advanced Management Program for Overseas Bankers the
Philadelphia National Bank in conjunction with Wtoar School of
the University of Pennsylvania

0 Study Tour (Micro Finance Program and Cooperativesyler the
Auspices of the United States Agency for Internslo
Development

O Certified Public Accountant, Economist, Commeréitthché

O Director
O May 30, 2006
0 None

0 Chairman of PNB Securities, Inc.
Chairman of Casuela Equity Ventures, Inc.

O Director of PNB International Investments CorparatiPNB RCI
Holdings Co., Ltd., and Surigao Micro Credit Corgtion

Senior Consultant of the Bank of Makati (a SaviBgsk), Inc.

President of Land Bank of the Philippines, Maybdtilippines,
Inc., and Surigao Micro Credit Corporation

O Vice-Chairman of Land Bank of the Philippines andaytank
Philippines, Inc.

00 Director of PNB Life Insurance, Inc.
00 Director, Meralco

0 Trustee of Land Bank of the Philippines Countrydizis/elopment
Foundation, Inc.

O Director of Sagittarius Mines, Inc.
O Senior Adviser in the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas

0 Senior Executive Vice President of United OverseBank
(Westmont Bank)

0 Executive Vice President of PDCP (Producers Bank)
Senior Vice President of Philippine National Bank

Special Assistant to the Chairman of the Nationadwér
Corporation

First Vice President of Bank of Commerce

Vice President of Metropolitan Bank & Trust Co.

Staff Officer, BSP

Audit Staff of Joaquin Cunanan, CPAs (Isla Lipan&&.)

One of the ten (10awardees of the 2001 Distinguished Alu
Award of the UP College of Business Administration

Most Outstanding Surigaonon in the field of Bankamyl Finance,
awarded by the Rotary Club — Surigao Chapter

O

— O

O O

O 0Ooooog

O

16



Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

Awards/Citations

LEONILO G. CORONEL

74

Filipino

O

u
u
a
a

L

Bachelor of Arts degree, Major in Economics frore thteneo de
Manila University

Advance Management Program of the University of Biaw
Director

May 28, 2013

Independent Director of Megawide Construction Coaion

Independent Director of DBP-Daiwa Capital Markeitdl.P
Director of Software Ventures International

Chairman of PNB-IBJL Leasing and Finance Corporatend
PNB-IBJL Equipment Rentals Corporation

Executive Director of the Bankers Association oé tRhilippines
and RBB Micro Finance Foundation

Director/Treasurer of Philippine Depository and SirGorporation

Director of the Philippine Clearing House Corpavati the
Philippine Dealing System and the Capital Markets/&opment
Council

Managing Director of BAP-Credit Bureau
President of Cebu Bankers Association

Consultant of Land Bank of the Philippines, Arthtoung, U.S.
Aid, Bankers Association of the Philippines and Ewmmic
Development Corporation

Worked with Citibank, Manila for twenty (20) yearsccupying
various positions

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Diras in 2002
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Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Previous Positions

EDGAR A. CUA

65

Filipino

*

Bachelor of Arts in Economics degree (Honors Prnagr&om the
Ateneo de Manila University

Masters of Arts in Economics degree from the Ursitgr of
Southern California

Masters of Planning Urban and Regional Environnusgree from
the University of Southern California

Advanced Chinese from the Beijing Language and uCeilt
University

Sustainable Development Training Program, Cambridigigersity

*Independent Director

*

*

May 31, 2016
None

Chairman and Director of Allied Integrated Holdingsc.
(Formerly: PNB Savings Bank)

Independent Director of PNB Capital and Investnf@atporation,
Allied Commercial Bank, Xiamen, and PNB-Mizuho Liegsand
Finance Corp.

Director of Davao Unicar Corporation

Held various managerial and staff positions atAban
Development Bank (ADB) during a 30-year professiaaaeer

Retired in 2015 as Senior Advisor, East Asia Depart of the
Asian Development Bank (ADB), based in ADB’s Reside
Mission in Beijing, People’s Republic of China (PROther
managerial positions in ADB included Deputy DirgcBeneral,
East Asia Department, Country Director, ADB Residdission in
Indonesia and Deputy Country Director, ADB Residdigsion in
PRC.

Staff Consultant, SGV & Co.
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Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

Awards/Citations

ESTELITO P. MENDOZA

91

Filipino

Bachelor of Laws (cum laude) from the University dfe
Philippines

Master of Laws from Harvard University

Director

January 1, 2009

Director of San Miguel Corporation and Petron Cogpion

Chairman of Prestige Travel, Inc.

Practicing lawyer for more than sixty (60) years

Professorial Lecturer of law at the University lo€ tPhilippines
Undersecretary of Justice, Solicitor General andisiér of Justice

Member of the Batasang Pambansa and Provincial rGoveof

Pampanga

Chairman of the Sixth (Legal) Committee,>33ession of the UN
General Assembly and the Special Committee on thet€r of the
United Nations and the Strengthening of the Role tbé

Organization.

Doctor of Laws degree (honoris causa) by CentrdleGes of the
Philippines, Hanyang University (Seoul, Korea), unmsity of
Manila, Angeles University Foundation and the Unsity of the
East

Doctor of Humane Letters degree by the Misamis Brsity
Recipient of a Presidential Medal of Merit as Spk€ounsel on
Marine and Ocean Concerns

University of the Philippines Alumni Association’sl975
“Professional Award in Law” and 2013 “Lifetime Disguished
Achievement Award”
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Name
Age

Nationality

Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

CHRISTOPHER J. NELSON

62

British

Bachelor of Arts and Masters of Arts in History ficEmmanuel
College, Cambridge University, U.K.

Diploma in Marketing from the Institute of MarkeginCranfield,
U.K.

Director

March 21, 2013 (Director)
May 27, 2014 (Board Advisor)
May 26, 2015 (Director)

None

Director of the Philippine Band of Mercy and thedEgtion of
Philippine Industries

Chairman/Trustee of the British Chamber of Commerce
Trustee of the American Chamber Foundation Phitipgj Inc., and
Dualtech Training Center

Member of the Society of Fellows of the Institute @orporate
Directors

Trustee of Dualtech Training Foundation as of M&0h7

Director of PNB Holdings Corporation

Trustee of Tan Yan Kee Foundation

Director of the American Chamber of Commerce ofRhdippines,
Inc.

President of Philip Morris Philippines Manufactgijninc., a
position he held for 10 years

Various management positions with Philip Morriselmational for
25 years including Area Director for Saudi Arabkaywait, Gulf
Cooperation Council, Yemen, and Horn of Africa
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Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

FEDERICO C. PASCUAL

78

Filipino

O Bachelor of Arts, Ateneo de Manila University

O Bachelor of Laws (Member, Law Honors Society), lémsity of

the Philippines
O Master of Laws, Columbia University
O Independent Director

O May 27,2014

0 None

O Independent Director of Allianz PNB Life Insurandagc., PNB-
Mizuho Leasing and Finance Corporation, PNB-Miziwuipment
Rentals Corporation, PNB International Investme@tsporation,
and PNB Holdings Corporation

00 Chairman of Bataan Peninsula Educational Institytinc

O President/Director of Tala Properties, Inc. and difgfham Realty,
Inc.

O Chairman/Director of Apo Reef World Resort

Director of Sarco Land Resources Ventures CorpmratsCTEX
Development and Franchisers Corporation, and Heantdglden
Rainbow Corporation

Proprietor of Green Grower Farm

Partner of the University of Nueva Caceres Batamméh
Member, Multi Sectoral Governing Council of Bured#uCustoms
Chairman/Independent Director of PNB General Insu@»., Inc.

Independent Director of Allied Integrated Holdingis¢. (formerly
PNBSB)

President and General Manager of Government Setumg@ance
System

0 President and CEO of Allied Banking Corporation aPNOC
Alternative Fuels Corporation

O Director of Global Energy Growth System
O Various positions with PNB for twenty (20) yeanscluding Acting
President, CEO and Vice Chairman

0 President and Director of Philippine Chamber of @Gwrce and
Industry

0 Chairman of National Reinsurance Corporation

O Co-Chairman of the Industry Development Council tife
Department of Trade and Industry

0 Treasurer of BAP-Credit Guarantee

0 Director of San Miguel Corporation, Philippine StoExchange,
Manila Hotel Corporation, Cultural Center of the iliPpines,
CITEM, Bankers Association of the Philippines, Riglne
National Construction Corporation, Allied Cap Resms HK,
Oceanic Bank SF, USA, AIDSISA Sugar Mill, PDCP Bank
Equitable PCIB, Bankard, Philippine Internationalrading
Corporation, Philippine National Oil CorporatiomdaPNB Savings
Bank

O Chairman and President of Alabang Country Club

OO0 oogoag 0

O
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Name SHEILA T. PASCUAL

Age 58
Nationality Filipino
Education O Bachelor of Science in Business Management fromAtiemeo de

Current Position in the Bank [
Date of First Appointment [

Directorship in Other Listed *
Companies

Other Current Position/s O

Other Previous Position/s O

Manila University
Director

November 22, 2019
None

Business Development Manager of Allied Banking ©@oation
Hong Kong

Marketing Development Officer of Asia Brewery Inporated

Name CARMEN K. TAN
Age 79

Nationality Filipino

Current Position in the Bank O Director

Date of First Appointment 0O May 31, 2016

Directorship in Other Listed *
Companies *

Other Current Positions

Major Affiliations *

Vice Chairman of LT Group, Inc.
Director of MacroAsia Corporation and PAL Holdingsc.

Director: Philippine Airlines, Inc., Air Philippiree Corporation,
Asia Brewery, Inc., Buona Sorte Holdings, Inc., @as Holdings
Corporation, The Charter House, Inc., Dominium Reand
Construction Corporation, Eton City, Inc., Foremé&strms, Inc.,
Fortune Tobacco Corporation, Himmel Industries, .,Incucky
Travel Corporation, Manufacturing Services & Tradzorp.,
Progressive Farms, Inc., PMFTC, Inc., Shareholdings Sipalay
Trading Corp., Tanduay Distillers, Inc., Tangent Idiiogs
Corporation, Trustmark Holdings Corp., Alliedbarkdnsurance
Corporation, Zuma Holdings and Management Corpan@span
Development Corp., Basic Holdings Corp., Saturndis, Inc.,
Paramount Land Equities, Inc., Interbev Philippjries., Waterich
Resources Corp., and REM Development Corp.

Director of Tan Yan Kee Foundation
Member of Tzu Chi Foundation
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Name LUCIO C. TAN

Age 86
Nationality Filipino
Education 0 Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering dedrem Far Eastern

O

Current Position in the Bank [
Date of First Appointment [

Directorship in Other Listed O
Companies

Other Current Positions 0

O

Other Previous Positions 0

Awards/Citations C

O oood

O O

University

Doctor of Philosophy, Major in Commerce, from Unsigy of Sto.
Tomas

Director
December 8, 1999

Chairman and CEO of LT Group, Inc., PAL Holdingsicl and
MacroAsia Corporation

Chairman and CEO of Philippine Airlines, Inc. Luckyravel
Corporation, and Tangent Holdings Corporation

Chairman: Allied Commercial Bank, Allied Banking oration (HK)
Ltd., Allianz PNB Life Insurance, Eton Propertie$ilppines, Inc.,
Fortune Tobacco Corporation, PNB Holdings Corporati Asia
Brewery, Inc., Tanduay Distillers, Inc., Alliedbark Insurance
Corporation, and PMFTC Inc.

President of Basic Holdings Corporation, Himmelustties, Inc., and
Grandspan Development Corporation

Chairman Emeritus of the Federation of Filipino4@¥ge Chambers of
Commerce and Industry, Inc.

Founder and Vice Chairman of the Foundation for riddiong the
Standard of Education, Inc.

Founded the Tan Yan Kee Foundation, Inc., of whigh is the
Chairman and President

Chairman of Allied Banking Corporation, PNB Lifesirance, Inc. and
Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation

Chairman of Allied Integrated Holdings, Inc. (forriyePNBSB)
Honorary degrees from various universities

Lifetime Achievement Awardee by the Dr. Jose P.aRi&wards for
Excellence

Adopted to the Ancient Order of the Chamorri andsigieated
Ambassador-at-Large of the U.S. Island-territorysofam

Diploma of Merit by the Socialist Republic of Vietm
Outstanding Manilan for the year 2000

UST Medal of Excellence in 1999

Most Distinguished Bicolano Business Icon in 2005

2003 Most Outstanding Member Award by the Philigp@hamber of
Commerce and Industry (PCCI)

Award of Distinction by the Cebu Chamber of Comneeaiad Industry
Award for Exemplary Civilian Service of the Philipp Medical Association

Honorary Mayor and Adopted Son of Bacolod City; ptkl Son of
Cauayan City, Isabela and Entrepreneurial Son oftenga

Distinguished Fellow during the $5Conference of the ASEAN
Federation of Engineering Association

2008 Achievement Award for service to the chemigtigfession during
the 10" Eurasia Conference on Chemical Sciences
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Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

MICHAEL G. TAN

54

Filipino

O

O o0oog

]

Bachelor of Applied Science in Civil Engineering,ajdr in
Structural Engineering, from the University of Bt Columbia,
Canada

Director
February 9, 2013
Director, President and Chief Operating Officet®fGroup, Inc.

Director of Victorias Milling Company, Inc. and MaAsia
Corporation

Director of Allied Commercial Bank, PNB Global Reétance and
Financial Company (HK) Ltd. and Allied Banking CorfHong
Kong) Limited

Director, President and Chief Operating OfficerAsfia Brewery,
Inc.

Director and Treasurer of Zuma Holdings and Managegm
Corporation

Director of the following companies: Philippine Mires

Foundation, Air Philippines Corp., Absolut Digtils, Inc., Tanduay
Distillers, Inc., Tanduay Brands International, .In€ton Properties
Philippines, Inc., Shareholdings, Inc., Lucky Traworporation,
PMFTC, Inc., Maranaw Hotel (Century Park Hotel),nPAsia

Securities, Inc., ALI-Eton Development Corporatiodsia’s

Emerging Dragon Corporation, Paramount Land Ediitigc.,

Sabre Travel Network (Philippines), Inc., Saturniditigs, Inc.,

Tangent Holdings Corporation, MacroAsia Corp. dmdstmark
Holdings Corporation

Chairman of PNB Holdings Corporation

Director of Philippine Airlines Inc., Bulawan MingnCorporation,
PNB Management and Development Corporation, Alleters
Insurance Corporation, PNB Forex, Inc. and PNB i$g&/Bank

Director and Treasurer of PAL Holdings, Inc.

Director of Allied Banking Corporation (ABC) fromaduary 30,
2008 until ABC’s merger with PNB on February 9, 201
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Name VIVIENNE K. TAN

Age 52
Nationality Filipino
Education O Bachelor of Science - Double Degree in Mathematirsd

Computer Science from the University of San Fraimit).S.A

O Diploma in Fashion Design and Manufacturing Manageinirom
the Fashion Institute of Design and Merchandisings Angeles,
U.S.A.

Current Position in the Bank [0 Director
Date of First Appointment 0 December 15, 2017

Directorship in Other Listed [ Director of LT Group, Inc. and MacroAsia Corporatio
Companies

Other Current Positions * Director of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc.,
Executive Director of Dynamic Holdings Limited

*

O

Trustee of University of the East, University oéthast Ramon
Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center and College ainSBenilde

Founding Chairperson of the Entrepreneurs SchoAkd (ESA)

Founding Trustee of the Philippine Center for Emtemeurship (Go
Negosyo)

*

*

Other Previous Positions * Board Advisor of LT Group, Inc.
Director of PAL Holdings, Inc.

Director/Executive Vice President/Treasurer/Chieiinistrative
Officer of Philippine Airlines, Inc.

Executive Vice President, Commercial Group and Meana
Corporate Development, of Philippine Airlines, Inc.

Director of Bulawan Mining Corporation and PNB Mgeaent
and Development Corporation
Founder and President of Thames International Bssischool

Owner of Vaju, Inc. (Los Angeles, U.S.A))

*  Systems Analyst/Programmer of Fallon Bixby & Chéwagyv Office
(San Francisco, U.S.A))

Proponent/Partner of various NGO/social work prigj¢ike Gawad
Kalinga’'s GK-Batya sa Bagong Simula, livelihood grams thru
Teenpreneur Challenge spearheaded by ESA, Conaedv@rotect
Foundation’s artificial reef project in Calatag@atangas, Quezon
City, Sikap-Buhay Project’s training and mentorspigram for
micro-entrepreneurs, and as Chairman of Ten Inspira
Entrepreneur Students Award

Awards/Citations * Recipient of the Ten Outstanding Young Men (TOYMyakd for
Business Education and Entrepreneurship (2006), SINE
Excellence in Education and Social Entrepreneurshipard
(2007), Leading Women of the World Award (2007)d d&Reople
of the Year”, People Asia Award (2008)

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
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Name JOSE ARNULFO A. VELOSO

Age 54
Nationality Filipino
Education O Bachelor of Science in Commerce — Marketing Managerfrom

De La Salle University
Current Position in the Bank O President and Chief Executive Officer
Date of First Appointment 0 November 16, 2018

Directorship in Other Listed 0 None
Companies

Other Current Positions O Director of Allianz PNB Life Insurance, Inc.

Director of Bankers Association of the Philippireesl Chairman
of the BAP Capital Markets Development Committee

Director of European Chamber of Commerce of thdigfiines

O

Director of Phil. Payments Management Inc.
Member of the Asian Banker’'s Association
Member of the CIBI Foundation Inc.

O 0Ooog o

Other Previous Positions Chairman and Director of HSBC Insurance Brokerslififfines),

Inc. and HSBC Savings Bank (Philippines), Inc.
Director of PNB Global Remittance & Financial CbiK) Ltd.

Director and Chairperson of the Open Market Conemitif
Banker's Association of the Philippines

Director of the Philippine Dealing and Exchange iewation
Director of the Philippine Securities Settlement@pation
Director of the British Chamber of Commerce Philigs
President and Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Riiines
President of the Money Market Association of thdipines

Managing Director, Treasurer and Head of Globall@&anand
Markets of HSBC Global Markets

Treasurer and Head of Global Markets of HSBC Trgasu
Head of Domestic Treasury of PCI Bank/ PCI-Capital
Fixed Income Portfolio Head of Citibank

O O

O 0Oo0oogoooo

Fixed Income Trader of Asia Trust
Supervisor of Urban Bank
Chairman of the Council of Trustees of the Brit&thool Manila

Ooo0Oooood

Member of Assocacion Cambiste Internationale
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Name DOMINGO H. YAP

Age 87
Nationality Filipino
Education O Bachelor of Science in Business Administration m&oBusiness

Management from San Sebastian College Recoletos
Current Position in the Bank [0 Independent Director
Date of First Appointment O August 23, 2019

Directorship in Other Listed [ None
Companies

Other Current Positions O President of H-Chem Industries, Inc., DHY Realtydan
Development Inc., Colorado Chemical Sales Corponati
Universal Paint & Coating Philippines, Inc., andli#iceLand
Development Corporation

Other Previous Positions * President of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese i@har of
Commerce and Industries, Inc.

*  Governor of Y’'s Men Club Philippines
President of Y’s Men Club Downtown of Manila
President of Rotary Club of Pasay City

*

*

Name LUCIO C. TAN I

Age 28

Nationality Filipino

Education * Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering, &tesh University

* Master of Science, Major in Computer Science, St@htniversity
Directorship in Other Listed * Director of LT Group, Inc.
Companies * Director of PAL Holdings, Inc.

* Director of MacroAsia Corporation

*  Director of Victorias Milling Corporation
Other Current Positions * Director of PNB Holdings Corporation

*  Director of Philippine Airlines, Inc.

* Director of Luftansa Technik Philippines

*  Director of Air Philippines Corporation

* Director/President and Chief Operating Officer ofantiuay
Distillers, Inc.

*  Member of Stanford Tau Beta Phi Engineering Hormi&y

* Executive Board Member/Financial Officer for StamffoAsian
Student Entrepreneur Society
Awards/Citations * Stanford University Frederick E. Terman Award (2)1&ward
given to engineering seniors who are at the topb#eir class
*  Stanford University Tau Beta Pi Honors Society @0honor given
to engineering juniors/seniors who are at the #8pot their class
* Stanford University President’'s Award for Acadenti&cellence

Freshmen Year (2012), award given to freshmen whatthe top
3% of their class
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Nationality

Education

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

WILFRIDO E. SANCHEZ

82

Filipino

*

*

*

Bachelor of Arts degree from the Ateneo de Manifavdrsity
Bachelor of Laws from the Ateneo De Manila Univirsi
Masters of Law from Yale Law School

Independent Director of LT Group, Inc.

Tax Counsel of Quiason Makalintal Barot Torres thaBison &
Damaso Law Offices

Vice Chairman of The Center for Leadership & Charge.
Independent Director: Adventure International Tourg., Amon
Trading Corporation, EEI Corporation, Grepalife  @&iss
Management Corporation, Grepalife Fixed Income Fund
Corporation, House of Investments, Inc., JVR Fotinda Inc.,
Kawasaki Motor Corporation, Magellan Capital Holgin
Corporation, Omico Corporation, PETNET, Inc., PEARIS, Inc.,
Transnational Diversified Corporation, Transnatiobaversified
Group, Inc., Transnational Financial Services, ,Indniversal
Robina Corporation, Eton Properties Philippinesg.,InAsia
Brewery, Inc., and Tanduay Distillers, Inc.
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Nationality

Education

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

Awards/Citations

ANGELITO M. VILLANUEVA

76

Filipino

*

*

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration friglapua

Institute of Technology

Certified Public Accountant

None

*

Consultant of ECTK Integrated Security Group

Director: Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company, Toyodtéotor

Philippines Corporation, Toyota Motor (Phils.) Fdation,

Metropolitan (Bahamas) Ltd., First Metro Travel,cln First
Metro International Investments Co., Ltd., Asia iRacTop
Management, International Resources Corporationict&olo
Hotel, Cebu, MB Remittance Center, Ltd. — Hong Kokfgtro
Remittance (Singapore) Pte., Ltd., Metro Remittatiéd.) Ltd.,
Philippine Savings Bank (PSBank), SMBC-Metro Inwesnt
Corporation, Phil. Charter Insurance Co., Inc., liPhine
Clearing House Corporation, BancNet, Inc.

Director/Trustee of Orix Metro Leasing & Financer@@oration
Senior Executive Vice President & Head of Oper&i@roup of
Metrobank

Faculty Member of Philippine Christian UniversitgcaLyceum
of Aparri— Cagayan Provin¢

The Outstanding Alumnus Award in Banking and Firene
Golden Anniversary of the Del Pilar Academy 2000

The Outstanding Imusefio Award 1996

The Outstanding Mapuan (TOM) Award in Business
Administration 1992

The Outstanding Alumnus Award in the field of Imational
Banking Del Pilar Academy — 1989
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Name
Age
Nationality

Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

Name
Age
Nationality

Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

RUTH PAMELA E. TANGHAL
52
Filipino

C Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from the Notranie
University, Cotabato City
0 Bachelor of Laws from the Notre Dame University t&mto City

O Corporate Secretary
0 September 25, 2020

*  None

O Corporate Secretary of Allied Integrated Holdings.I(Formerly:
PNB Savings Bank)

O Director of E.C. Tanghal & Co., Inc. and Palm TB=ank, Inc.

0 Corporate Secretary of Genbancor Condominium Caitjmor

0 Assistant Corporate Secretary of PNB

0 Corporate Secretary of PNB Management and Developme
Corporation (MADECOR), Bulawan Mining Corporatiomda
PNB Holdings Corporation

Documentation Lawyer, PNB Legal Group

Director/Corporate Secretary, Rural Bank of Cotaphitc.

Director, Rural Bankers Association of the Philipgs, Inc.

[y |

MICHELLE A. PAHATI-MANUEL
48
Filipino

0O AB Political Science, University of Sto. Tomas, duated 1993
0 Bachelor of Laws, Saint Louis University, graduat©®8

C Assistant Corporate Secretary
C September 25, 2020

* None

O Corporate Secretary, PNB Capital and InvestmentpdZation
O Corporate Secretary, PNB Securities, Inc.

O Department Head, PNB Legal Group

0 Corporate Secretary, Bulawan Mining Corporation a#PNB
Management and Development Corporation (MADECOR)

0O Court Attorney, Supreme Court

0 Court Attorney, Court of Appeals
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Board of Advisors:

Name

Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment
Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

Awards/Citations

MARK M. CHEN

46

American

O Bachelor of Arts in Economics (with Honors), Haagniversity
— Dean’s List and a Harvard College Scholar

O Executive Masters in Business Administration fronme t
Northwestern Kellogg — Hong Kong University of Sue &
Technology (HKUST), graduated top of the class

O Board Advisor

0 January 24, 2020

O Director — Philippine Airlines, Inc.

O Chief Executive Officer of Cobalt Equity Partners

O Adjunct Professor of finance/investment at Kellodggng Kong
University of Science & Technology (HKUST) Busine&sshool

C Chief Executive Officer of General Electric (GE) Wy Asia
Pacific, 2006 to 2015

O Senior Vice President of General Electric (GE) Bguhsia
Pacific, 2000 to 2005

O Associate — Bankers Trust, 1996 to 1999

O United States Presidential Scholar

0 United States Byrd Congressional Award
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Name

Age

Nationality

Education

Current Position in the Bank
Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

WILLIAM T. LIM

80
Filipino
0 Bachelor of Science in Chemistry from Adamson Ursitg

u
u
*

O

[ [

Board Advisor
January 25, 2013
None

President of Jas Lordan, Inc.

Director of PNB Holdings Corporation, Allied Comm&l Bank -
Xiamen, General BH Fashion Retailers, Inc., and d&ph
Clothing, Co., Inc.

Advisor to the Chairman of the Board of DirectofAtlianz PNB
Life Insurance, Inc.

Director of PNB Life Insurance, Inc.

Consultant of Allied Banking Corporation

Board Advisor/Director of PNB Savings Bank

Director of Corporate Apparel, Inc.

Director of Concept Clothing

Director of Freeman Management and Development @atipn

Worked with Equitable Banking Corporation for 30 ay®
occupying various positions, including VP & Headtbé& Foreign
Department
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Name CHESTER Y. LUY

Age 51
Nationality Filipino
Education O Bachelor of Science in Business Administration (k&gCum

Laude), University of the Philippines

O Masters in Management degree from the J.L. Kell@gduate
School of Management at Northwestern University

O Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)
Current Position in the Bank O Board Advisor
Date of First Appointment 0 May 11, 2020
Other Current Positions O Board Advisor of PNB-Mizuho Leasing and Finance fi2oation,
PNB Europe and PNB Global Remittance and Financial
Corporation (Hong Kong)
Other Previous Positions O EVP and Head of Strategy Sector and Wealth Manage@mup

0 Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Headthe
Financial Advisory and Markets Group of Rizal Conmoie
Banking Corporation

0 He served in leadership roles as Managing Direcitnoss a
variety of businesses with several internationatksaand was
based in New York, Singapore and Manila. He worleith
JPMorgan, Bank of America Merrill Lynch, Barclaysafital,
HSBC, Julius Baer, Bank of Singapore and RCBC.

O Member of the Singapore Institute of Directors

0 Served on the Board of a Singapore-based Real eEstatl
Hospitality Entity
Awards/Citations 0 Men Who Matter Award (2017) by People Asia MagaZuevey

0 Top Senior Analyst in the U.S by Institutional lister Magazine
Polls for several years

0 Most Outstanding Business Administration Studemttfe Class
of 1990 of University of the Philippines
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Name
Age
Nationality
Education

Current Position in the Bank

Date of First Appointment

Directorship in Other Listed
Companies

Other Current Positions

Other Previous Positions

HARRY C. TAN

74

Filipino

C

O

OoO0OoOoooQgoao

Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering frore tapua
Institute of Technology

Board Advisor

May 31, 2016
Director of LT Group, Inc.

Chairman of PNB Global Remittance and Financial Gany (HK)
Limited

Chairman of the Tobacco Board of Fortune Tobacop@ation
President of Landcom Realty Corporation

Vice Chairman of Lucky Travel Corporation, Eton pedies
Philippines, Inc., Belton Communities, Inc., an@fECity, Inc.

Managing Director/Vice Chairman of The Charter Holrsc.

Director of various private firms which include AsBrewery, Inc.,
Dominium Realty and Construction Corporation, Pesgive

Farms, Inc., Shareholdings Inc., Himmel Industriey;., Basic

Holdings Corporation, Asian Alcohol Corporation, nP&sia

Securities Inc., Tanduay Distillers, Inc., Manutaatg Services
and Trade Corporation, Foremost Farms, Inc., Grzards
Development Corporation, Absolut Distillers, InEanduay Brands
International Inc., Allied Bankers Insurance Comlljed Banking

Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, PMFTC, Inc., Allle
Commercial Bank, and Fortune Landequities and Ressunc.

Chairman of Bulawan Mining Corporation

Director of Allied Integrated Holdings, Inc. (formhg PNBSB)
Director of Philippine National Bank

Director of Allied Banking Corporation

Director of Philippine Airlines, Inc.

Director of MacroAsia Corporation

President of Century Park Hotel

Director of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc.

Director of PAL Holdings, Inc.
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The following constitute the Bank’s Corporate Govenance and Sustainability Committee for the
year 2020-2021:

Florencia G. Tarrier - Chairmau
Felix Enrico R. Alfiler* - Member
Federico C. Pascu: - Member
Domingo H. Yaf* - Membe

* Independent Director

The following constitute the Bank’s Board Audit and Compliance Committee (BACC) for the
year 2020-2021:

Edgar A. Cu* - Chairman
Felix Enrico R. Alfile* - Membe
Florencia G. Tarriele - Member

* Independent Director
The following are the Executive Officers of the Bak:

JOSE ARNULFO A. VELOSO
(Please refer to page 27 of this Information Statetn

CENON C. AUDENCIAL, JR., 62, Filipino, Executive Vice President, is the adeof the
Institutional Banking Sector. Before joining the rain 2009, he headed the Institutional and
Corporate Bank of ANZ, prior to which he was a $emielationship Manager of Corporate Banking
and Unit Head of Global Relationship Banking fotilizink N.A. He previously served as a Vice
President and Unit Head of Standard Chartered BaRklationship Management Group, and was a
Relationship Manager in Citytrust Banking Corparati Before his 25-year stint as a Relationship
Manager, he was a Credit Analyst for Saudi FrenahkBand AEA Development Corporation. Mr.
Audencial obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree ¢oiomics from the Ateneo de Manila University.

ROBERTO D. BALTAZAR, 57, Filipino, Executive Vice President, Head obkadl Banking and
Markets Sector. Mr. Baltazar brings with him oved Rears of banking experience both in the
Financial Markets and Corporate Banking Sectorspknt 4 years in Citibank as a foreign exchange
trader then moved to HSBC in 1994 as head of FXlificathen eventually became Head of Global
Markets, Debt Capital Markets and Securities Sewvimm 2014. He sustained Debt Capital Markets
and HSS position as the number one Debt Capitakéisirand Global Custodianship Business during
his tenure. During this time, HSBC was likewise ofi¢he top FX and Bond Trading houses. He was
ACI President in 2013. He was an active memberhaf BAP OMC, specifically in the FX
subcommittee. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts degn Economics from the Ateneo de Manila
University and Masters in Business Administratioeagbee from the University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill, USA.

ISAGANI A. CORTES, 53, Filipino, Executive Vice President, was ampeid the Chief
Compliance Officer (CCO) of the Bank effective Api 2019. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts
degree in English from the University of the Easd éis Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of the Philippines in Diliman. Prior joining the Bank, Atty. Cortes was the Senior Vice
President and Deputy Head of the Regulatory Afféireup of RCBC. Prior to RCBC, he spent 14
years in The Hongkong Shanghai Banking Corporafi¢®BC) handling legal and compliance. As
SVP and Country Head of Financial Crime Complian€HSBC from 2014 to 2019, he was the
subject matter expert in and risk steward of financrime risk. He also worked for East West Bank
as its Chief Compliance Officer and ABN AMRO Phfipes handling Legal, Remedial Management
and Acquired Assets.

AIDA M. PADILLA , 71, Filipino, Executive Vice President and Heddh® Enterprise Services
Sector. She is the chief strategist for problematid distressed accounts. As a seasoned profelssiona
she rose from the branch banking ranks at the @piie Banking Corporation to become Vice
President for Marketing of its Corporate Bankingo@®@. She obtained her Bachelor of Science
degree in Commerce, Major in Accounting, from Stefiesa’s College.
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NELSON C. REYES, 56, Filipino, Executive Vice President, joine@ tBank on January 1, 2015 as

the Chief Financial Officer. In 2018, he becammember of the Board of PNB (Europe) PLC and
was appointed Chairman in 2019. Prior to joining Bank, he was the Chief Financial Officer of the
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (HSB@,,LPhilippine Branch, a position he held

for over ten (10) years. He was also a DirectortH8BC Savings Bank Philippines, Inc. and HSBC
Insurance Brokers Philippines, Inc. His bankingeearwith HSBC spanned twenty eight (28) years
and covered the areas of Credit Operations, Compdanking, Treasury Operations and Finance.
He gained international banking exposure workingi8BC offices in Australia, Thailand and Hong

Kong. Mr. Reyes graduated from De La Salle Unitgraith a Bachelor of Science degree in

Commerce, Major in Accounting, and is a Certifiathc Accountant.

MARIA PAZ D. LIM , 60, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is tBerporate Treasurer. She is
also concurrently the Treasurer of PNB Capital dngestment Corporation. She obtained her
Bachelor of Science degree in Business AdministnatMajor in Finance and Marketing, from the
University of the Philippines, and Masters in Besiea Administration from the Ateneo de Manila
University. She joined PNB on June 23, 1981, rasenfthe ranks and occupied various officer
positions at the Department of Economics & ReseaBidget Office and Corporate Disbursing
Office prior to her present position.

MANUEL C. BAHENA, JR., 59, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is the CHiefyal Counsel of the
Bank. He joined PNB in 2003 and was appointed eadH¥ Documentation and Research Division
of the Legal Group in 2009. Before joining PNB,aas the Corporate Secretary and Vice President
of the Legal Department of Multinational Investmdancorporation. He also formerly served as
Corporate Secretary and Legal Counsel of variouparations, among which are the Corporate
Partnership for Management in Business, Inc.; Qribwestment Corporation; Philippine Islands
Corporation for Tourism and Development; Cencorpadl€, Travel and Tours), Inc.; and Central
Bancorporation General Merchants, Inc.

EMELINE C. CENTENO, 62, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is the Heafdthe Corporate
Planning and Analysis Division. She obtained hechgdor of Science degree in Statistics (Dean’s
Lister) and completed her Masters of Arts in Ecoimsnaegree (on scholarship) from the University
of the Philippines. She joined PNB in 1983, rosanfrthe ranks and held various positions at the
Department of Economics and Research, Product Dewednt, Monitoring and Implementation
Division, and the Corporate Planning Division befassuming her present position as Head of the
merged Corporate Planning and Analysis Division.. i@enteno was awarded as one of the Ten
Outstanding Employees of the Bank in 1987.

MARIA ADELIA A. JOSON , 67, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is the Heddhe Retail Banking
Sector. Daday, as fondly called by her peers, vas 40 years of vast experience in the banking
industry. She started her stint as a research stnalfconomic Research Department of Commercial
Bank and Trust Company (Comtrust) in 1974. Aftgredrs, she took the exams and qualified for the
Officers Training Program conducted in 1978 and pr@snoted to Branch Cashier of Comtrust- Taft
Avenue Branch thereafter. In 1980, she joined AllBanking Corporation (ABC) as Cashier of
Roosevelt Branch. Throughout her stint at ABC, khe developed high proficiency in all facets of
branch banking thru the various key positions séld in the bank as Branch Head, Area Head and
Region Head prior to her designation as the HeaBrafich Banking Group in 2014. In 2017, she
was assigned to head a newly created group in étailBanking Sector Sales and Support Group.
Because of consistent commendable performancemshiged promotions not only in positions but
also in rank which is currently at SVP. Daday wasignated as the Officer-in-Charge for Retall
Banking Sector (RBS) in February 2020 before she efficially appointed as the Head of RBS in
November 2020. She obtained her degree in A.Bn&wics at La Salle College.

MARIE FE LIZA S. JAYME , 58, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is Headlod Operations Group.
She graduated with a degree in Bachelor of ArtsjoM&n Communication Arts and Business
Administration from the Assumption College and cdetgd academic units in Master in Business
Administration from the Ateneo de Manila Universitghe joined PNB in 2007 as Head of Cash
Product Management Division to establish the back'sh management services. Ms. Jayme began
her career in banking in 1990 as an account offigdr Land Bank of the Philippines. From then on,
she assumed expanded and multiple roles and rebpibies in account management as Senior
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Manager with United Coconut Planters Bank; risk agggment, cash and trades sales, cash products
as Assistant Vice President in Citibank, N.A.’s db Transaction Services/E-business; and
marketing and product management as Vice Presidedt Head of Marketing and Product
Management Group of Export and Industry Bank. Priobanking, Ms. Jayme held senior staff
positions with the Office of the Secretary of FineanDepartment of Trade and Industry and former
Office of the Prime Minister.

MICHAEL MORALLOS , 52 years old, Filipino, Senior Vice President,tliee Head of the
Information Technology Group. He obtained his Bdch of Arts degree major in Philosophy and
Political Science from the University of the Philipes and completed advanced computer studies at
the National Computer Institute of the Philippineéis company trainings include Wharton Senior
Executive Program, IBM Project Management, Atenemking Principles and extensive systems
training at the FIS Training Center, LR, Arkans&te brings with him over twenty-seven (27) years
of work experience and was a Senior FIS System@ticssultant. Prior to joining PNB, he was First
Senior Vice President and Head of Technology Platfat the Siam Commercial Bank, the largest
Thai bank with over 28 million Customer Accountsdaf,200 domestic branches. As Chief
Technology Officer of PNB, Mr. Morallos introducesignificant improvements in the IT service
operations as well as innovative changes in theniglogy support structure to dynamically adapt to
the bank’s digital transformation roadmap. He fettk bank’s technology strategy and supports the
delivery of technology services and key strategajgets to both domestic and overseas branches.

ROLAND V. OSCURO, 57, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is the Chiaformation Security
Officer and, in concurrent capacity, the Chief SaguOfficer and Head of Enterprise Security
Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Eteits and Communications Engineering
degree from Mapua Institute of Technology and tapkunits in Master in Business Administration
for Middle Managers at the Ateneo de Manila Gradu&chool. He is an Electronic and
Communications Engineering Board passer. He is afsdnformation Systems Audit and Control
Association's (ISACA) Certified Information SecyriManager (CISM). Prior to his present position,
Mr. Oscuro was hired as IT Consultant of the BankNovember 2, 2003. In May 2004, he was
appointed as the Head of Network Management Dirisibinformation Technology Group with the
rank of First Vice President. He was the Operati@upport System Group Manager of Multi-Media
Telephony, Inc. (Broadband Philippines) prior tinjog PNB. He was also connected with various
corporations such as Ediserve Corp. (Global Soyr&tsrling Tobacco Corporation, Zero Datasoft
(Al Bassam), Metal Industry Research and Developr@emter, and Pacific Office Machines, Inc.

NANETTE O. VERGARA, 60, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is Bkief Credit Officer and
Head of Credit Management Group. She obtained bgreg in Bachelor of Science in Statistics
(Cum Laude) in 1981 from the University of the Rigines in Diliman. She joined PNB in 2006 and
was appointed as First Vice President & Head ofdi€ranagement Division. She started her
banking career with Bank of Commerce in 1981. Shaved to the Credit Rating Services
Department of the Credit Information Bureau in 13881 went back to banking in 1992 when she
joined the Union Bank of the Philippines. Sherddtansferred to Solidbank Corporation in 1993 to
head various credit-related units. Prior to joinfPNB, she worked with United Overseas Bank from
2000-2006 as VP/Head of Credit Risk Management.

SOCORRO D. CORPUS 69, Filipino, is the Officer in Charge of Humare$®durces Group of
Philippine National Bank. “Cora” retired from theaBk in 2017 as First Senior Vice President and
Head of the Human Resources Group. Thereafterjahed Assessment Analytics Inc. (AAl), a
company that provides assessment solutions andunegasnts of talent as a Consultant. She is a
graduate of Assumption College with a Bachelor agfsAdegree, Major in Psychology and an
Associate in Commercial Science Degree. She has &ediR practitioner for more than 35 years.
She started her career with China Banking Corpamaiti 1973 prior to joining the Allied Banking
Corporation in 1977. Her professional affiliatiomglude the following: Founding Member and a
Board Member of the Organization Development Psifesml Network, past President and member
of the Bankers’ Council for People Management, menub the Personnel Management Association
of the Philippines and the regular Bank represamtab the Banking Industry Tripartite Council.

JOY JASMIN R. SANTOS, 47, Filipino, First Vice-President, is the Chigfust Officer and Head
of Trust Banking Group. She has served as ViceitRrasand Corporate Trust Division Head from
2013 to 2018 and Business Development Division Hefathe Trust Banking Group from 2010 to
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(b)

(©

(d)

2012. Prior to joining PNB, she was the InternaidBusiness Development Head for Asia of Globe
Telecom. She was also the Vice-President for RBilking of Citibank Savings Inc. from 2005 to

2009. She held key managerial positions in Keppehk3 American Express Bank and Bank of
Philippine Islands. Ms. Santos graduated as Cumdéam 1994 from the Ateneo de Manila

University with a degree of Bachelor of Arts, Major Management Economics and obtained her
Masters in Business Administration from the AusaralNational University, Canberra, Australia in

2002. She has completed the One-Year Course ort Dpsrations and Investment Management
given by the Trust Institute Foundation of the BPipilnes in 2015 and graduated with Distinction.

SIMEON T. YAP, 59, Filipino, First Vice President, is the BankChief Risk Officer and Head of
the Risk Management Group. He is an economics gtadintom the University of the Philippines’
School of Economics. Prior to joining PNB, he whs Market Risk Officer of Security Bank from
2009 to 2018. He was also the Associate DirectoPfoduct Development of PDEXx in 2008. He was
also with Citibank where he was a trader, MoneykdaHead of Citibank Shanghai and Market Risk
Officer.

SAMUEL G. LAZARO , 49, Filipino, Vice President, is the Deputy Chisfidit Executive and
concurrently the Officer-in-Charge (OIC) of Intefraudit Group (IAG) of the Bank. A Certified
Anti-Money Laundering Specialist (CAMS) and Ceddilnternal Control Auditor (CICA), he holds
a Bachelor of Science in Business Administratiogrde Major in Accounting from the Philippine
School of Business Administration. He started liseer as a Junior Auditor when he joined Allied
Banking Corporation in August 1993. He rose from thnks to become an Audit Officer in 1998 and
in August 2013, was designated Deputy Chief Audiedtitive and concurrently Division Head of
IAG-Head Office, Subsidiaries and Overseas Auditifdon (HOSOAD). He was appointed as OIC
of IAG in June 2020. He is an active member ofitas of Internal Auditors (1I1A)- Philippines,
Association of Certified Anti-Money Laundering Sjaist (ACAMS) and Association of Certified
Fraud Examiners (ACFE).

Identify Significant Employees

The Bank values all its employees for their conttitn to the business. No employee who is not an
executive officer is expected to make any signiftazontribution to the business of the Bank.

Family Relationships

Directors Lucio C. Tan and Carmen K. Tan are spaud&ectors Michael G. Tan, Sheila T. Pascual
and Vivienne K. Tan are children of Director Ludid Tan, while Mr. Lucio C. Tan Il is his
grandson. Board Advisor Harry C. Tan is the brotffddirector Lucio C. Tan.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

None of the directors nor any of the executivecaffs have, for a period covering the past five (5)
years up to the date of this Information Statemee{sorted:

i. any petition for bankruptcy filed by or against asimess with which they are related as a
general partner or executive officer;

ii. any criminal conviction by final judgment or beisgbject to a pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, other than cases which arageob the ordinary course of business in
which they may have been impleaded in their officepacity;

iii. being subject to any order, judgment, or decre@ @ompetent court, domestic or foreign,
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, sersging or limiting their involvement in any
type of business, securities, commodities or banktivities; or

iv. being found by a domestic or foreign court of cotepejurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC
or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or farexchange or other organized trading
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market or self-regulatory organization, to havelatied a securities or commodities law or
regulation, and the judgment has not been revessepended, or vacated.

(e) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank hasdand other transactions with its subsidiaries an

affiliates, and with certain directors, officerspckholders and related interests (DOSRI). Under th

Bank’s policy, these loans and other transactioesnaade substantially on the same terms as with
other individuals and businesses of comparables.riskhe amount of direct credit accommodations to
each of the Bank’s DOSRI, 70.00% of which must éeused, should not exceed the amount of their
respective deposits and book value of their respeaivestments in the Bank.

In the aggregate, DOSRI loans generally shouldexoeed the Bank’s equity or 15% of the Bank’s
total loan portfolio, whichever is lower. As of &amber 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred d@e the “Group”) were in compliance with such
regulations.

Parties are considered to be related if one paaty/the ability, directly or indirectly, to contrdie
other party or exercise significant influence ottee other party in making financial and operating
decisions. The Group’s related parties include:

« key management personnel, close family membersyhianagement personnel and entities
which are controlled, significantly influenced byfor which significant voting power is held
by key management personnel or their close faméynivers;

e significant investors;

e subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates andrépective subsidiaries; and

*  post-employment benefit plans for the benefit & @roup’s employees.

For proper monitoring of related party transactigR®T) and to assist the Board in performing its
oversight functions in monitoring and managing ptigé conflicts of interest of management, board
members and stockholders, the Bank created thedBO&ersight RPT Committee (BORC). The

BORC is composed of at least five (5) regular memmbéhich should consist of three (3) independent
directors and two (2) non-voting members (the Chieflit Executive and the Chief Compliance

Officer). The Chairman of the BORC is an indepemdirector and appointed by the Board.

Information related to transactions with relatedipa and with certain DOSRI is shown under Note 33
of the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank Swdbsidiaries and Part Il of the Supplementary
Schedules Required by the Revised Securities Régiui@ode Rule 68 Annex J.

The foregoing information addresses the requirerag8ection 49 of the Revised Corporation Code to
disclose the directors’ self-dealings and relatdyptransactions with the Bank.

Item 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
(a) Executive Compensation
1) General

The annual compensation of executive officers «issdbf a 16-month guaranteed cash
emolument. Non-executive directors are entitledatgper diem for each Board or Board

committee meeting attended as follows: P50,00000@#&ch board meeting ard P25,000.00 for
each committee meeting, provided that in no cas# e total per diem exceed P250,000.00
per month for committee meetings. No other emolusiare granted to non-executive directors
of the Bank except for the aforementioned per di€he President and CEO, being the only
executive director, is not entitled to any per diew it is deemed incorporated in his

compensation. The total per diem paid to the Bodirectors of the Bank for 2020 amounted

to £53.025 million.
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In view, however, of the competitiveness of theuisttly and high demand for senior executive
officers and in order to maintain the Bank’s attirseness and advantage, the Bank is unable to
disclose the exact amount of total compensatioeived by its President in 2020.

In compliance with Sections 29 and 49 of the Rel/iSerporation Code requiring corporations
vested with public interest to submit to its stoaklers and the Commission an annual report of
the total compensation of each of their directarseport on the total compensation of each
director will be presented at the Annual Stockhrdtd®leeting of the Bank and a copy of said
report will be submitted to the SEC, as may be irequ

The above information addresses the requiremerderu8ections 29 and 49 of the Revised
Corporation Code.

Other than as above-stated, there are no othengmmzents concerning compensation for
services rendered by directors or executive offiterthe Group.

2) Summary Compensation Table
Below is a summary compensation table of the togxdcutive officers, directors and other
officers of the Bank.
Annual Compensation (In Pesos
Name and Year Salary Bonus Others Total
Principal Position (per diem)
Mr. Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso
President & CEO
Four most highly compensated executive
officers other than the CEO:
1. Cenon C. Audencial, Jr.
Executive Vice President
2. Roberto D. Baltazar
Executive Vice Fesidelt
3. Isagani A. Cortes
Executive Vice President
4. Nelson C. Reyes
Executive Vice President
CEO and Four (4) Most Highly Compensated Actual 2029 79,069,69 25,160,85 - 104,230,54
Executive Officers Actual 2020 76,538,16 25,512,72:% - 102,050,89
Projected 221 83,427,00 27,809,00 - 111,236,00
Directors Actual 2079 - - 45,460,00 45,460,00
Actual 2020 - - 53,025,000 53,025,00
Projected 202 - - 57,797,00 57,797,00
All other officers (unnamed) Actual 2029 3,581,913,25¢ | 1,157,568,87 - | 4,739,522,12
Actual 2020 3,862,056,69 | 1,235,361,38 - | 5,097,418,08
Projected 202 | 4,209,642,00 | 1,346,544,00 - | 5,556,16,00(

The information above addresses the requirementSestions 29 and 49 of the Revised

Corporation Code.

3) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employnent and Change-in-Control

Arrangements

All executive officers are covered by the Bank'smstard employment contract which
guarantees annual compensation on a 16-month dehefdpayment. In accordance with Sec.
6.1, Article VI of the Bank’s Amended By-Laws, alfficers with the rank of Vice President
and up hold office and serve at the pleasure oBttead of Directors.
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4) Warrants and Options Outstanding

No warrants or options on the Bank’s shares ofkst@re been issued or given to the directors
or executive officers as a form of compensatiorstawices rendered.

Item 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., CPAs (SGV) is engagedres external auditor of the Bank and its

domestic subsidiaries for the calendar year 20Representatives of SGV will be present at the
stockholders meeting. They will have the oppotiutd make a statement if they desire to do so and
will be available to respond to appropriate questio Ms. Vicky B. Lee-Salas is the engagement
partner of the Bank for the year 2020.

The Board Audit and Compliance Committee (BACC) lpasnary authority to select, evaluate,
appoint, dismiss, replace and reappoint the Baekigrnal auditors, subject to the approval of the
Board of Directors and ratification of stockholdebssed on fair and transparent criteria such)as (i
core values, culture and high regard for excelleimcaudit quality; (ii) technical competence and
expertise of auditing staff; (iii) independence) @ffectiveness of the audit process; and (vakglity
and relevance of the external auditor’s reports.

After careful reevaluation, Management has dectde@commend SGV for reappointment as external
auditor of the Bank and its domestic subsidiar@glie year 2021. The BACC has thereafter endorsed
the reappointment of SGV to the Board of Directdiise reappointment of SGV as external auditor of
the Bank was approved by the Board of DirectorsMarch 10, 2021 and will be presented for
ratification of the stockholders at the Bank’s Aah&tockholders’ Meeting to be held on April 27,
2021.

For the years reported, there were no changeindisagreements with, the Bank’s external auditors
on accounting and financial disclosures.

OTHER MATTERS

tem 8. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS
The following matters will be submitted to a voteale Annual Stockholders’ Meeting:
1. Approval of the Minutes of the 2020 Annual Stocldek’ Meeting held on June 23, 2020

Hereunder is a summary of the salient matters désmliat the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of
the Bank in 2020:

a. The Minutes of the 2019 Annual Stockholders’ Megtield on April 30, 2019 was approved;
b. A Report of the President on the Results of Openatfor the Year 2019 was presented;
c. The 2019 Annual Report was approved;

d. Amendment of Sections 4.6 and 4.7 of Article IV @ktion 5.9 of Article V of the Bank’s
Amended By-Laws;

e. All Legal Acts, Resolutions and Proceedings ofBloard of Directors and Corporate Officers
since the 2019 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting wenaficmed and ratified;

f. Fifteen (15) Directors were elected to serve fertdrm 2020-2021; and

g. SGV was appointed as External Auditor of the Bamk020 - 2021.
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Item 9.

@)

(b)

Item 10.

A copy of the Minutes of the 2020 Annual StockhaotieMeeting was uploaded in the Bank'’s
website on June 23, 2020. The Minutes were prepareaccordance with the requirements of
Section 49 of the Revised Corporation Code

Approval of the 2020 Annual Report

The 2020 Annual Report of the Bank may be viewed @ownloaded from the Bank’s website at

www.pnb.com.ph/asm2021. The President will likewiseder his report on the Bank’s performance
for the year 2020 during the stockholders’ meeimgompliance with Section 49 of the Revised

Corporation Code which requires a presentatiorheo stockholders of a descriptive, balance and
comprehensible assessment of the Bank’s performamda financial report for the preceding year.

Ratification of all legal acts and proceedingshef Board of Directors and corporate officers sitiee
2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

A list of all legal acts, resolutions and procegditiaken by the directors and corporate officeitks wi
be too voluminous to be included in this report.os¥irelate to regular banking transactions and
credit matters which the Board of Directors, eitbgrlaw or by regulations issued by the BSP, is
required to act upon. It includes, among otheppraval of loans, investments, new products and
services, amendment of bank policies and manuatters related to various bank-acquired assets
and related party transactions. These actionsureded to the annual review of the BSP and the
Bank’s external auditor.

OTHER ACTIONS
Election of Directors
Fifteen (15) directors will be elected for the yaap1 — 2022.
Appointment of External Auditor

The BACC has sole authority to select, evaluatpoay, dismiss, replace and reappoint the Bank's
external auditors, subject to the approval of theal of Directors and ratification of the
stockholders, based on fair and transparent aigrch as (i) core values, culture and high refpard
excellence in audit quality; (ii) technical compate and expertise of auditing staff; (iii)
independence; (iv) effectiveness of the audit psscand (v) reliability and relevance of the exéérn
auditor's reports. The BACC has endorsed the réappent of SGV as its external auditor for the
year 2021 to the Board of Directors. The reappoémihof SGV as external auditor of the Bank was
approved by the Board of Directors on March 10,1288d will be presented for ratification of the
stockholders at the Bank’s Annual Stockholders’ tifegto be held on April 27, 2021.

SGV has the advantage of having historical knowdedd the business of the Bank and its

subsidiaries and affiliates, having been the agpdiexternal auditor of the Bank in 2020 and prior
years.

VOTING PROCEDURE

The affirmative vote of the stockholders presenpémson or by proxy representing at least a mgjaft
the stockholders present at the meeting shall fiieisnt to carry the vote for any of the matterbsnitted
to a vote at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, @tder Item 7 of the Agenda on the election of dioes.

1 The Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meetinddhan June 23, 2020 include, among others, thevatig:
A description of the voting and vote tabulationgadures used in the previous meeting;

A description of the opportunity given to stockhersl to ask questions and a record of the quesdisies;
The matters discussed and resolutions reached;

A record of the voting results for each agenda jtena

A list of the directors and stockholders who ateshthe meeting.

PoooTE
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For the election of directors, the fifteen (15) rioees garnering the highest number of votes froen th
stockholders present or represented by proxy bleatlected directors for the ensuing year.

The manner of voting and counting of votes willdsefollows:

a) Every stockholder entitled to vote shall have tight to vote the number of shares registereisn
name on record as of the close of business houtdaroh 29, 2021. Only duly signed proxies and
electronic votes submitted on or before 5:00 p.mApril 22, 2021 shall be honored for purposes of
voting.

The requirements and procedure for voting throwghate communication are reflected below.

b) For purposes of electing directors, the systdmcwmulative voting shall be followed. Each
stockholder is entitled to such number of votesaétpu the number of shares he owns multiplied by
the number of directors to be elected. Under tbiing system, the stockholder has the option to (i)
cast all his votes in favor of one (1) nominee(iprdistribute those votes under the same prircipl
among as many nominees as he shall see fit. Onljidates duly nominated shall be voted upon by
the stockholders entitled to vote or by their pesxi

c) The manner of election and the counting of tbies to be cast shall be under the supervisioheof t
Corporate Secretary.

The foregoing addresses the requirement of SedBaof the Revised Corporation Code to disclosé¢o t
stockholders material information on the curreatkholders and their voting rights.

REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURE FOR PARTICIPATION AND VO TING THROUGH
REMOTE COMMUNICATION

A. Registration for the 2021 ASM and Votingthrough Remote Communication
1. Stockholders of record as of March 29, 2021, whehwib attend the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

(the “ASM”) and vote in absentia should registerotigh the PNB ASM Registration Portal at
www.pnb.com.ph/asm2021 on or before April 20, 20Registration Period”).

2. Stockholders are required to provide the followiogvalidation and verification:

a. For individual Stockholders

e Scanned copy of the front and back portions of $eckholder's valid government-issued
photo ID. This must be in a digital, JPG format with a filize no larger than 2MB. Valid
government-issued photo IDs include the followibgiver's License, Passport, Unified Multi-
Purpose ID, Professional Regulation Commission3BS 1D, Pag-lbig ID, and Senior Citizen
ID;

» Valid and active e-mail address;

* Valid and active contact number (landline or mobilenber).

b. For Stockholders with Joint accounts

In addition to the above requirements, a scannquy af an authorization letter signed by all
Stockholders jointly owning the shares designatiingp among them is authorized to cast the vote for
the account. The authorization letter must alsmteedigital, JPG format with a file size no largkan
2MB.
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c. For Corporate Stockholders

e« Scanned copy of a Secretary’s Certificate or a daasolution under oath regarding the
authority of the representative to attend the megetand vote for and on behalf of the
Corporation. This must be in a digital, JPG fornvéh a file size no larger than 2MB;

e Scanned copy of the front and back portions ofvakéd government-issueghoto ID of the
Stockholder’s representative. This must be in &aligPG format with a file size no larger than
2MB. Valid government-issued photo IDs include fobdowing: Driver's License, Passport,
Unified Multi-Purpose ID, Professional Regulatioor@mission ID, SSS ID, Pag-lbig ID, and
Senior Citizen ID;

« Valid and active email address of the Stockholdefgesentative;

e« Valid and active contact number of the Stockhoklerpresentative (landline or mobile
number).

d. For Stockholders represented by Proxy

e In addition to the above requirements for the Stottter, the same requirements shall be
submitted by the Proxy or authorized representative

e Scanned copy of the Proxy Form or an authorizatetter signed by the Stockholder,
authorizing the Proxy to attend the meeting and #esvote for the account. This must also be
in a digital, JPG format with a file size no larglean 2MB.

e. For Stockholders under Broker accounts

e Scanned copy of the broker's certificate signed thg authorized signatory/ies on the
Stockholder's number of shares. This must be iigaad, JPG format with a file size no larger
than 2MB;

« In case of a corporate stockholder, also submiaarsed copy of the certification signed by a
duly authorized officer of such corporate benefi@aner attesting to the authority of the
representative to vote for and on behalf of thepamate beneficial stockholder. This must be in
a digital, JPG format with a file size no largeatt2MB;

e Scanned copy of the front and back portions of $teckholder’'s valid government-issued
photo ID. This must be in a digital, JPG format with a filize no larger than 2MB. Valid
government-issued photo IDs include the followibgiver's License, Passport, Unified Multi-
Purpose ID, Professional Regulation Commission3BS ID, Pag-lbig ID and Senior Citizen
ID;

* Valid and active email address;

e Valid and active contact number (landline or mobilenber).

Upon completion of the verification procedure, tBckholder will receive an email confirmation
which includes the link which the Stockholder mageuo access the PNB 2021 ASM livestream.
Stockholders who opted during the online regisirato vote in absentia will likewise receive a litak
PNB’s secure online voting portal (“Voting Portafith the Stockholder's default username and
password.

The validation and verification procedure may take to three (3) days upon submission of the
required documents. Stockholders are encouragesjister early within the Registration Period.

The Voting Portal contains the agenda items redcin the Notice of the 2021 PNB ASM. Registered
Stockholders may vote as follows:

(a) For items other than the election of directoegistered Stockholders have the option to vote
“For”, “Against”, or “Abstain”;

(b) For election of Directors, the system of cuative voting shall be followed. Each Stockholder
is entitled to such number of votes equal to thelmer of shares he/she/it owns multiplied by the
number of directors to be elected. Under this wpsgstem, the Stockholder has the option to (i)
cast all his/her/its votes in favor of one (1) noe®, or (ii) distribute his/her/its votes among as
many nominees as he/she/it may deem fit;

44



(c) Once the registered Stockholder has comphettidg, he/she/it can submit his/her/its votes by
clicking the “Submit” button. Upon submission, tregistered Stockholder may no longer change
his/herl/its votes.

6. The Office of the Corporate Secretary shall taluklt valid votes cast in absentia and votes cast
through proxies. An independent party will validéite voting results, which will be reported by the
Corporate Secretary at the meeting. All votes ghbel submitted no later than 5:00 p.m. on April 22,
2021.

B. Other Information Regarding the 2021 PNB ASM

1. Only those Stockholders who have completed thestregion and verification procedure within the
Registration Period shall be considered in deteingithe existence of a quorum.

2. The conduct of the ASM will be streamed live. Vote®l queries cannot be submitted through the
livestreaming link. Registered Stockholders may dsetheir queries or comments to
pnb_asm@pnb.com.ph on or before April 23, 2021.ri@sesent but not addressed during the ASM
due to time constraints shall be addressed sepaeate responded to through email.

3. The proceedings will be recorded in video and afmiimat. The Minutes of the ASM will be uploaded
to the PNB website within twenty-four (24) hoursoughe adjournment of the ASM.

Item 12. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PNB subscribes to the highest standards of copamaternance as the Bank believes that good gavesna
supports long-term value creation for the Bank aifidits stakeholders. The following pages provide a
narrative of the Bank’s corporate governance fraotkwand its implementation. This report has been
prepared in accordance with the BSP Manual of Reiguis for Banks (MORB), the SEC Code of Corporate
Governance, and the ASEAN Corporate Governancee8aat (ACGS).

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors serves as the governing beldgted by the stockholders to exercise the catpor
powers of the Bank and conduct all its business. Board is vested with the focal responsibilitypadmoting

a culture of strong governance in the organizatiommugh adopted policies and displayed practices. |
approves and oversees the implementation of ougrgance framework.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors has created eight committeescrease its efficiency and allow deeper foous
specific areas of the Bank’s operations. The saufpauthority, duties, and responsibilities of eddbard
committee are adequately defined, documented, Braily communicated in their respective chartedse T
extent to which authorities are delegated and tireesponding accountabilities are regularly reviévaad
approved by the Board.

The Chairperson, Vice Chairman, and President and EO

The positions of Chairperson of the Board and Beggiand Chief Executive Officer are held by sefgara
individuals to achieve an appropriate balance afgxpincrease accountability, and improve the ciypad

the Board for decision-making independent of Managy@. The separation of the roles ensures the fair
division of powers, increased accountability, andaced governance.

The Chairperson of the Board is Florencia G. Thyri@ho has held the position since 2005. She essine
effective functioning of the Board, including maiing a relationship of trust with individual diters. She
makes certain that the meeting agenda focusegategt matters, including discussions on risk &pand
key governance concerns.
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The Vice Chairman is Felix Enrico R. Alfiler. Heshaerved as a director of the Bank since 2012.dtkeas
the Chairman of the Board, either in the absencth@fChairperson or as required by the Chairperand,
carries out additional leadership duties.

The President and Chief Executive Officer (CEOYase Arnulfo A. Veloso. He assumed the position in
2018. As President and CEO, he is the overall-grgh for the management of the business and affatre
Bank as governed by the strategic direction arld ajgpetite approved by the Board. He communicatels a
implements the Bank’s vision, mission, values, anérall strategy.

The complete background and qualifications of thaitperson, Vice Chairman, and President and CEO ca
be found on the Profiles of the Board of Directors.

Board Advisors

As provided for under the Corporate Governance Mhnthe Bank may appoint Board Advisors with
qualities that complement the existing competenaies skillsets of the Board which enable them tuvigle
advisory support. PNB has four Board Advisors: MitkChen, William T. Lim, Harry C. Tan, and Chester
Y. Luy.

Board Advisors are expected to provide advice oateggic direction, governance matters, risk managem
and other relevant issues that the Board is cotdtbwith. As such, they may attend meetings ofBbard
and the eight Board committees.

Unlike the Board members, Board Advisors do notehiéne authority to vote on corporate matters.
Corporate Secretary

The Corporate Secretary assists the Board of Direcnd the Board committees in the conduct ofr thei
meetings. She plays a significant role in suppgrtimee Board in discharging its responsibilitiesn&iions
include safekeeping of and the preservation ofirtkegrity of the minutes of the meetings and emguthat
the Board members have accurate information ththtewable them to form sound decisions on matteas t
require their approval.

Board members are given separate and independmdsaio the Corporate Secretary at all times.

The Corporate Secretary of the Bank is Atty. RudmPla E. Tanghal, a Filipino and a resident of the
Philippines. She assumed the position in 2020. iShegally trained, with experience in legal maiteand
company secretarial practices.

Chief Compliance Officer

The Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) implements andnages the enterprise-wide compliance program
covering domestic and foreign branches, officebsgliaries, and affiliates. The Bank’s CCO is Atisagani

A. Cortes who assumed the position in 2019. Helde ¢he Head of Global Compliance Group and the
designated Corporate Governance Executive, tas@edssist the Board of Directors in performing its
corporate governance oversight functions.

Chief Risk Officer

The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) supervises the entsgprisk management (ERM) process and communicates
the top risks and the status of implementatiorislf management strategies and action plans to tlaedB The
CRO is Simeon T. Yap who assumed the position it92Me is concurrently the Bank’s Data Protection
Officer (DPO) and Head of Risk Management Group.

Chief Audit Executive

The Chief Audit Executive (CAE) is responsible fdeveloping and managing a broad, comprehensive

program of internal auditing covering the Bank,stsidiaries, and overseas businesses to prdwdBdard
with independent assessment that key organizatahprocedural controls and risk management systeen

46



adequate, effective, and complied with. The OfficeCharge (OIC) of the Internal Audit Group is SahG.
Lazaro, who has held the position since 2020.

Management Committee

PNB’s Management Committee is composed of topfii@fessionals who are well-accomplished in their
respective fields. The Management Committee exsedbie Bank’s strategy and drives business perfocman
It is headed by the President and CEO, supportedebZhief of Staff.

Legal Vehicles, Business, and Support Groups

As a large, diversified banking group, PNB has thassifications of business vehicles: domestic islidnges,
and foreign branches, subsidiaries, and offices.

Within the Bank, there are different business amgpsrt groups that work in unison to achieve thakBa
shared mission of becoming a leading provider wéricial solutions. Each of the major groups ishgda
Sector or Group Head who reports directly to theskient and CEO.

BOARD MATTERS
Board Composition

The Bank has fifteen (15) Board members with a thra@ege of experience and deep industry expeitisey
are elected by the stockholders during the Anndati®olders’ Meeting (ASM) and hold office for the
ensuing year until their successors are electedjaalified. The Bank’s directors possess all thalifjoations
and none of the disqualifications under existingd@and BSP regulations.

The President and CEO, who has executive resptitsibf day-to-day operations, is elected as thk so
executive director while the other members are exacutive directors (NEDs) who do not perform armgrkv
related to the operations of the Bank.

Among the Board members are five (5) independeetctirs: Florencia G. Tarriela, Felix Enrico R. ildf,
Edgar A. Cua, Federico C. Pascual, and Domingo &p.YThey are independent of Management and free
from any business or other relationship which comlaterially interfere with the exercise of independ
judgment in fulfilling their responsibilities asrdctors.

The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Coremiteviewed the composition and membership of the
Board and Board committees and identified the @uaéxisting competencies, and skillsets of diresto
aligned with the Bank’s strategic direction.

Following the ASM held in 2020, the Board of Direxs conducted an organizational meeting to reviesv t
membership of the Board committees. The reviewltegto the following changes:

e Sheila T. Pascual was appointed as member of teeUufixe Committee, Trust Committee, and Board
Strategy and Policy Committee.

« Florencia G. Tarriela and Felix Enrico R. Alfileeve appointed as non-voting members of the Exegutiv
Committee.

The composition of the eight (8) Board committeesmained compliant with the applicable BSP and SEC
regulations, as well as the standards of the ASE®kKporate Governance Scorecard (the “ACGS”).

Skills, Competency, and Diversity

The composition of PNB’s Board reflects diversity gender, nationality, age, knowledge, and skidisth
social (e.g., gender, race/ethnicity, and age disgrand professional diversity are considere@entifying,
assessing, and selecting the members of the Bodrthair appointment in various Board committees.

Consistent with the Bank'’s implementation of the@%; the Bank continuously strives to meet the foithg:
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e At least 50% of the members of the Board have dduw background in banking and finance,
accounting, economics, or law;

* At least 50% of the members of the Board have egieskills and experience in the areas of bankimy a
finance, accounting, economics, or law; and

¢ Atleast one (1) female director.

By December 31, 2020, the Bank met the above—mesdialiversity targets. PNB has four (4) female
directors in the Board, one of whom is independdie Board members also have diverse educational
background, expertise, corporate qualifications] professional experience including accounting,itang)
aviation and travel, banking and finance, busirsssnen, consumer goods, economics, general manageme
expertise, legal expertise, manufacturing, realtestaind tobacco. Apart from Filipinos, the Bank bae (1)
director who is a British citizen.

In relation to age diversity, an optimal mix of yguand well-seasoned Board members is in placey For
percent (40%) of the Board are below sixty (60)rgezld, who bring fresh ideas and perspectives tihéo
table. Meanwhile, the age range of the remainingrBanembers is in a fairly productive and maturesag
with 20% and 13% of the Board belonging to the ®aiid 80—90 age range, respectively.

Lastly, periodic review of the composition, represgion, and diversity in the Board and Board cottees is
being performed with the goal of having a balanaed diversified membership.

Nomination and Election of Directors

The criteria for the nomination and election of Bbenembers comprise of knowledge, skills, expeggand
particularly in the case of NEDs, independence idngiven their responsibilities to the Board andight of
the Bank’s business and risk profile; a recordraégrity and good reputation; and the ability t@rpote
smooth interaction between Board members.

External sources were consulted in sourcing pakrthd qualified directors, including the Instituoé
Corporate Directors (ICD) and annual reports ofeotlisted companies. As a matter of practice, all
stockholders, including minority stockholders, aso invited to recommend nominees for electionaas
director of the Bank.

The Corporate Secretary presents all nominatiortkeidCorporate Governance and Sustainability Cotaemit
together with profiles of each nominee that includenong others, their qualifications and experisnce
academic and professional backgrounds, and expeelisvant and beneficial to the business of th&kBa

Prior to the ASM, the Corporate Governance andé&tuaility Committee pre-screens the qualificatiarfis
the nominees, conducts the nomination proceduckepegpares the final list of all candidates.

Meetings and Attendance

Board meetings are held monthly and the schedudetibefore the start of the financial year. ThepOmte
Secretary issues the annual Board calendar evergritger for the ensuing year.

The Corporate Secretary informs the Board membetheoagenda of the Board meetings and distributes
materials at least five (5) business days pridgh&éscheduled meeting. She likewise ensures tean#mbers
possess accurate information that enables them ake nsound decisions on matters that require Board
approval.

Two-thirds (2/3) of the directors shall be necegsdrall meetings to constitute a quorum for tlasaction of
any business. In the absence of a quorum at amyjaregr special meeting, the Board shall adjoura tater
date and shall not transact any business untibaugui is secured.

In 2020, the Board held a total of twenty-one nregdi twelve regular meetings, eight special mestiagd

one organizational meeting. Each Board member dechplith the SEC’s minimum attendance requirement
of 50% and the ACGS’ recommended attendance of 75%.
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21 meetings held for the year ended December 21 20
Name No. of Meetings Attended % Present

Florencia G. Tarriela 21 100.00
Felix Enrico R. Alfiler 21 100.00
Florido P. Casuela 21 100.00
Leonilo G. Coronel 21 100.00
Edgar A. Cua 21 100.00
Estelito P. Mendoza 18 85.71
Christopher J. Nelson 21 100.00
Federico C. Pascual 21 100.00
Carmen K. Tan 17 80.95
Lucio C. Tan 16 76.19
Michael G. Tan 21 100.00
Sheila T. Pascual 20 95.24
Vivienne K. Tan 21 100.00
Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso 21 100.00
Domingo H. Yap 21 100.00

On December 14, 2020, the independent directorswitlebut the presence of any executives to distiuss
performance of Management, emerging and top risked by the Bank, and corresponding strategies or
action plans to effectively manage and mitigates¢éhiasks.

The NEDs are also required to meet separatelyaat lence a year, without the presence of any execat
anyone from Management to ensure that they wilable to better evaluate the effectiveness of therral
controls and assess key issues and relevant matteesnd. The NED’s meeting was held last Decer@her
2020 to discuss the abovementioned items.

Remuneration
The remuneration and fringe benefits of Board mesensist of per diem for every Board and Board
committee meeting and non-cash benefits like heatth plan, group life insurance, and group accident

insurance.

The total per diem given to the Board, as wellhestbtal compensation of the President and CECtlanébur
(4) most highly compensated executive officerslisslosed in pages 39 to 41 of this InformatiorteSteent.

There has been no proposal on remuneration foctdire presented to the stockholders for approvahén
2020 ASM.

Board Performance Evaluation

Good corporate governance improves Board performan&s such, the Board continuously seeks ways to
assess its performance as individual directors ana@ collegial body, identifying strengths and srés
improvement, and establishing mechanisms for adioirgshe results thereof.

The Board of Directors participates in an annudl-assessment exercise to assess their individodl a
collective performance. This exercise is also demigto determine and measure the adherence of the
Management to corporate governance practices.
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The questionnaire covers comprehensive evaluatiberia focused on matters such as the directome t
commitment and independence, governance landsedimieal culture in the organization, risk goverrgnc
fithess and propriety of Board and Management,iarginal controls.

The Board performance evaluation is facilitatedtoyy CCO. He consolidates and reviews the resparsgs
presents the summary of results and significardifigs to the Corporate Governance and Sustainabilit
Committee.

In 2020, the Bank engaged the ICD to assess thetste, processes, dynamics, roles, and overall
performance of the Board and further align our goaace framework with best practices, in compliawib
the SEC’s Code of Corporate Governance for Publidted Companies.

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Board of Directors values ongoing professiodalelopment and actively participates in training
programs annually to keep abreast of key issueslamdlopments in the industry. Corporate governdest
practices, changes in the regulatory and businegsoament, and the duties and responsibilitiethefBoard
and Board committees, including risk oversight,iatRPTs, and corporate governance are discusseagdu
the annual training session.

As of December 31, 2020, all fifteen (15) directarsl the Corporate Secretary of the Bank compliildl thve
four (4)—hour annual continuing training requireren

Name Program Date Hc:ztsiiljrt?ci)rrl‘ing
Florencia G. Tarriela Corporate Governance Seminar October 20, 2020 SGV & Co.
Felix Enrico R. Alfiler Corporate Governance Seming  October 20, 2020 SGV & Co.
Florido P. Casuela Corporate Governance Seminar ob®ecR0, 2020 SGV & Co.
Leonilo G. Coronel Corporate Governance Semingar olmmt20, 2020 SGV & Co.
Edgar A. Cua Corporate Governance Semingar Octdhe2@®0 SGV & Co.
Estelito P. Mendoza Corporate Governance Seminar pteBder 9, 2020 SGV & Co.
Christopher J. Nelson Corporate Governance Seminar October 20, 2020 SGV & Co.
Federico C. Pascual Corporate Governance Seminpar tob&c20, 2020 SGV & Co.
Carmen K. Tan Corporate Governance Semingar Oche2020 SGV & Co.
Lucio C. Tan Corporate Governance Seminar OctobeP@20 SGV & Co.
Michael G. Tan Corporate Governance Seminar Oct2be2020 SGV & Co.
Sheila T. Pascual Corporate Governance Orientation September 8 — 9, Institutg of Corporate

Program 2020 Directors
Vivienne K. Tan Corporate Governance Seminar Oct@be2020 SGV & Co.
Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso Corporate Governance Seminar October 20, 2020 SGV & Co.
Domingo H. Yap Corporate Governance Seminar Octabe020 SGV & Co.
Ruth Pamela E. Tanghal Corporate Governance SemiparOctober 20, 2020 SGV & Co.

Shareholdings

A director is required to advise the Corporate 8y of his or her shareholdings in the Bank wittiree (3)
business days after his or her appointment or aguisition, disposal, or change in his or shareihglsl In
this regard, all directors shall disclose and refwthe Bank any dealings in the Bank’s sharehiwithree (3)
business days of such dealings in order for thekBarmake the necessary disclosures with the Riilg
Stock Exchange and the SEC by filing the requSEE Form 23-B.
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Directors, Management, and employees consideretinaslers” are prohibited from selling or buying a
security of PNB or another company while in poseesef material information with respect to theuss or
the security that is not generally available tophélic.

Shareholdings as o

f

% of Shares Held tq

Shareholdings as 0

f

% of Shares Held tq
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Name Total Outstanding Total Outstanding
January 1, 2020 Shares of Bank December 31, 202( Shares of Bank

Florencia G. 2 0.0000001311 2 0.0000001311
Tarriela
Zef::)érE””CO R, 8,324 0.0005455624 8,324 0.0005455624
Florido P. Casuela 162 0.0000106176 162 0.000018617
Leonilo G. Coronel 1 0.0000000655 1 0.000000065%
Edgar A. Cua 100 0.0000065541 100 0.000006554{1
Estelito P. Mendoza 1,150 0.0000753720 1,150 0.2881020
Christopher J. 100 0.0000065541 100 0.0000065541
Nelson
Federico C. Pascudl 39 0.0000025561 39 0.00000255
Carmen K. Tan 5,000 0.0003277045 5.000 0.000327704
Lucio C. Tan 14,843,119 0.9728313639 14,843,119 728913639
Michael G. Tan 250 0.0000163852 62,250 0.0040799210
Sheila T. Pascual 110 0.0000072095, 110 0.0000072095
Vivienne K. Tan 10 0.0000006554 10 0.0000006554
Jose Amulfo A. 418,395 0.0274219845 418,395 0.027421984%5
Veloso
Domingo H. Yap 1 0.0000000655 1 0.0000000655

Concurrent Directorships

A NED may concurrently serve as director of a maximof five (5) publicly listed companies. In applgi
this provision to concurrent directorship in emstiwithin the conglomerate, each entity where tlEDNs
concurrently serving as a director shall be sepbraonsidered in assessing compliance to thisirepent.
As of December 31, 2020, all fifteen (15) directmsmplied with the prescribed limit on concurrent

directorships.

A director of the Bank must notify the Board of &itors before accepting a directorship in anothergany.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has delegated certain fonstito eight (8) committees to enable a more fatasel
specialized attention on specific areas. Thes¢har8oard Audit and Compliance Committee (BACC)aRb

IT Governance Committee (BITGC), Board OversighfTRPommittee (BORC), Board Strategy and Policy
Committee (BSPC), Corporate Governance and SusifitpaCommittee, Executive Committee (EXCOM),
Risk Oversight Committee (ROC), and Trust Committee
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Board Audit Board Board Corporate .
Board IT . . Risk
Name & Oversight | Strategy &| Governance & Executive . Trust
. Governance . . . Oversight
Compliance RPT Policy Sustainability
Florencia G. M
Tarriela M M M c (Non-voting)
Felix Enrico M
. M C M . M

R. Alfiler (Non-voting)
Florido P. M M c M
Casuela
Leonilo G. M M M M
Coronel
Edgar A. Cua C M M M
Estelito P.
Mendoza
Christopher J. M M M c
Nelson
Federico C. M M M c M
Pascual
Carmen K.
Tan
Lucio C. Tan
Mi .

ichael G M M
Tan
Sheila T. M M M
Pascual
Vivienne K. c M M M M
Tan
Jose Arnulfo
A. Veloso M M M M
Domingo H. c M
Yap

Legend: CisChairperson. M is Member.

Board Audit and Compliance Committee (BACC)
Mandate;
Assists the Board in the performance of its ovéatsigsponsibility relating to financial reporting
process, systems of internal control, audit pracasd monitoring of compliance with applicable laws
rules and regulations.

Structure and membership:
Chaired by an independent director.
Composed entirely of independent directors.

The members of the BACC possess relevant backgrdunogvledge, skills, and experience in the areas
of accounting, auditing, and finance. Edgar A. @aa held other previous positions in international
organizations and auditing firms. Florencia G. Tar has been a country financial controller of a
multinational bank for ten (10) years. Felix EnriBo Alfiler holds a broad range of expertise and

related banking experience in various internatiamghnizations and regulatory bodies.

The membership, composition, and independenceeoB&kCC meets the requirements under existing

laws, BSP and SEC regulations, and the ACGS.

Meetings and Attendance:
In 2020, BACC held a total of fourteen meetings.

The committee charter stipulates that meetingd bleaheld at least four times a year. Special mgstimay
be convened, as necessary.
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Fourteen meetings held for the year ended DeceB81he2020
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attende
Edgar A. Cua Chairman, Independent Directar 14 amo.
Florencia G. Tarriela Member, Independent Director, 14 100.00
Felix Enrico R. Alfiler Member, Independent Directo 14 100.00

Board IT Governance Committee (BITGC)
Mandate;
« Reviews and endorses for approval of the Board eéheerprise IT strategic plans of PNB, its
subsidiaries, and affiliates.
« Reviews and monitors significant IT concerns inabgd disruption, cyber security, and disaster
recovery to ensure that all key risks are iderdifimanaged and reported to the Board.

Structure and membership:

e BITGC consists of six members: four (4) NEDs, ohpiftdependent director, and one (1) executive
director.

Meetings and Attendance:
¢ In 2020, BITGC held a total of eleven (11) meetings
e The committee charter stipulates that meetingd bledield at least every month. Meetings can ogrly b
held if attended by a majority of the members @%s (1) member; but the vote of the majority of the

quorum which in no case is less than two (2) memiserequired to approve any act in all the mesting
of the committee.

Eleven meetings held for the year ended
December 31, 20:
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attende
Vivienne K. Tan Chairman, NED 11 100.00
Florido P. Casuela Member, NED 11 100.00
Leonilo G. Coronel Member, NED 11 100.00
Christopher J. Nelson Member, NED 11 100.00
Florencia G. Tarriela Member, Independent Director 11 100.00
Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso Member, Executive Director 11 100.00

Board Oversight RPT Committee (BORC)
Mandate;

» Oversees the evaluation of RPTs that present skeofipotential abuse and evaluates all materidldRP
to ensure that these are conducted in the nornase®f business.

Structure and member ship:
e Composed entirely of independent directors.
e Chaired by an independent director.
e Chairman of the BORC is not the Chairperson ofBbard or of any other Board committee.
e« The CCO and the CAE also sit as hon-voting membfetise committee.

Meetings and Attendance:
* In 2020, BORC held a total of seventeen (17) mgstin

The committee charter stipulates that BORC shatldoot monthly meetings or as necessary. Meetings ca
only be held if attended by a majority of the mensbéut the vote of the majority of the quorum whio no
case is less than two (2) members is requiredpcogpe any act in all the meetings of the committee.
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Seventeen meetings held for the year ended
December 3, 202(
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attendec
Domingo H. Yag| Chairman, Independent Direc 15 88.2¢
Edgar A. Cu Member, Independent Dctor 17 100.0(
Federico C. PascL Member, Independent Direc 17 100.0(
Isagani A. Corte Non-voting memlet 15 88.2¢
Martin G. Tengcd? Non-voting membe 5 71.4:
Samuel G. Lazar® Non-voting membe 9 90.0(

@ Martin G. Tengco stepped down as CAE effective Kay2020.

@ Samuel G. Lazaro was appointed as OIC of Internait’Group effective June 1, 2020.

Board Strategy and Policy Committee (BSPC)
Mandate:
e Serves as the governing Board committee in exegiauthority and delegating to Management the
implementation of the Board-approved strategic pkamd policies.

Structure and membership:
* BSPC consists of eleven (11) members: four (4)peddent directors, six (6) NEDs and one (1)
executive director.

Meetings and Attendance:
¢ In 2020, BSPC held a total of thirty-nine (39) niegs.
* The committee charter stipulates that regular mgstshall be held at least every month. Meetings ca
only be held if attended by a majority of the mensbe

Thirty-nine meetings held for the year ended Deber i1, 202(
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attende
Felix Enrico R. Alfilel Chairman, Independent rectol 39 100.0(
Florido P. Casue Member,NED 39 100.0(
Leonilo G. Corone Member,NED 39 100.0(
Edgar A. Cu Member, Independent Direc 39 100.(0
Christopher J. Nelst Member,NED 37 94.87
Federico C. PasctL Member, Independent Direc 39 100.(0
Sheila T. Pascui® Member NED 25 100.0(
Michael G. Ta Member,NED 38 97.4¢
Vivienne K. Tat Member,NED 38 97.4¢
Florencia G. Tarriel Member Independent Direct 39 100.0(
Jose ArnulfcA. Velosc Member, Executive Direct 39 100.0(

(@ Shiela T. Pascual was elected as member of the REBGive June 23, 2020.

Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee
Mandate:

e Assists the Board in the performance of its govecearesponsibilities, including the functions oé th
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, ensuringpdiamce with and proper observance of good
corporate governance.

* Oversees the consistent implementation of the BasikStainability framework.

Structure and member ship:
e Chaired by the Chairperson of the Board who isn@ependent director.
» Composed entirely of independent directors.

Meetings and Attendance:
e In 2020, the committee held a total of fourteen) (héetings.
* The committee charter stipulates that meetingd bledield at least every month. Meetings can oely b
held if attended by a majority of the members; that vote of the majority of the quorum which in no
case is less than two (2) members is requiredpicoap any act in all the meetings of the committee.
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Fourteen meetings held for the year ended
Decembei31, 202
Name Role No. of meetings atndec % Preser
Florencia G. Tarriel Chairman, Independent Direc 14 100.0(
Felix Enrico R. Alfilel Member, independent Direct 14 100.0(
Federico C. PasctL Member, Independent Direc 14 100.0(
Domingo H. Yag Member, Independent Direc 13 92.8¢

Executive Committee
Mandate;
» Assists the Board in the review of proposals reigardredit facilities, investments in financial ats
borrowings, and other credit or transactional niatte line with the Bank’s strategic goals.

Structure and membership:

e The membership and composition of the committeepdi@s with the requirements of the Revised
Corporation Code and other applicable laws.

e The committee consists of nine (9) members: sixNBDs, two (2) independent directors, and one (1)
executive director.

* Independent directors may be appointed as nongatiembers and may assume an advisory capacity
to the committee. Non-voting members shall not weitl respect to any determination and proposal
requiring the approval or notation of the commitee®d shall not count towards a quorum at any
meeting.

Meetings and Attendance:
¢ In 2020, the EXCOM held a total of fifty-one (51p#atings.
e The presence of a majority of the members of theroittee shall constitute a quorum. The unanimous
vote of all the members present at the meetind blealequired to approve any act in all the mesting
of the committee, otherwise the proposal under idenstion shall be elevated to the Board for

approval.
Fifty-one meetings held for the year ended
December 31, 20:
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attende
Florido P. Casue Chairman, No-executive Directc 51 100.0(
Leorilo G. Corone Member,NED 51 100.0(
Christopher J. Nelsc Member,NED 51 100.0(
Sheila T. Pascud? Member NED 27 96.4:
Felix Enrico R Alfiler @ Non-voting member, Independent Direc 28 100.0(
Michael G. Ta Member,NED 4€ 90.2(
Vivienne K. Tar Member NED 51 100.0(
Florencia G. Tarriel® Non-voting member, Independent Direc 28 100.0(
Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso Member, Executive Director 94 96.08

() Shiela T. Pascual was elected as member of the uExec Committee effective June 23, 2020.
@ Felix Enrico R. Alfiler and Florencia G. Tarrielaeve elected as non-voting members of the Executive
Committee effective June 23, 2020.

Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)

Mandate:

e Assists the Board of Directors in overseeing trek gprofile and approving the risk management
framework of the Bank, its subsidiaries, and afféss.

Structure and membership:

* Consists of six (6) members: three (3) independadtthree (3) NEDs.
e Chaired by an independent director.
e Chairman of ROC is not the Chairperson of the Baardf any other Board committee.

Meetings and Attendance:

e In 2020, ROC held a total of thirty-one (31) megsn
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» The committee charter stipulates that regular mgstshall be held at least every month. Meetings ca
only be held if attended by a majority of the memsbéut the vote of the majority of the quorum is
required to approve any act in all the meetingthefcommittee.

Thirty-one meetings held for the year ended December(2L
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attende

Federiwo C. Pascu: Chairman, Independent Direc 31 100.0(
Felix Enrico R. Alfilel Member, Independent Dctor 31 100.0(¢
Florido P. Casue Member, NED 31 100.0(¢
Edgar A. Cu Member, Independent Direc 31 100.0(
Leonilo G. Coronel Member, NED 31 100.00
Vivienne K. Tan Member, NED 31 100.00

Trust Committee
Mandate;
* Oversees the fiduciary activities of the Bank anduees that these are conducted in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations, and prugesttices

Structure and membership:
e The committee consists of six (6) members: oneif@ipendent director, three (3) non-executive
directors, one (1) executive director, and the Chiast Officer.
* No member of the BACC is concurrently designated agember of the Trust Committee.

Meetings and Attendance:
¢ In 2020, the Trust Committee held a total of twe]¥/2) meetings.

As stipulated in its charter, the committee shadkirat least once every quarter. The presencenafjarity of
the members of the committee less one member ahadititute a quorum; but the vote of the majorityhe
quorum which in no case is less than two (2) mesitserequired to approve any act in all the mestimigthe
committee.

Twelve meetings held for the year ended
December 31, 20:
Name Role No. of meetings % Present
attended
Christopher J. Nelson (’\igasrman, 12 100.00
Federico C. Pascual Member, Independent Director 12 100.00
Sheila T. Pascudy Member, NED 5 83.33
Vivienne K. Tan Member, NED 11 91.67
Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso Ex—officio, Executive Direct 12 100.00
Joy Jasmin R. Santos Ex—officio, Chief Trust Office 12 100.00

(M Shiela T. Pascual was elected as member of the Tarmmittee effective June 23, 2020.
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As the highest-ranking officer in the organizatidhe President and CEO is primarily accountableht®
Board of Directors in championing the desired cartéund behavior and promoting the long-term intsre$
the Bank. He is supported by the Chief of Staff.

The Management Committee (MANCOM) assists the Bezgiand CEO in the implementation of the overall
strategy and oversees the management and affattseoBank. MANCOM ensures that the activities and
operations are consistent with the defined stratebjectives, risk strategy, and policies as apgdoby the
Board.

The Chief Legal Counsel handles all legal mattars @ases filed for or against the Bank and rendgirsions
and advice on questions of law. He plays a sigaifiand indispensable role in the management af kesk.
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The Chief Compliance Officer (CCO), on the othendhaoversees the design of an appropriate comgianc
system, promotes its effective implementation, auftiresses breaches that may arise. He liaises with
government regulatory bodies regarding relevantgimmce matters.

Meanwhile, the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) oversees tisk management function and proposes enhancement
to internal processes to ensure that the Bankfasiructure, systems, and processes are robustffautive to
fully support strategic objectives and risk-takiagtivities. He is also the Bank’s Data Protectioffic®r
(DPO) tasked to monitor compliance with the Datiwd®ry Act or Republic Act No. 10173, its implemegi
rules and regulations, issuances by the Natioriga&r Commission, and other applicable laws anditjzd.

The Chief Audit Executive (CAE) develops and marsagebroad and comprehensive program of internal
auditing covering the Bank, its subsidiaries, amdreeas businesses to provide the Board with inbkye
assessment on key organizational and proceduratot®enThe CAE also ensures that risk management
systems are adequate, effective, and complied with.

The Chief Information Security Officer (CISO), wheports directly to the ROC, plays a key role iayiding
leadership and support for information securityv@d as balancing business and security requiresnérite
CISO is also responsible for ensuring that inforarasecurity risks are within acceptable levels.

The complete background and qualifications of tieeniners of the MANCOM can be found on the Profiles o
the Management Committee.

COMPLIANCE

The Bank believes that a sound and effective canpé regime is the cornerstone of PNB'’s strength an
market presence, backed by over a century of giabitd excellence. PNB adheres to the valuestefjity,
ethics, and good governance in the conduct of aginess and affairs, exercising prudence in agiah
decisions, and upholding transparency and accoilitydb our regulators.

The Global Compliance Group (GCG) is responsibletlie timely identification and mitigation of riskisat
may erode the franchise value of PNB, such as déksgal or regulatory sanctions, material finahédss, or
loss to reputation as a result of its failure tonpty with laws, rules, related self-regulatory argation
standards, and codes of conduct applicable to PNpBesations. Compliance risk management is an riateg
part of the Bank’s culture and risk governance fraork.

GCG is headed by the CCO, who functionally reptotthhe BACC and administratively, to the Presidzmd
CEO. GCG is independent from the line of business ia composed of six (6) divisions: Financial Ggim
Risk, Regulatory Compliance Risk, Compliance Inaional, Compliance Assurance, Compliance
Operations, and Corporate Governance.

GCG, through the CCO, oversees the overall desigreffective implementation of the Compliance Pangy
which serves as the authoritative codification @®&s powers, mandate, authority, and formal statitisin

the organization. The program likewise fosters agivee to banking laws, rules and regulations and is
ultimately aimed to promote the safety and sounslioé®NB’s operations.

Financial Crime Risk

In an age when money laundering, bribery, and ption have become rampant, mitigation of financiahe
risks is crucial in preserving the integrity of tirgancial system.

The Financial Crime Risk Division encompasses {fgkey areas: anti-money laundering, counter testo
financing, sanctions, anti-bribery and corrupti@md tax transparency. Previously named “Global AML
Compliance”, the Division’s mandate was expandecoteer not only money laundering, but also othemf®

of financial crime. The Division ensures that gleoating units of the Bank comply with the requiess and
obligations set out in legislation, rules, reguast, banking guidance, global best practices; hatdadequate
systems and controls are in place to mitigate idleaf the Bank being used as a conduit to fatdifenancial
crime.
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Regulatory Compliance Risk

The Regulatory Compliance Risk Division ensureseagihce to banking laws, rules, regulations, and
guidelines issued and mandated by the Bank’s varicegulators. The Division observes ongoing
dissemination of regulatory issuances to variouts uhrough the appointed Compliance Officer Deatgs.

Compliance Assurance

The Compliance Assurance Division reviews and assethe level of compliance on applicable rules and
regulations of the business and examines the apptepess and reliability of existing processes and
adequacy of controls to mitigate risks that maylerthe franchise value of PNB.

Compliance Operations

The Compliance Operations Division is responsibde flata governance to ensure the accuracy and
authenticity of data handled by the GCG and itsaadatalytics to develop compliance risk insights and
intelligence on our clients and their transactions.

Compliance International

PNB boasts of having the most extensive internatiéootprint among Philippine banks with sevent®)(7
overseas branches and offices across Asia, Eunldpille East, and North America. The Compliance
International Division performs oversight and magragnt of overseas branches, offices, and subsditwi
ensure consistent compliance to local and hosttopuslevant laws, rules, and regulations and afignt
with the corporate standards established by thé&Ban

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Group (IAG), headed by the CA¥erforms the internal audit activities for the Bamlkich

is strictly guided by its conformance with the mational Standards for the Professional Practidaternal
Auditing (ISPPIA). IAG provides independent, objeetassurance and consulting services to evaluade a
improve the effectiveness of risk management, obrénd governance processes of the organization.

IAG reports directly to the BACC on a monthly badike BACC is responsible for the establishmentAas
and the appointment, re-appointment, and replacewiethe CAE and the Deputy Chief Audit Executive
(DCAE). The responsibility of the BACC shall inclidhe annual performance review of the CAE, acogpti
the resignation and/or dismissal subject to duegs®. It also reviews, evaluates and approves timeia
Audit Plan as well as the audit reports to the mixtbat the BACC Chairman may issue directivesht® t
Senior Management to develop and implement negessaective actions in a timely manner.

Likewise, the BACC has the sole authority to selegtluate, appoint, dismiss, and re-appoint therpal
auditor (subject to shareholder ratification) ahdlsapprove in advance all audit engagement fadsterms
and all audit-related, and tax compliance engagé&neith the external auditor.

The external auditor undertakes an independentt aafdihe Bank and provides an objective assurance
regarding the manner under which the financiabstaints are prepared and presented to the sharehditie
external auditor also ensures the establishment rmathtenance of an environment of good corporate
governance as reflected in the financial recordbsraports of the Bank.

The external auditor is expected to charge onlgaeable audit fees. In determining reasonable fies,
following factors may be considered: (a) expectedrh needed to complete the scope of work envidigme
the audit plan; (b) complexity of the activitiesdastructure of the Bank; (c) level of internal auaBsistance;
(d) level of fees being charged by other audit §riend (e) quality of audit services.

RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS
PNB'’s stockholders have the following rights aniitgges: (a) right to inspect corporate books eexbrds;
(b) right to information; (c) right to dividendsd)( opportunity to place agenda items prior to aaiber

questions during the stockholders’ meeting; andrifgt to vote on all matters that require theinsent or
approval.
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All stockholders, including minority stockholderisave the right to nominate and elect candidatesifer
Board of Directors. They also have the right to sgmand replace directors and vote on certain catp@cts
in accordance with the Revised Corporation Codeluding, but not limited to: amendment in the Bank’
articles of incorporation and by-laws, authorizataf additional shares, and transfer of all or safugally all
assets.

The rights and responsibilities of stockholdersdiseussed in detail in the Corporate Governanceudband
by-laws, accessible through PNB’s website.

Stockholders’ Meeting

PNB'’s stockholders are the highest authority in Bamk’'s governance structure. The stockholders’tmge
serves as an avenue to make decisions based ondfests of the Bank in a fair and transparentmean

The stockholders’ meeting consists of the annwatk$tolders’ meeting held once a year and speciatings
may be held as needed.

Pursuant to the Bank’s by-laws, the annual meaiifrifpe stockholders shall be held at the princgiite of
the Bank or any other place within Metro Manilaragy be determined by the majority of the Boardhmn
last Tuesday of April of each year unless suchidaylegal holiday, in which case, the meeting Isbalheld
on the following business day.

Special meetings may be called by the Chairper§dimeoBoard, by the President and CEO, by majaitihe
Board, or on the demand, in writing, of the stodklees who own majority of the voting stock.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic and the implemdéntaof Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ), the
Annual Stockholders' Meeting was held virtuallyame 23, 2020.

Before the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

On January 24, 2020, the Board of Directors apptdhe holding of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting o
April 28, 2020. The Notice of the Annual StockhokleMeeting was disclosed to the PSE Edge on theesa
day. Due, however, to COVID-19 and the quarantasdrictions put in place by the Philippine governine
on March 27, 2020, the Board of Directors approthed postponement of the Annual Stockholders’ Megtin
to June 23, 2020. The Notice of the postponed AnStackholders’ Meeting was disclosed to the PSBeEd
on March 27, 2020, approximately three (3) monttierpgo the date of the meeting. The Notice wa® als
published, in print and online format, from June2D20 to June 2, 2020 in The Philippine Star and in
BusinessWorld, and from June 7, 2020 to June 130 20 The Manila Bulletin, The Philippine Star, and
BusinessWorld.

The Notice of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting ahd Information Statement distributed to the Bank'’s
stockholders states the date, time, and place efingg the rationale and explanation for each immthe
agenda that requires shareholders’ approval, vapirggedures, the profiles of the directors seekiag
election, and the external auditor seeking reagpwnt. Proxy documents were made easily availablthe
written notice.

During the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

The Bank conducted its last Annual Stockholders’ ety (ASM) via remote communication and
implemented electronic voting in absentia to previtle Directors, Senior Management, stockholderd, a
other stakeholders a safer mode of attendance antidipation in the ASM and to comply with the Resil
Corporation Code of the Philippines and SEC Memauam Circular No. 6, Series of 2020.

All members of the Board, the Chairperson of thafipthe President and CEO, the Chairman of the BAC
the CCO, the Investor Relations Officer, repreddraa of the external auditors, and other key effic
attended the virtual ASM.

The Chairperson of the Board formally opened th202A@SM. The Corporate Secretary certified the exise
of a quorum for a valid transaction of busineshatmeeting.
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Stockholders voting in absentia and through prooded on the following matters: (a) approval of thimutes

of stockholders’ meetings held in the previous y€hj approval of the Annual Report and the Audited
Financial Statements; (c) approval of the amendetabs; (d) election of directors; and (e) appoiathof
the external auditor. All legal acts, resolutiomsl oroceedings of the Board, including approvalsR#Ts
endorsed by the BORC, were also ratified by thel$tolders at last year's ASM.

A number of questions of stockholders sent priath®d ASM were addressed and answered during lastsye
ASM. Questions that were sent prior to last ye&%M but were not addressed during the meeting were
answered by way of electronic mail in reply to #sking stockholder.

The Bank has likewise engaged Roxas delos ReyeselLRosario & Gonzales Law Offices, the Bank’s
external counsel, to assist in the validation aixps and votes cast for the matters presentedpiproval of
the stockholders at last year's ASM.

After the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

The minutes of last year's ASM was uploaded onBaek’s website on the same day as the ASM by tke ne
calendar day. The minutes contain the voting resaottiuding approving, dissenting, and abstainiotes for
all resolutions/each agenda item, questions rdigeshareholders, responses from the Board andeodfiand
attendance of the Board members and key officers.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
PNB Website

The official website of PNB serves as an avenuee&ezh out to clients, investors, shareholders,vamigbus
stakeholder groups. As such, the Bank aspiresam@te transparency and open communication to thégu
by ensuring timely and accurate disclosure of @ak\and material information including financistsments
and reports, materials provided in briefings tolgsta and media (i.e., investor presentation materand
briefing notes), downloadable Annual Report, Notiged Minutes of the ASM, and the company’s
constitution (Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

Annual and Quarterly Reports

The Bank provides complete and accurate informatiofits operations and affairs regularly. The ahiauna
quarterly reports are the primary disclosure meigmas used by the Bank to convey its financial pennce

in a comprehensive, accurate, reliable, and timayner. The reports provide a fair and completaupgcof
PNB’s financial condition and results of busineggmtions. Management's statement of responsibility
regarding the company’s financial statements aedfair and truthful preparation thereof is includadhe
Bank’s Annual Report.

The reports disclosed are likewise in accordantke thie reportorial requirements of the SEC and PSE.

Press Releases and Media Briefings

PNB embraces print, broadcast and online medieel@syant communication channels due to its extensive
reach and accessibility. The Management regulamtyages with various journalists and media outlets t
discuss the Bank's views, programs and effortscé&Sithe pandemic, the press engagements were done
through teleconferences and online discussions. ciimversation likewise focused on how COVID-19 is
changing the business of banking and how bankerpraparing and pivoting towards new opportunities.

Investor Relations

Investor relations enables the Bank to maintairiatghold in the financial market, while we stamdabtain
capital for the effective conduct of our businefhe Bank has made a conscious effort in deepening i
engagement with stockholders, investors, analgsid the media.

PNB has implemented its Investor Relations Progmsith the objective of promoting investors’ and
stockholders’ awareness and name recognition thrgagticipation in domestic and international coefees
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sponsored by fund managers. This program is alsigued to effectively address concerns/ issues of
stockholders and investors that could materialigcifthne Bank’s reputation, operations, and vighili

The Investor Relations Program is anchored on t{8emain principles:

e Accuracy and Timeliness: The Bank is committed to provide analysts, cregling agencies, investors,
and shareholders with correct and up-to-date inddion on developments in the Bank;

« Transparency: The Bank is committed to disclose relevant infation to investors and stockholders in
accordance with the prescribed standard of disobosy regulatory agencies; and

¢ Consistency and Impartiality: The Bank is committed to prepare the same, uatiagormation and to
make said information accessible to all intereséedlysts, credit rating agencies, investors, and
existing shareholders through various modes of comication.

The contact information of the Investor Relatiorffid@r is available at the PNB website.

Date of Analysts’ and

Investors’ Briefing Key Discussion Points / Subject

Virtual Analysts’ Briefing on the Companies’ Ninedvith Financial

November 13, 2020
Results

In 2020, PNB also actively participated in varioigual investor events and conferences sponsoked b
investment bank and financial services companigh wiscussions focused on banking amid COVID-19
pandemic, PNB’s outlook on growth and asset qualityerall strategy amid the developing economic
environment, PNB’s first half 2020 operating resuecond half 2020 outlook and strategy headitg in
2021.

GOVERNANCE POLICIES AND PRACTICES
Corporate Governance Manual

The Corporate Governance Manual institutionalinesgrinciples of good corporate governance in PNi
Corporate Governance Division regularly conductgiew® and evaluation of the Manual to ensure its
continuing suitability, adequacy, and effectiveness

The Manual clearly defines the roles, responsiédiitand accountabilities of the Board of Directoogether
with the types of decisions requiring its approvide Manual is publicly disclosed and accessibieugh the
Bank’s website.

Corporate Governance Confirmation Statement

The Bank adopts a policy of full compliance witletG@ode of Corporate Governance. As of December 31,
2020, the Bank has substantially complied with s@dmmendations of the Code of Corporate Governance
for Publicly Listed Companies, except for the fallog:

1) Thirty percent (30%) public float requirement tari@ase liquidity in the market; and
2) Disclosure of director remuneration and executwapensation on an individual basis.

The details of the Bank’'s compliance with the CadeCorporate Governance and the explanation for the
abovementioned items can be found in its Integratecual Corporate Governance Report, publishedhen t
PNB website.

Moreover, the Bank has substantially complied whid provision and requirements set forth in thepOoate
Governance Manual and there were no reported g&gnif deviations from what is expected from its
Directors, Board Advisors, officers, and employees.

Code of Ethics for Directors
The Code of Ethics for Directors serves as a gafd&inciples designed to enable the Board in ez&rg its
powers, duties, and responsibilities in accordamitle fit and proper standards. This establishestiremum

standards of conduct expected of all directorsséah, the Code shall be read in conjunction withBlank'’s
Corporate Governance Manual, articles of incorponabylaws, and internal policies and procedures.
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The provisions of the Code shall apply to all memsbef the Board, whether executive, non-executive o
independent, of PNB. All members of the Board afqeeeted to observe and uphold the principles setrou
the Code.

Code of Conduct for Employees

The Code of Conduct for Employees is designed ésg@ibe a moral code for employees which would not
only instill discipline but also yield higher prodivity at the workplace and enhance and safegtaed
corporate image of the Bank. The provisions of @ade apply to all employees including its overseas
branches and offices and PNB’s domestic and forgigpsidiaries.

Each employee, senior officer, or director is fah@d with a copy of the Bank's Code of Conduct and/
Code of Ethics. Moreover, they can access the @udegh the Bank’s intranet.

Each individual accomplishes an AcknowledgementeiRe¢certifying therein that he has been furnistwitth
a copy of the Code; that he has fully read and rstded the provisions embodied in the Code; and hika
promises to abide with the rules and regulatiorthefCode.

Any failure to abide with the provisions of the @od reported by the immediate supervisor and/adHzf
Office concerned to the Human Resource Group ar@oporate Governance and Sustainability Committee.
A designated committee may subsequently evaluaedhort to determine if any sanction or discipina
action should be taken against the erring employetrector.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

It is the responsibility of all directors, senidficers, and employees to report suspected or hot@irrence
of fraud and/or violation of any law, rule, policgnd misconduct, in accordance with the Bank’s
Whistleblower Policy.

PNB encourages all Philnabankers to speak up. Uthdenew Whistleblower policy adopted in September
2020, a whistleblower may be an employee of thekBama third party who discloses, in good faithy an
illegal, unethical, or improper behaviors or preet, and misconduct in the Bank. He/she can report
suspected or actual commission of theft, fraudsugtion, among others to any of the members ottécal
Standards Committee (ESC), President and CEO, GIXE, or CLC; or via the dedicated whistleblower
hotline and electronic mail which are managed leyE8C Secretariat.

Whistleblowers are protected from retaliation byumng that his or her identity is kept in stricinéidence.
Anyone who retaliates against the whistleblowesubject to disciplinary action, including the padgy of
termination or dismissal from the Bank service.

The whistleblower may report verbally or in writtdarm any act of harassment, bullying, or adverse
personnel action experienced to any of the membethe ESC and the senior officers, as stated above

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In line with the Bank’s commitment to ensure thasiness dealings are conducted with the highest kv
integrity and professionalism, employees are pitddbfrom engaging in any form of bribery such be t
following:

» Giving/offering pecuniary benefits to external pestwith the intention to influence the other paity
commit a violation for personal and/or businessaatizge; and

» Acceptance/receiving of pecuniary benefits fronerds, suppliers, service providers in order tolitaté
the processing or approval of transactions or seragreements with the Bank despite deficiencycand/
non-compliance with the standard requirements aadeglures.

Employees who have knowledge of any form of irragitansactions or corrupt practices being entered
by an office or an employee under the name of #ekBnust report the same through the offices itiedtin
the Bank’s Whistleblower Policy.
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Consumer Welfare

Embedding consumer protection practices acros®ii@nization is at the forefront of the Bank’s cungte
responsibility—from the Board of Directors who apges the policies and conducts oversight in the
implementation of Bank’s Consumer Protection Risknélgement System (CPRMS) to the Management
Committee who ensures that all consumer protegtiantices are aligned with the approved policied sk
management system and is consistently adhered eldyant units.

Consumers have the right to be informed of the fitsnas well as the risks involved regarding thedurcts
and services they availed from the Bank. Throughbatbanking relationship, the following standaads
conduct are observed: (a) disclosure and transparén) protection of client information, (c) fdaiteatment,
(d) effective recourse, and (e) financial awarereskeducation.

Consumer assistance mechanisms are made avaiaeidus forms: face-to-face support from PNB Bfan
personnel; account officers and relationship marggeustomer care hotlines; and electronic or digit
channels. Each inquiry, request and/or complaintaégknowledged and processed within the standard
turnaround time. Complaint management process 98 alailable, a cross-functional activity involving
multiple offices, which provide priority assistaniceresolving customer concerns.

In 2020, the Bank strengthened the implementatf@oosumer protection policies with the revised Saner
Protection Policy and Implementing Guidelines afidh® Enhanced Customer Relationship Management
System (ECRM) (i.e., workflow manager and loggiagltfor customer concerns) with the revised Guiddi
on the Recording, Monitoring, and Addressing Custor@oncerns using the ECRM System and the
submission of the BSP-Supervised Financial Institg Consolidated Complaints Report (BCCR) to BSP.

PNB aims to be the financial partner of consumertheir journey to financial health and wealth. Bank is
committed to equip consumers with the informatiord @ools they need to make wise financial decisions
towards achieving their goals.

Creditors’ Rights

PNB takes pride in taking an active role in safedumy the rights of its creditors. The Bank is coitted to
honoring its contractual financial obligations aglenced by good credit standing. Since deposititpls one
of the Bank’s principal banking activities, spegiaémium is placed on the protection of depositans serve
as our main creditors. The Bank recognizes thalittnes have the right to safeguard their transastiwith the
Bank and be heard though appropriate channels tiggrescalate feedback and concerns.

The Bank provides its depositors with ready actessformation that accurately represents the fumelatal
benefits and risks, as well as the terms and donditof a financial product or service. MoreoveXBis one
with the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporati®D(C) in promoting public confidence and stabilitythe
economy. As such, the Bank advertises PDIC’s dégnsurance protection in appropriate and accurate
manner by including the official PDIC Insurancet&taent (Deposits are insured by PDIC up-to P500p@00
depositor) in general advertisements of the Barkadvertisements relating to deposit products andices
appearing in print ads, TV, official website, artier forms of marketing communications.

As a matter of practice, PNB respects and uphdidsrights of its creditors by observing fair andthful
disclosure of financial and operating results whedlable them to evaluate and assess the Bank@ripenfice
and credit standing. The annual and quarterly ts@oe the primary disclosure mechanisms usedeéBamk
to convey its financial performance in a comprehensaccurate, reliable, and timely manner. Theorep
provide a fair and complete picture of the Bankisafcial condition and results of business openatio

Vendor and Supplier Selection

PNB works for the steadfast development and enrctinof its partnership with a broad spectrum of
stakeholders. The Bank's reputation as a leadingnfiial institution cannot be sustained without the
unwavering support of its partners: suppliers, weadand third-party service providers.

The Bank has developed its Outsourcing and Vendandgement Policy consistent with existing statytory
regulatory, and supervisory requirements. Thisgyofiets out the framework for engaging with supplie
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along with the responsibilities of the Board of &itors and Management Committee in the review and
evaluation of all new and existing outsourcing agement and vendor relationships.

A dedicated vendor relationship manager, who algtibeiilds and maintains commercial relationshiphwit
vendors and service providers, has been appoimtegh¢h business unit. PNB employs a comprehensive
onboarding process which encompasses risk assesselaborate due diligence procedures, contract
structuring and review, and continuous monitorimgl aversight. Moreover, appropriate committees have
been organized for the effective management ofioglships with third parties.

As part of continuous improvement, the roles, respilities and output of dedicated vendor relasizip
managers (VRM) appointed in each business unitrangitored and assessed regularly. New VRMs were als
appointed, trainings and walkthrough were also ootet for Bank-wide awareness when it comes to @end
and supplier selection and management.

As with any aspect of the Bank’s business, PNBebek that continuous monitoring and appraisal of
performance is of paramount importance to evaltlaeoverall effectiveness of the vendor relatiopsimd

the consistency of the relationship with the Bankisategic goals. Mechanisms are in place for the
development of relevant performance metrics, vepeéoiormance management, and competency evaluation.

Selection Process for Senior Management

Employees are PNB’s key asset and we are consistenr efforts to ensure a steady pool of qualifead
competent talents who will sustain our leadershighe industry. Our Management team is composedpf
tier professionals who are well-accomplished inrthespective fields.

Before a senior officer (with rank of Vice Presitieamd up) is appointed, suitable candidates anetifitks
from various sources. Interviews will then be coctéd by the recommending Group/Sector Head, Human
Resource Group Head, President and CEO, and at@irgfcthe Bank to determine the overall qualifioatof

the candidates based on the factors for selectiesepted.

Once a candidate is selected, the approval of tierdBof Directors, as endorsed by the Presidenttiaad
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committdlebes sought.

Succession Management

The Succession Management Program is an evolviogeps of strategically and systematically idemtidyi
assessing, and developing talents for future afitioles to ensure consistent and effective orgdiomal
performance. This program ensures the availabitify talents who have the potential and required
competencies and are ready to assume vacant pesa®the need arises, due to organizational eiggn
particularly for key management positions.

A Talent Board consisting of senior officers hasibereated to monitor and review the success aogrgss
of the program. It renders decisions on nominatems acceptance of talents in the Talent Pool.prbeess
involves the following steps:

(a) Identification of key management positions;

(b) Nomination of Candidates — based on results andpsBormance, competencies, and potential, subject
to the initial evaluation of the Talent Board. Tiespective Sector or Group Head nominates possible
candidates who may be from within or outside ofrthespective Group/Sector subject to the accegtanc
of the concerned officer-candidate prior to protegss

(c) Conduct of Talent Screening — the process of etialyaand assessing the shortlisted nominees’
competencies through online assessment, 360-déegdback survey, and interviews with the members
of the Talent Board, if necessary. Those who gualifsed on the evaluation of the Talent Board il
recommended for inclusion in the Executive TaleadlPsubject to the approval of the President and
CEO;

(d) Learning and Development — to address the developmeeds of each talent, an Individual
Development Plan (IDP) consisting of on-the-jobirtireg, interactional development programs, and
classroom training shall be created by the Seat@Broup Head and/or designated mentor. For a more
objective and in-depth assessment of the talewtspetencies, he/she may be required to train in the
Assessment and Development Center. The trainingtissmade an integral part of the IDP.
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(e) Talent's Progress Review — the progress of thatéemonitored and evaluated.

() Engagement — strategies are employed to sustairdeékied level of performance as well as the
employee’s commitment to the program.

(g) Placement — the talent review process and theifepamd development programs continue until thelnee
or opportunity arises for the talent to assume @g/dkitical position within the organization.

In—House and External Training Program for Senior Management

People development remains a priority of PNB. Thenidn Resource Group, through its Institute for Bagk
Excellence (IBE), sees to it that employees areilipd to sustain the Bank’s overall competitivesiés a
rapidly changing financial environment. The pasaryenay have posed a challenge to the learning and
development of employees, with face-to-face andsttaom sessions put to a halt. However, this didiater

IBE as it shifted its gears and went online in¢baduct of its year-round training programs.

Much of what were introduced in 2020 were Virtuaktfuctor-Led Trainings (VILT), which focused on
topics that will enable senior management to cojle and thrive in the daily business requiremembédathe
new normal.

A roster of internal training programs offered imbd mental health awareness and various topigesitt to
adapting to the new normal such as telecommutiramyaming virtual teams and meetings, digital selling
customer care. Training programs on informatioruggg anti-money laundering and internal contnoksre
also delivered.

External trainings covered remote audit, accountiogsiderations and financial crime compliance athil
pandemic, among others. Since the shift to digitzahas been accelerated this year, courses trat related
to information technology were also at the forefr@uch as cloud security, information securityd aeveral
software solutions.

Remuneration Policy

PNB aims to sustain a strong, performance-condusmivéronment that would attract, motivate, andirethe
best talents. For this purpose, the Bank main@iRemuneration Policy that commensurately compesset
officers for high levels of performance. Such pplcomplements the Bank’s efforts to hire and deyéle
best talents through its competitive recruitmewppam and continuing learning programs.

The PNB Remuneration Policy provides a sustainebiepensation structure and fringe benefits progiam
directors and officers. The policy allows the Bankbe competitive with industry counterparts. kendifies
basic compensation, incentives, recognition, ameards for those who meet their performance targats
goals.

Officers’ Compensation and Benefits

The compensation package for officers consists afietary and non-monetary benefits, fringe beneditsl
long-term schemes such as the following:

(&) Monetary emoluments consist of monthly compensatiolaranteed bonuses equivalent to four monthly
basic salary, allowances for business-related esgerofficial travel, annual clothing allowancenaal
rice subsidy and other monetary allowances, anddawpon reaching service milestones of at least ten
(10) years and every five (5) years thereafter; and

(b) Non-monetary benefits consist of healthcare plartife officer and two of his or her qualified primpa
dependents, group life insurance, group accidesurance, leave privileges, car plan, and loanifisil
such as general- purpose loan, motor vehicle laat housing loan.

Performance-based Remuneration

PNB designed its compensation and benefits paclkaga competitive tool to attract and retain highly
qualified individuals who will support the Bank’mplementation of its business directions and taeaeh
business goals. Hence, provisions of the compemsatnd benefits policies show the clear linkagehwit
employee contributions which are measured througbalanced scorecard approach in its performance
management system. Senior executives and exedlitieetor who are unable to meet their targets becom
ineligible to certain benefits and/or incentive gmams such as the Car Plan benefit, Employee Lcars,

65



performance bonus to name a few. The same is druthdése who get involved in administrative caséens
certain benefits are temporarily withheld in caseadministrative sanction is imposed. In case simissal,
benefits are forfeited and taken back includingrttlimited to the Car Plan benefit, the guarathteenuses
equivalent to a three—month salary and the CeraéRINB shares for the remaining years.

Retirement

PNB has a retirement plan for its employees thaviges funds for the payment of separation benddits

employees who are eligible under the Bank’s RetietniPlan, including cases of disability or deathlevbn
service.

There are three modes of retirement:

(&) Normal Retirement: an employee shall be compulsorily retired fromviee and shall be entitled to
receive the benefits under the Plan upon reachiig &0) years of age or upon completing thirtyefi
(35) years of service, whichever comes first;

(b) Early Retirement: with the consent of the Bank, an employee who maisyet reached the normal
retirement requirement may opt to avail of the yearl optional retirement benefits under the Plaorup
reaching (i) fifty five (55) years of age and reridg at least ten (10) years of continuous serviceji)
completing at least eleven (11) years of serviod; a

(c) Late Retirement: Any employee may offer his or her service to Bank beyond the normal retirement
date, but not beyond sixty five (65) years of aBach retirement, however, shall be subject to the
approval of the Bank on a case-to-case basis. Bretowho intend to resign from service but do not
meet the prescribed eligibility requirements arearditled to any separation pay.
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UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE ANNUAL REPORT

The Registrant undertakes to provide without chargeto each stockholder a copy of the Bank’s Annual
Report or SEC Form 17-A upon written request to theBank addressed to:

The Corporate Secretary
Philippine National Bank
9/F, PNB Financial Center
President Diosdado Macapagal Blvd.
Pasay City, Metro Manila

SIGNATURES

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my kiealge and belief, | certify that the informatiort garth in
this report is true, complete and correct. Thiores signed in Pasay City on April 15, 2021.

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK
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AGENDA

DETAILS AND RATIONALE

Call to Order. The Chairman, Ms. Florencia G. Tarriela, will fally open the 2021 Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting of the Philippine NationaliBg“PNB”, the “Bank”).

Secretary’s Proof of Notice and Quorum The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Ruth Pamela Eghah will
certify that the Notice has been duly published aratle available to stockholders of record as ofdilar
29, 2021 pursuant to the existing regulations efS$ecurities and Exchange Commission. Thereaftey, A
Tanghal will certify as to the existence of a quorfor the valid transaction of business at the Aainu
Stockholders’ Meeting.

Approval of the Minutes of the 2020 Annual Stockhalers’ Meeting held on June 23, 2020The
Minutes of the 2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meetingtlodé Bank will be presented to the stockholders for
approval. Copies of the said Minutes was uploadedhe Bank’s website on June 23, 2020 and may be
accessed dtttps://pnb-website.s3-ap-southeast-1.amazonawfuptwads/docs/2020 ASM_Minutes.pdf

Report of the President on the Results of Operatia for the Year 2020.The President, Mr. Jose
Arnulfo A. Veloso, will present to the stockholdetre highlights of the Bank’s performance for theay
2020.

Approval of the 2020 Annual Report. The 2020 PNB Annual Report, as well as the AudRathncial
Statements (AFS) as of December 31, 2020, willlesgnted to the stockholders for approval. A cofpy
the AFS is incorporated in the Definitive InformaatiStatement.

Ratification of All Legal Acts, Resolutions and Praeedings of the Board of Directors and Corporate
Officers since the 2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meeton The acts, resolutions and proceedings of the
Board of Directors and Corporate Officers since 2080 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, most of which
relate to regular banking transactions and creditens which the Board of Directors, either by lemby
regulations issued by the BSP, is required to ponuwill be presented to the stockholders for apak
and ratification.

Election of Directors. The Corporate Secretary will present to the stolddrs the nominees for election
as members of the PNB Board of Directors. The f@®fof the nominees are included in the Information
Statement.

Appointment of External Auditor. The appointment of SGV & Co. as the Bank’s extemalitor for the
year 2021 will be presented to the stockholdersdéarfirmation and ratification.

Other Matters. Other matters arising subsequent to the sendingfotlte Notice of the Meeting and the
Agenda, and as may be relevant to the Annual Stddkhs’ Meeting, may be presented to the stockhislde
for consideration.

Adjournment. Upon consideration of all matters included in thgeAda, the Chairman shall declare the
meeting adjourned.
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK is not soliciting proxies and a stockholder is NOT required to submit a priax
PNB. This Proxy form is being provided only foetbonvenience, and upon request, of a stockholder.

PROXY

The undersigned stockholder BHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK
appoint with emailresdd

hereto.

Any other proxy or proxies issued by me/us/it arbefore this date is/are hereby considered revaketdeclared null

and void and will have no effect whatsoever.

(“PNB”) does hereby nominate, constitute and
as my/our/itsyprtax
represent me/us/it and vote all shares registereayiour/its name in the books of PNB at the Anrfstaickholders’ Meeting
scheduled on April 27, 2021. I/we hereby confirnd aatify any and all acts lawfully done by my/ots/proxy pursuant

Agains

Abstair

1. Approval of the Minutes of the 2020 Annual Stoclkdet’ Meeting
held onJune 23, 20z

O

O

2. Approval of the 2020 Annual Report

O

O

Ratification of All Legal Acts, Resolutions and Peedings of the
Board of Directors and Corporate Officers since 2020 Annual
Stockholders’ Meetin

ool ald

O

O

4. Appointment of External Auditor
(SGV & Co.

O

O

O

VOTE FOF

NUMBER OF VOTE¢

5. Election of Directors

Florido P. Casuela

Leonilo G. Coronel

Edgar A. Cua (Independent)

Estelito P. Mendoza

Federico C. Pascual (Independent)

Sheila T. Pascual
Wilfrido E. Sanchez (Independent)

Carmen K. Tan
Lucio C. Tan

Lucio C. Tan lll
Michael G. Tan
Vivienne K. Tan

Jose Arnulfo A. Veloso

Angelito M. Villanueva (Independent)

Domingo H. Yap (Independent)

O 0OO0O0O0D0 000 OO0 OO oo

Name of Stockholder :
Signature :

Contact Number

Email Address :

Date :

69




A
:
J
>
J

lmii B & Fe E R
I&NEl] B H Wl B2
il 1 e LS
s 2. BT
1V Lot e Uloadl
“ 1)
77 v
/

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Item 1. Business
A. Business Development

The Philippine National Bank (“PNB” or the “Bank™he country’s first universal bank, is one of the
largest local private commercial banks in termsasdets, net loans and receivables, capital andsiiepo
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank has a distributietwork of 716 domestic branches and offices and
1,710 automated teller machines (ATM) in the Ppiligs. In addition, it has the widest internationa
footprint among Philippine banks spanning Asia, dpar, the Middle East and North America with its
overseas branches, representative offices, rero@teenters and subsidiaries.

In July 2016, PNB celebrated its Centennial Yeahwlie theme, “A Century of Excellence”, signifyiag
meaningful milestone for an institution that hassed generations of Filipinos here and abroad. dver
100 years, PNB stands proud as an institutionatfiky and security for many Filipinos. With itentury

of banking history and experience, PNB is poisedmove forward to becoming a more dynamic,
innovative and service-focused bank, providing iserexcellence to Filipinos all over the world.

The Bank was established as a government-ownedngamistitution on July 22, 1916. As an instrument
of economic development, the Bank led the industrgugh the years with its agricultural moderniaati
program and trade finance support for the countagiscultural exports, pioneering efforts in theebseas
Filipino Workers’ (OFW) remittance business, as|vea the introduction of many innovations such as
“Bank-on-Wheels”, computerized banking, ATM bankingobile money changing, domestic traveler's
checks, and electronic filing and payment systenidime taxpayers. PNB has the widest overseaceoff
network and one of the largest domestic branch erisvamong local banks.

On February 9, 2013, the Bank concluded its mengir Allied Banking Corporation (ABC) as approved
and confirmed by the Board of Directors (BOD) of End ABC on January 22 and January 23, 2013,
respectively. The respective stockholders of PNB &BC, representing at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock of both banks, approvedterms of the Plan of Merger of the two banks on
March 6, 2012.

To support the Bank’s efforts to diversify its fumgl sources to meet the financial needs of it1tdiePNB
offered Long-Term Negotiable Certificates of Timegdsit (LTNCDs), which extend the maturity profile
of the Bank’s liabilities as part of overall liailby management and to raise long-term funds foregan
corporate purposes. In October 2018, PNB receiliedapproval from the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(BSP) to issue up to P20.0 billion worth of LTNCDBn this regard, PNB issued the first tranche &f5
year LTNCDs totaling P8.2 billion at 5.75% per ammin February 2019. The original P3.0 billion
offering was upsized to meet the 2.7x oversubsoriprising from the strong demand from both redaid
institutional investors. On October 11, 2019, Ph#Bed the second tranche of LTNCDs totaling P4.6
billion which was double the announced issue sf2e200 billion.

As part of the Bank’s efforts to diversify its fund sources and support its strategy on safe, agige
growth, PNB also tapped the capital markets. [mil&018, PNB successfully issued in Singapore and
Hong Kong its 5-year Fixed Rate Senior Notes waittited States Dollars (USD) 300 million out of its
USD1 billion Medium Term Note (MTN) Program. Thisarked the first time that PNB tapped the
international bond market for medium term dollanding. Orders for the offering reached approxiryate
USD1.2 billion at its peak, equivalent to 4x ovdrscription. The high demand for the initial issue
underscored the international investors’ strongfidence in PNB. In May 2019, the PNB BOD approved
the increase in the amount of the Bank’s MTN Progta USD2 billion. The following month, PNB



issued USD750 million in 5.25-year Fixed Rate Semotes priced at 99.47% and carried a yield of
3.39% and a coupon of 3.28%. The transaction wassabscribed with an orderbook of over USD3.25
billion. The proceeds of the Notes were used ppett PNB’s loan expansion as the Bank took adepmnta
of the country’s sustained economic growth.

In April 2019, PNB acting through its Tokyo bransiccessfully closed and signed a USD250 million 3-
year syndicated term loan facility with a groupimtiernational and regional Japanese banks. Thétyaci
was launched originally at USD200 million and atteal total commitments of USD370 million at cloge o
syndication, representing an oversubscription afuat?2.7x with lending commitments received from 14
Japanese and international banks with operatiodapan. The last syndicated loan availed by PNBiwas
2015. The diversity of the syndicate of lenderasaffirmation of the growing international marlet’
appetite for assets from the Philippines. The ssxoé the transaction is a strong acknowledgmethef
capital market’s confidence in the credit strermjtthe Bank.

In May 2019, PNB listed on the Philippine DealingdéExchange Corp. its maiden offering for fixederat
Philippine Peso bonds, which reached P13.87 bjllemjuivalent to an oversubscription of almost 3x th
announced issue size of P5 billion.

In July 2019, the Bank successfully issued an@di276,625,172 common shares priced at P43.38 per
share from its stock rights offering. The net pexte from the offering amounted to P11.7 billion.
Proceeds from the offering were expected to enhBN®'s presence in emerging growth areas.

PNB fully integrated its wholly-owned thrift banklssidiary, PNB Savings Bank (PNBSB), into the Paren
Bank through acquisition of its assets and assumgif its liabilities in exchange for cash on Marth
2020. The BODs of PNB and PNBSB approved the iategr on September 28 and October 10, 2018,
respectively. PNB secured the Monetary Board apgrdor the integration last August 29, 2019.
Consequently, the 68 PNBSB branches were convarted®NB branches while the systems integration
was completed last June 7, 2020. With the integraPNB would be able to deliver a more efficient
banking experience and serve a wider customer bdske the customers of PNBSB would have access to
PNB's diverse portfolio of financial solutions. d&hconsumer lending business, previously operated
through PNBSB, would also benefit from PNB’s alilib efficiently raise low cost of funds. In Febry

23, 2021, the Philippine Securities and Exchange@izsion (SEC) approved, among others, the change
in name of PNBSB to Allied Integrated Holdings laad the change in PNBSB’s purpose from banking to
a holding company.

Amidst the challenging COVID-19 pandemic and vagydegree of community lockdowns in 2020, the
Bank set up a Command Center to oversee its opasatind ensure that PNB continues to run business-
as-usual providing uninterrupted financial servitesits customers as it adjusted to the new busines
environment. The Bank had a dedicated skeletal foor& to make sure that critical support functions
were not disrupted, and at the same time implendeate/ork-from-home arrangement for its employees
with non-critical functions, supported by a robdigfital infrastructure that allowed telecommuting.

To provide easy and convenient access to cashidarlients, PNB deployed its “Bank on Wheels” in
Metro Manila and some provinces where travel wasricded. Bank on Wheels are mobile ATMs that
allow customers to conveniently perform transadisach as cash withdrawal, cash deposit, bills paym
and fund transfer.  Furthermore, the Bank proviidedcustomers more options for cash withdrawal
through its partnership with RD Pawnshop, one efléading pawnshop chains in the country. PNBés th
provider of the point of sale (POS) network thdbwb bank customers to conveniently withdraw cash
from 100 select RD Pawnshop branches nationwide.addition, the Bank partnered with Ninja Van
Philippines to make it easier and safer for smatl anedium businesses across the country to receive
payments and manage cash flow during COVID-19 ayaid.

Even with the pandemic, PNB was still able to idtroe new products for its customers. In Januar®202
PNB launched the Ze-Lo Mastercard that allows oald#rs to enjoy the perks of a normal Mastercard
credit card but with zero annual fees and low edér Ze-Lo stands for “Zero Annual Fees and Low
Interest” representing the two main features ofdakl. In April 2020, PNB branches started offgrihe
new product of Allied Bankers Insurance Corp., HoRtetect 2000, a home insurance that covers PNB
depositors against loss of residence and contamgstal fire, lightning, earthquake, smoke, explosion
vehicle impact, and falling aircraft for a premiwhonly P2,000 a year or P5.50 daily. The Banl als
introduced an online remittance system, Xchanged fd% overseas Filipino workers.



PNB Capital and Investment Corp. was also activeapital market transactions despite the pandemic.
The subsidiary was appointed as lead underwrissye manager, and bookrunner for the initial public
offering of MerryMart Consumer Corp., a wholly-ovehsubsidiary of Injap Investments, Inc. It alsoealct

as the joint lead underwriter for Ayala Land’s ARHhc.’s initial public offering. Ayala Land’s ARH],

Inc. is the first real estate investment trustia Philippines.

In affirmation of the Bank’s well-managed operatipi?NB received awards from various organizations
and other international award-giving bodies. Oly B1, 2018, PNB was recognized by the Institute of
Corporate Directors (ICD) as among the top perfagrpublicly-listed companies that ranked high under
the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGSut @ the 245 companies assessed, PNB is
among the 21 publicly-listed companies that sc@®@g@oints and above. PNB was also among the top 5
the financial sector recognized for exemplary coap® governance practices. In June 2019, PNB was
recognized for the second straight year by the f@TCbeing one of the awardees of its ACGS Arrow for
2018.

As a clear demonstration of the Bank’s commitmandffering competitive financing structures to olie
while contributing to economic development and oratibuilding, PNB and its subsidiaries were
recognized internationally in January 2019 by Reset Triple A Country Awards 2018 with three
distinctions, viz: a) Best Syndicated Loan awartedNB and PNBSB for the Bloomberry Resorts and
Hotels’ P73.5 billion syndicated term loan facilify) Best Acquisition Financing awarded to PNB and
PNB Capital and Investment Corp. (PNB Capital)easler and lead arranger, respectively, for thekClar
Global Corporation’s USD690 million acquisition pot, and ¢) Most Innovative Deal awarded to PNB
Capital for being one of the lead underwriters badkrunners for Ayala Land’s P10.0 billion retadiruls.

PNB received two awards from the Asian Banking &dfice Retail Banking Awards 2017 i.e. “Digital
Banking Initiative of the Year” for the PNB Mobiganking App and “New Consumer Lending Product of
the Year” for the PNBSB Smart Salary Loan Prograbast July 12, 2018 PNBSB received again two
awards from the Asian Banking & Finance Retail BagkAwards, these are “Consumer Finance Product
of the Year - Philippines” for its Smart Personalabh with Double Coverage product and “Service
Innovation of the Year - Philippines” for its Smakuto Loan and Home Loan Plus (Value-added
Services). Last October 5, 2018, PNBSB’s SmartdPedsLoan once again won the Consumer Finance
Product of the Year, this time from the Asian BanRiilippine Country Awards 2018.

In December 2019, PNB was awarded by the Buredwoél Government Finance of the Department of
Finance for its timely and complete submissionhaf quarterly report on LGU indebtedness for thealfis
year 2018-2019. The Bank was cited for being angtqmartner of the government in ensuring the effiti
and responsible borrowing of local government units

With its proactive response amidst the Covid-19deamic, The Asian Banker awarded PNB with Best
Managed Bank and Best CEO during its annual Leaigeischievement Awards held last 15 October
2020. PNB was also named Best Bank for Corporaté&aSBesponsibility (CSR) in Asiamoney Best Bank
Award for 2020. The Bank bested other domestic emelrnational banks in the CSR category for
pioneering a number of initiatives focused on fitiahliteracy, sustainable environment and employee
engagement. In addition, PNB was recognized in iAsizey’s Leader for Women Survey 2020. Among
60 banks in Asia, PNB was one of the banks with highest percentage of women in the overall
workforce, reflecting the Bank’s culture of prowidi equal access to career advancement regardless of
gender. Likewise, PNB became the first universalkba the Philippines to be certified as genderagéqu
after receiving its Economic Dividends for Gendeyuhlity (EDGE) Certification from DOLE in June
2020.

B. Business Description

1.Product and Services
PNB, through its Head Office and 716 domestic bnasfoffices and 70 overseas branches,
representative offices, remittance centers andidiabigs, provides a full range of banking and ficizl

services to large corporate, middle-market, smadl medium enterprises (SMEs) and retail customers,
including OFWs, as well as to the Philippine Na#ibGovernment, national government agencies



(NGAs), local government units (LGUs) and Governtrewned and Controlled Corporations (GOCCs)
in the Philippines. PNB’s principal commercial bark activities include deposit-taking, lending,dea
financing, foreign exchange dealings, bills disdg) fund transfers, remittance servicing, asset
management, treasury operations, comprehensivesgnsces, retail banking and other related fimgnc
services. The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “@fpwffer a wide range of financial services
predominantly in the Philippines.

PNB’s banking activities are undertaken throughfthlewing groups within its organization, namely:

Retail Banking Sector

The Retail Banking Sector (RBS) principally focusesthe Bank’s deposit-taking activities by offeyin

a wide array of deposit products such as peso ate@nd its variants like current accounts, interes
bearing savings and time deposit accounts, and &Jigrdand other foreign currency accounts. The
sector also provides its broad customer base witaraetail products like credit cards, consumank
cash management solutions, remittance servicesopitned bank services. While the main purpose is the
generation of lower cost funding for the Bank’s igtions, RBS also concentrates on the cross-seifing
trust, fixed income and bancassurance productsisiirgg customers, and referrals of customers by
transforming its domestic and overseas branchilgligion channels into a sales-driven organization.

Cards Banking Solutions Group

The Cards Banking Solutions Group (CBSG) under RB&ides convenient, safe, and secure cashless
payment solutions in the form of credit, debit, gmdpaid card products catering to the Bank’s diger
retail and corporate/business clients with varyipgyment needs. CBSG is also responsible in
establishing partnerships with merchants for imestand online promotions as well as installment
programs to ensure that the cardholders get thénmuax benefits in using PNB cards.

Retail Lending Group

The Retail Lending Group (RLG) was created undeSRBmid-2019 to be the consumer lending arm of
the Bank upon the full integration of its wholly-oed thrift bank subsidiary, PNBSB, into the Bank in
March 2020. RLG is tasked to provide the Bank'®iteclients with home mortgage loans and car
financing through PNB’s domestic branch networkva#i as wholesale channels covering accredited car
dealers and real estate developers.

International Banking & Remittance Group

The International Banking & Remittance Group (IBR&yers the Bank’s overseas offices across Asia,
Middle East, North America and Europe. As part lod RBS, the group is responsible in providing
convenient and safe remittance services to OFWeelsas full banking services in selected jurisiics,
including overseas bills payment, deposit accopeining, corporate, credit and trade facilities.otlgh
IBRG, the Bank offers Own a Philippine Home LoarP{).), a financing facility for overseas Filipinos
and non-Filipinos for their real estate investmentthe Philippines. IBRG is also in charge of fiog
and maintaining partnerships with remittance agemfsirther extend the Bank’s scope and reachdo th
OFW market beyond its brick and mortar overseasesf

Institutional Banking Sector

The Institutional Banking Sector (IBS) is respoisilior the establishment, expansion and overall
management of banking relationships with large e clients and government entities under its
Corporate Banking Group (CBG) as well as middleketand SME customers through its Commercial
Banking Group (COMBG). In 2020, the Bank’'s Ecosgst®ivision and the Cash Management
Solutions Division were consolidated to form thetitutional Transaction Banking Group (ITBG) under
IBS aimed at capturing the entire value chains rodhar clients by offering them a comprehensive
network of tailor fit, end-to-end financial soluti®. Through ITBG, clients are provided with cash
management, innovative solutions, credit progranusteade products.

Global Banking and Markets Sector

The Global Banking and Markets Sector (GBMS) ovessthe management of the Bank’s liquidity and
regulatory reserves as well as the risk positiaomsnterest rates and foreign exchange arising filoen
daily inherent operations in deposit-taking anddleg, and from proprietary trading. Likewise, GBMS
provides a wide range of banking products and sesvio corporates, governments, financial instingi
and high net worth individuals. Its functions alswclude carrying forward the Bank’s wealth
management proposition, providing corporate anddhaidnarket clients with access to the financial



markets, and building partnerships with multinaséilsn financial institutions and non-bank financial
institutions by offering them banking solutionsatddress their needs and help attain their objextive

Trust Banking Group

The Trust Banking Group (TBG) provides a full rangfetrust, agency, and fiduciary products and
services designed to serve a broad spectrum ofahaggments. Its personal trust products and ssrvic
include personal management trust, investment neamegt, estate planning, guardianship, life
insurance trust, and escrow. Corporate trust sesviand products include corporate trusteeship,
securitization, portfolio management, administnataf employee benefit plans, pension and retirement
plans, and trust indenture services. Other fidyciservices include such roles as bond registrar,
collecting and paying agent, loan facility agersicrew agent, share transfer agent, and receiving.ba
PNB TBG manages ten Philippine Peso- and US dd#aeminated Unit Investment Trust Funds
(“UITESs"). These include money market funds, bondds, balanced funds, and equity funds.

2. Competition

In the Philippines, the Bank faces competitionlirita principal areas of business, from both Rigine
(private and government-owned) and foreign bankswall as finance companies, mutual funds and
investment banks. The competition that the Bankgdoom both domestic and foreign banks was in part
a result of the liberalization of the banking inttysvith the entry of foreign banks under Repul#ict
(R.A) 7721 in 1994 and R.A. 10641 in 2014, as wesl| the recent mergers and consolidations in the
banking industry. As of the latest available datarf the BSP, there were 46 universal and commercial
banks, of which 17 are private domestic banks, & government banks and 26 are branches or
subsidiaries of foreign bankSome competitor banks have greater financial ressymwider networks
and greater market share than PNB. Said bankséflsoa wider range of commercial banking services
and products; have larger lending limits; and simrbalance sheets than PNB. To maintain its market
position in the industry, the Bank offers diversedqucts and services, invests in technology, l@esa
on the synergies within the Lucio Tan Group of Camips and with its government customers, as well
as builds on relationships with the Bank’s othey kastomers. The Bank also faces competition in its
operations overseas. In particular, the Bank’sngfiheld in the remittance business in 17 countnies i
North America, Europe, the Middle East and Asidésng challenged by competitor banks and non-
banks. As of December 30, 2020, the Bank has aitiisbn network of 716 domestic branches and
offices and 1,710 ATMs nationwide. The Bank is ofi¢he largest local private commercial banks i th
Philippines in terms of consolidated total asse¢s$,loans and receivables, capital and depositsedsas
with regard to branch network. In addition, it the widest international footprint among Philippine
banks spanning Asia, Europe, the Middle East andthNé&merica with its overseas branches,
representative offices, remittance centers anddiabies.

3. Revenue Derived from Foreign Operations

The percentage contributions of the Group’s office#\sia, Canada and USA, United Kingdom and
Other European Union Countries to the Group’s raeefor the years 2020, 2019, 2018 are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Asia (excluding the Philippines)/ Middle East 2% 3% 3%
Canada and USA 1% 1% 1%
United Kingdom & Other European Union 0.4% 0.2% 0.3%

Countries

Please refer to Note 6 of the Audited Financiat&tents.

4. New Products and Services

The Bank launched the following products and sewia 2020:



a.

Auto Loan Calculator

The Auto Loan Calculator is a powerful tool thaveg the potential auto loan borrower the
information needed to assess their financial capdafore applying for a loan and submitting the
required documents. Accessible via the PNB webgitgmputes for the amount to borrow and the
estimated monthly payments.

Appraisal Fee Payment via Mobile/Internet Bankig

An online payment channel for potential PNB Homeahdorrowers registered in PNB Mobile
Banking to pay the Home Loan Appraisal Fee onlivetdad of personally visiting a PNB branch to
make payments

PNBayani

PNBayani is a centralized platform where PNB presidolutions to our OFWs banking needs as
well as their families and beneficiaries. A subtgecrof the PNB website, it was redesigned with the
customer experience in mind. Thus, this new Gldbiipino hub comes with an intuitive user
interface, seamless navigation and personalizetenbibased on location. PNB goes beyond just
showcasing its products and services as the hub @iralso promote financial literacy by providing
helpful tips and other engaging content to itstoisi.

PNB Ze-Lo Mastercard

The PNB Ze-Lo Mastercard, a credit card with zamoual fee, zero overlimit fee, and low finance
charge, was launched last February 2020. This aand to capture customers who want a basic
credit card that offers flexibility for their daiffjnances.

Mastercard Airport Experiences

The Mastercard Airport Experiences (MCAE) programaiseamless, integrated solution that drives
card usage and influence brand preference by ctingeffluent customers to the largest network of
airport lounges and collection of curated retaihirty, and spa offers. This program offers 1 free
access to over 1,000 airport lounges per year ltgraicipal PNB-PAL Mabuhay Miles World
Mastercard cardholders.

PNB Cart Mastercard

The PNB Cart Mastercard was launched in Januar.20% a virtual credit card which enables the
cardholders to transact online immediately as tteid details are sent securely via email.

Related Party Transactions
Please refer to Item 5(e) of the Information Stagein
Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Concesss and Royalty Agreements

The Bank’s operations are not dependent on anynisatdrademarks, copyrights, franchises,
concessions, and royalty agreements.

Government Approval of Principal Products or Servies

Generally, electronic banking (e-banking) produentsl services require BSP approval. New deposit
products require notification to the BSP. The Bdms complied with the aforementioned BSP

requirements.

Estimate of Amount Spent for Research and Developme Activities

The Bank provides adequate budget for the develapwfenew products and services which includes

hardware and system development, continuous educatid market research. Estimated amount spent
for 2020, 2019 and 2018 totaled P862.4 million, P82nillion and P582.2 million, respectively.



9. Number of Employees

The total employees of the Bank as of December2820 is 9,071, of which 4,691 are classified as
Bank officers and 4,380 as rank and file employbesken down as follows:

Total
Officers
Vice President and | 12¢€
Assistant Manager up to Senior Assistant Vice Eegt 4,568
Rank and Fil 4,38(
Total 9,071

The Bank shall continue to pursue selective andpgmive hiring strictly based on business
requirements. The Bank has embarked on a numbeitiatives to improve operational efficiency.

With regard to the Collective Bargaining Agreemd@BA), the Bank’s regular rank and file
employees are represented by a Union. Total uniemlpership is 3,463 out of 4,380 rank and file
employees or approximately 79% of the total rantt fille population. The CBA has been renewed for
a two (2)- year period from July 1, 2020 to June ZIP2.

The Bank has not suffered any strikes, and the iemant of the Bank considers its relations with its
employees and the Union as harmonious and mutbalheficial. Industrial Peace is continuously
being enjoyed by both Management and Organizedrnio

10. Risk Management

As a financial institution with various allied untikings with an international footprint, PNB coniés to
comply with an evolving and regulatory and legiskatframework in each of the jurisdictions in whitte
Bank operates. The nature and the impact of futin@nges in laws and regulations are not always
predictable. These changes have implications enwhy business is conducted and corresponding
potential impact to capital and liquidity.

Effective risk management is essential to consiséend sustainable performance for all of the Bank’s
stakeholders and is therefore a central part ofitiacial and operational management of the PN&u@r
PNB adds value to clients and therefore the comtisnin which it operates, generating returns for
stockholders by taking and managing risk.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bankagas enterprise-wide risks, with the objective of
maximizing risk-adjusted returns while remaininghini its risk appetite. The BOD of the Bank plays
pivotal role and has the ultimate responsibilitypemk governance through their focus on two factioas
will ultimately determine the success of the Bavik; (1) responsibility for the Bank’s strategicjettives;
and (2) assurance that such will be executed bicelas talents.

Strong independent oversight has been establishall evels within the Bank. The Bank's BOD has
delegated specific responsibilities to various Bo&ommittees, which are integral to PNB’s risk
governance framework and allow executive managentkerdugh management committees, to evaluate
the risks inherent in the business and to manage #ffectively.

There are eight (8) Board Committees:

. Board Audit & Compliance Committee (BACC)

. Board Information Technology Governance Commit&d GC)
. Board Oversight Related Party Transaction Comm({B€eRC)
. Board Strategy & Policy Committee (BSPC)

. Corporate Governance and Sustainability Commi@zeGov)

. Executive Committee (EXCOM)

. Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)

. Trust Committee (TrustCom

o~No U wWNBE



A sound, robust and effective Enterprise Risk Mamagnt (ERM) coupled with global best practices were
recognized as a necessity and are the prime raggiynsof the BOD and senior management. The

approach to risk is founded on strong corporateegmance practices that are intended to strengtien t

enterprise risk management of PNB, while positignthe Group to manage the changing regulatory
environment in an effective and efficient manner.

Approved by the Board in 2020, the Management Risknmittee (MRC) was created as a forum ensuring
that the Bank's Enterprise Risk Management Framkew&RMF) is operationalized and that Senior
Management has an enterprise-level view of all melteisks and that risk-mitigating actions properl
determined and effectively executed.

Mainly composed of the Bank’s Sector and Group hetdte MRC will be responsible for reviewing and
monitoring enterprise level risks and assessirigrasponses proposed or taken by the relevanovisier,
and for providing inputs to the ERMF process. Thenmittee shall periodically assess that the Bank'’s
risk appetite statements are aligned with the lmssirstrategy and the overall objectives.

The approach to managing risk is outlined in thenk@a ERMF which creates the context for setting
policies, standards, and establishing the rightctpras throughout the Group. It defines the risk
management processes and sets out the activitiels, and organizational structure to ensure nsdteri
risks are identified, measured, monitored and megag

PNB’s ERMF, with regular reviews and updates, feasexd the Bank well and has been resilient through
economic cycles. The organization has placed agtreliance on this risk governance framework dmed t
three lines-of-defense model, which are fundameiotd®NB’s aspiration to be world-class at managing
risk.

While the first line of defense in risk managemiég primarily on the Bank’s risk taking units aslivas
the Bank’s support units, the Risk Management Giisygrimarily responsible for the monitoring ofkis
management functions to ensure that a robust rigk#ed organization is maintained.

The risk management framework of the Bank is utidedirect oversight of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO
who reports directly to the ROC. The CRO is supgmbrby Division Heads with specialized risk
management functions to ensure that a robust argton is maintained. The Risk Management Group is
independent from the business lines and organiatm the following divisions: Credit Risk Division,
BASEL/ICAAP/Operational Risk Management DivisionaMet & ALM Division, Business Continuity
Management and Vendor Risk Monitoring Division, ®arivacy & Technology Risk Management
Division, Trust Risk Division, Business Intelligem& Warehouse Division, Model Validation Division
and Administrative & Support Department.

i
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Each division monitors the implementation of theqasses and procedures that support the policies fo
risk management applicable to the organizationsé&hmard approved policies clearly define the kimfds
risks to be managed, set forth the organizatiotrat®ire and provide appropriate training necessary
manage and control risks.

The Bank’s governance policies also provide for\thkdation, audits & compliance testing, to measur
the effectiveness and suitability of the risk masragnt structure. The Risk Management Group also
functions as the Secretariat to both the ROC aadMRC which meets monthly to discuss the immediate
previous month'’s total risk profile according te thnaterial risks defined by the Bank in its intémepital
adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) document.

Further, each risk division engages with all levelsthe organization among its business and support
groups. This ensures that the risk managementramitoring is embedded at the moment of origination

The risk management system and the directors'ririfer assessing its effectiveness are revisiteduo
annual basis and limit settings are discussed with business units and presented to the ROC for
endorsement for final BOD Approval.

In line with the integration of the BSP required\&P and risk management processes, PNB currently
monitors 10 Material Risks (3 for Pillar 1 and T Rillar 2). These material risks are as follows:

Pillar 1 Risks:

1. Credit Risk (includes Counterparty and Country Bjsk
2. Market Risk; and

3. Operational Risk.

Pillar 2 Risks:

Credit Concentration Risk;

Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (IRRBB);

Liquidity Risk;

Reputational / Customer Franchise Risk (includingi& Media and AML Risks);
Strategic Business Risk;

Cyber Security / Information Security / Data Priydisk; and

Information Technology (including Core Banking Irapientation).

NogoswNRE

Pillar 1 Risk Weighted Assets are computed basetherguidelines set forth in BSP Circular No. 538,
Series of 2006 using the Standard Approach for iCeedtl Market Risks and Basic Indicator Approach fo
Operational Risks. Discussions that follow below fr Pillar 1 Risks with specific discussions tielg to
Pillar 2 risks mentioned above:

Risk Categories and Definitions
We broadly classify and define risks into the fallog categories and manage the risks accordinbetio t
characteristics. These are monitored accordingtieuthe enterprise ICAAP 2020 program:

Risk Category Risk Definition Risk Monitoring Risk Management Tools
Proces:

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk to earnings om Loan Portfolio = Trend Analysis (Portfolio /
(including Credit | capital that arises from an obligorfs, Analysis Past Due and NPL Levels
Concentration customer/s or counterparty’s failures Credit Dashboards = Regulatory and Internal
Risks and to perform and meet the terms of jt3 Credit Review Limits
Counterparty contract. = Credit Model Stress Testing
Risks) Validation Rapid Portfolio Review

Credit Concentration Risk is part
credit risk that measures the ri
concentration to any single custon
or group of closely-relate
customers with the potential thre
of losses which are substant
enough to affect
soundness of a financial instituti

the financiT

Df
sk
er
)|
at
al

CRR Migration
Movement of Portfolio
Concentrations and
Demographics Review
Large Exposure Report
Counterparty Limits
Monitoring

Adequacy of Loan Los




Risk Category

Risk Definition

Risk Monitoring
Process

Risk Management Tools

(BSP Circular
January 2004)

414, dated 1

Reserves Review
Specialized Credit
Monitoring (Power, Real
Estate

Market Risk Market risk is the risk to earnings|or Value at Risk * VAR Limits
capital arising from adverse Utilization = Stop Loss Limits
movements in factors that affect the Results of Marking| = Management Triggers
market value of financial to Market = Duration Report
instruments, products and= Risks Sensitivity/ | = ROP Exposure Limit
transactions in an institution’s Duration Report = Limit to Structured
overall portfolio, both on or offi = Exposure to Products
balance sheet and contingent Derivative/ = Exception Report on
financial contracts. Market risk Structured Products Traders’ Limit
arises from market-making, dealing = Exception Report on Rate
and position taking in interest rate, Tolerance
foreign exchange, equity, and = Stress Testing
commodities marke = BSP Uniform Stress Testi
Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk is generally defineds | = Funding Liquidity MCO Limits

the current and prospective risk
earnings or capital arising from
financial institution’s inability to
meet its obligations when they con

to Plan

& Liquidity Ratios
= Large Fund

ne Providers

Liquid Assets Monitoring
Stress testing

Large Fund Provider
Analysis

due. = Maximum = Contingency Planning
Cumulative
Outflow (MCO)
= Liquid Gap
Analysis
Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the current and Interest Rate Gap | = EAR Limits
in the Banking prospective risk to earnings or Analysis = Balance Sheet Profiling
Books (IRRBB) | capital arising from movements in= Earnings at Risk | = Repricing Gap Analysis
interest rates. The amount at risk| is (EaR) = Duration based Economic

a function of the magnitude an
direction of interest rate changes a
the size and maturity structure of t
mismatch position. RSP Circular
510, dated 03 February 20)

d Measurement

ne Duration based

he Economic Value of
Equity

Value of Equity
Stress testing

BSP Uniform Stress
Testing

Operational Risk

Operational Risk refers to th& o
loss resulting from inadequate
failed internal processes, people g
systems; or from external even
This definition includes Legal Ris
but excludes  Strategic arn
Reputational Risk. Operational Ris
is inherent in all activities, produc
and services, and cuts acrd
multiple activities and business lin
within the financial institution ang
across the different entities in
banking group or conglomera
where the financial institutio

= Risk Identification
or Risk Measurement
rmd Risk Evaluation

s. (i.e. Analysis of
k Risk)

¢ Risk Management
sk (i.e. Monitor,

s Control or Mitigate
ss Risk)
]
1 Monitoring of Pillar
dl Risks fall under the
epurview of
n Operational Risk

belongs.(BSP Circular 900, dated Management:

18 January 2016)

Risk Identification —
Risk Maps

Risk Measurement
and Analysis —
ICAAP Risk
Assessment

Internal Control
Board Approved Operating
Policies and Procedures
Manuals

Board Approved Product
Manuals

Loss Events Report (LER)
Risk and Control Self-
Assessment (RCSA)

Key Risk Indicators (KRI)
Business Continuity
Management (BCM)
Statistical Analysis

1C



Risk Category

Risk Definition

Risk Monitoring
Process

Risk Management Tools

Included in the Operational Risks:

Reputational
Risk (Customer
Franchise Risk)
Including Social
Media Risk and
AML Risk

Reputational risk is the current a
prospective impact on earnings
capital arising from negative publ
opinion.

Customer franchise risk is defined
the failure to find, attract, and wi
new clients, nurture and retain thog
the Bank already has, and enti
former clients back into the fold 4
well as the failure to meet client
expectation in delivering the Bank
products and services.

Risks in social media includ
susceptibility to account takeover,
malware distribution, brand bashin
inadvertent disclosure of sensiti
information and privacy violation
among other possible threats

Risks relating to Money Launderin

refers to transfers or movement

funds that falls into the following

(but not limited to) categories:

1. Terrorist financing;

2. Unlawful purposes; and

3. Transactions over certai
amounts as defined by AMLC
Ant-Money Laundering
Council.

nd Risk Identification
or Risk Measurement
c* Risk Evaluation
(i.e. Analysis of
Risk)
as Risk Management
n (i.e. Monitor,
se Control or Mitigate
ce Risk)
S
sMonitoring of Pillar
sll Risks fall under the|
purview of
Operational Risk
eManagement:
= Risk ldentification
g, — Risk Maps
e Risk Measurement
, and Analysis —
ICAAP Risk
Assessment
g
oMajor Factors
y considered:
= Products
= Technology
= People
n= Policies and
Processes
= Stakeholders
(including
customer and

Account Closures Report
Service Desk Customer
Issues Report/Customer
Complaints Monitoring
Report

Mystery Caller/Shopper
Evaluation/ Risk Mitigation
of negative media coverag
Public Relations Campaign
Review of Stock Price
performance

Fraud Management
Program

Social Media Management
Framework

Social Media Risk
Management

AML Compliance Review /
Monitoring

Enhanced Due Diligence
Program for Customers

Strategic
Business Risks

Strategic business risk is the curre
and prospective impact on earnin

or capital arising from adverg
business decisions, improp
implementation of decisions, or la
of responsiveness to indust
changes.

2nt regulators)
as

e

er

k

ry

Management Profitability
Reports — Budgets vs
Actuals

Benchmarking vis-a-vis
Industry, Peers
Economic Forecasting
Annual Strategic Planning
Exercist

Cyber Security
Risk

Cyber Security Risk is the curre
and prospective impact on earnin
reputation, customer franchis
and/or  capital arising  fron

information security threats of attac

on the Bank’'s digital footprin
through (not limited to) the
following:

« Breaches in data security;
e Sabotage on online (web-base

activities (Ransomware, DDOS,

JS,

etc.); Protection

« Common threats (spam, * Limits on Access Privileges
phishing, malware, spoofing = Scanning of outbound and
viruses, spoofing, etc.); and inbound digital traffic

e Scams and Frauds (Social
engineering, identify  theft

Incident Reporting
Management
Information Security Policy,
Formulation

Risk Assessment
Information Security
Management System
Implementation
Continuous InfoSec / cybe
risk awareness campaigns
Network Security

D

D
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Risk Category

Risk Definition

Risk Monitoring
Process

Risk Management Tools

email scams, etc.).

Information
Security / Data
Privacy

Information Security Risk is the ris

the potential for unauthorize

k
to organizational operations due to
d

access, use, disclosure, disruption,

modification or destruction of
information or information assets

that will compromise the
Confidentiality, Integrity, ang
Availability (CIA). Social

Engineering can result in various

key risk indicators — phishing,

spamming, dumpster diving, direft
approach, baiting, spying & eaves

dropping, among others.

Data Privacy Risk refers to the risk

of misuse of personal data that coul
lead to individual harm which may
take the form of loss of income,
other financial loss, reputational
damage, discrimination, and othe
harms.

d

r

Installation of firewalls,
IPS/IDS, enterprise security
solution (anti-virus for
endpoint, email and
internet).
Enterprise—wide
Implementation of the
Information Security
Management Systems
Education / InfoSec
Awareness is also
constantly conducted
Conduct of internal and 3rd
party vulnerability
assessments and penetration
testing (to include social
engineering tests) and
follow through on
remediation of threats and
risks

Implementing the
enterprise-wide data privacy
risk management
framework which complies
with both domestic and
global requirements
Institutionalization of data
protection culture within the
group through regular
awareness progran

Information
Technology
(including Core
Banking
Implementation)

Technology Risk results from
human error, malicious intent, or
even compliance regulations. It
threatens assets and processes vita
to the Bank’s business and may
prevent compliance with regulations
impact profitability, and damage the
Bank’s reputation in the
marketplace.

Risks in the smooth operation of th
newly implemented core banking
application may also threaten the
delivery of service to clients and
customer.

D

= Risk Identification

= Risk Measurement

= Risk Evaluation

| (i.e. Analysis of
Risk)

» Risk Management
(i.e. Monitor,
Control or Mitigate
Risk)

Risk Asset Register
Risk Awareness Campaigns
IT Risk Assessments
Formal Project
Management Program
adoption

Vulnerability Assessment
and Penetration Testing
Maintenance and upgrades
of disaster recovery sites
Business Users / IT joint
engagement for problem
resolution

Technology Operations
Management Policies &
Guidelines

Vendor Management
Process Monitorir

Regulatory Capital Requirements under BASEL Il — PILLAR 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratio as of December2B20 stood at 15.14% on a consolidated basisewhil
the Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) as of the end of(R@ghounted to 798.170 billion composed of P673.503

12



billion (Credit Risk Weighted Assets — CRWA), Pe8Bbillion (Market Risk Weighted Assets — MRWA) and
P64.199 billion (Operations Risk Weighted Asse@RWA).

The Bank’s total regulatory requirements for therf() quarters for 2020 are as follows:

. Weighted Exposures (as of End of Every Quarter
Consolidated of 2020)

(Amountsin P millions) Dec 31 Sept 30 June 30 Mar 31
CRWA 673,503 668,98: 706,84 771,00(
MRWA 60,46¢ 57,56¢ 44,03¢ 36,57:
ORWA 64,19¢ 64,19¢ 64,19¢ 64,19¢
Total Risk-Weighted Asset 798,170 790,748 815,084 | 871,771
Common Equity Tier 1 Rat 1447% 15.67% 15.00% 13.81Y%
Capital Conservation Buff 8.47% 9.67% 9.00% 7.81%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 15.14% 16.40% 15.87% 14.73%

Presented below is the full reconciliation of ajulatory capital elements back to the balancetshelee

audited financial statements as at December 31) 2@8butable to the Bank (amounts in P thousands)

Accounts Balance in FRP Accounting Balance in audited
differences and financial
other adjustmess statement

Capital stoc 61,030,59 - 61,030,59

Additional paic-in capita 32,106,56 - 32,106,56

Surplus reservi 5,032,51! (418 5,032,09

Surplut 51,228,04 3,615,54 54,843,58

Net unrealized loss on Available-

for-Sale investment 3,093,62 (39,224 3,054,40:

Remeasurement losses on

retirement pla (2,935,589 (73,863 (3,009,452

Accumulated translation

adjustmer 867,84t (149,974 717,87

Other equity reserv: - 419,54, 419,54.

Share in aggregate reserves on

life insurance policie - (1,038,838 (1,038,838

Reserves of Disposal Group

Classified as Held for S¢ 88,61¢ 88,61¢

Appraisal increment reser - - -

TOTAL 150,423,59 2,821,38 153,244,98

Credit Risk-Weighted Assets as of December 31, 2020

The Bank adopts the standardized approach in dyagtithe risk-weighted assets. Credit risk expestare
risk weighted based on third party credit assesssneiFitch, Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and PhiiRgs
agencies. The ratings of these agencies are mappedordance with the BSP’s standards. The folgwére
the consolidated credit exposures of the Bank haadorresponding risk weights:

Exposure, | Exposures

In P Millions g‘gteg;ic ‘éﬁ;g{fgigi Ej;osure 0% 20% |50% |75% |100% | 150%
Provision Mitigants*

Cash & Cash ltems 25,084 25,084 25084 035

Due from BSP 202,162 202,162| 202,162 -

Due from Other Banky 51 357 21,357 .| 11949| 7,708 1,701




In P Millions

Exposure,
Net of
Specific
Provision

Exposures
covered by
Credit Risk
Mitigants*

Net
Exposure

0%

20%

50%

75%

100%

150%

Financial Asset at
FVPL

Available for Sale

1,374

1,374

1,374

Held to Maturity
(HTM)

96,338

4,427

91,911

29,045

5,824

42,592

14,450

Unquoted Debt
Securitie

Loans & Receivables

633,142

13,147

619,995

1,121

67,031

57,994

476,017

17,832

Loans and
Receivables Arising
from Repurchase
Agreements,
Securities Lending
and Borrowing
Transaction

15,822

15,822

15,822

Sales Contracts
Receivabl

5,007

5,007

4,510

496

Real & Other
Propeties Acquire!

8,400

8,400

8,400

Other Assets

36,625

36,625

36,625

Total On-Balance
Sheet Assi

1,045,311

17,573

1,027,73¢

273,234

84,804

108,295

534,677

26,728

Total Risk Weighted
Asset - On-Balance
Shee

16,961

54,147

534,677

40,093

Total Risk Weighted
Asset - Off-Balance
Sheet Assi

783

27,826

Counterparty Risk
Weighted Asset in
Banking Bool

1,697

Counterparty Risk
Weighted Asset in
Trading Bool

901

236

* Credit Risk Mitigants used are cash, guaranteesvearrants.

Market Risk-Weighted Assets as of December 31, 2020
The Bank’s regulatory capital requirements for neanlisks of the trading portfolio are determineihgsthe
standardized approach (“TSA”). Under this approacterest rate exposures are charged both forifgpec
risks and general market risk. The general marisét charge for trading and Fair Value through ®the
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) portfolio is calcuthteased on the instrument’s coupon and remaining
maturity with risk weights ranging from 0% for itsmvith very low market risk (i.e., tenor of lesath30
days) to a high of 12.5% for high risk-items (ienor greater than 20 years) while capital requoéets for
specific risk are also calculated for exposured witk weights ranging from 0% to 8% depending ba t
issuer’s credit rating. On the other hand, egsiipiertfolio is charged 8% for both specific and eyah market

risk while foreign exchange (FX) exposures are gbd8% for general market risks only.
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Capital Requirements by Market Risk Type under theStandardized Approach

Market Risk Weighted

(Amounts in P Million) Capital Charge Adjusted Capital Charge Exposures

(b) ()
(@) b= a*125% 1/ c=b*10 2/

Interest Rate Exposures 4,152.32 5,190.40 51,903.97
Specific Risl 1,256.84 1,571.04 15,710.4¢
General Market Risk 2,895.48 613,35 36,193.52

Equity Exposures 163.61 204.51 2,045.13

Foreign Exchange Exposures 521.56 651.94 6,519.45

Total 4,837.48 6,046.85 60,468.55

Notes:

1/ Capital charge is multiplied by 125% to be cetgsit with BSP required minimum Capital AdequacyidrgCAR) of 10%, which
is 25% higher than the Basel minimum of 8%.

2/ Adjusted capital charge is multiplied by 10.(tke reciprocal of the minimum capital ratio oP4)0

The following are the Bank’s exposure with assigmedtket risk capital charge.
Interest Rate Exposures consist of specific risk ahgeneral market risk.
Specific Risk

Specific Risk which reflects the type of issuettld combined portfolio of financial assets desigdadt Fair
Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and FVOCI i&,256.836 billion and is composed of securitiewit
various tenors that are subjected to risk weighgireg from 0% to 8%. Sixty-nine percent (69%) logéde
securities are issued by Republic of the Philippi(ROP) while 10% is attributable to debt secwsitiated
AAA to BBB- issued by other entities. The remainipgrtfolio consists of all other debt securitiesttlare
issued by other entities. Six percent (6%) of tusbined portfolio is composed of USD-denominatebtd
securities issued by the Philippines with applieatidk weight of 0.25% to 1.6%. On the other hahe,
Bank’s holding in peso denominated securities whach estimated at sixty three percent (63%) of the
portfolio have zero risk weight.

Part IV.1a INTEREST RATE EXPOSURES — SPECIFIC RISK (Amounts in P million)

Risk Weight

Positions | 0.00% 0.25% 1.00% 1.60% 8.00% Total

P-denominated debt
securities issued by | |ong 97,810.214
the Philippine
National
Government (NG) Short -
and BSF
FCY-denominated
debt securities issued LONg 2,143.671 137.795 6,571.818
by the Philippine
NG/BSP Short
Debt
securities/derivatives| Long 18,149.121 3,410.099 692.09p
with credit rating
BBB- and above
issued by other Short
sovereigns
Debt
securities/derivatives| Long 2,793.201 7,010.873 5,799.606
with credit rating of
AAA to BBB_—{ssued Short
by other entitie
All other debt
securities/derivatives| Long 11,056.459
that are below BBB-
and unratet Short




Long

97,810.214

23,085.99

10,558.7¢7

13,063.5

23 ,0561459

Subtotal

Short

Risk Weighted
Exposures [Sum of
long and short
positions times the
risk weight

57.715

105.588

209.01¢

884.51

7 1,256.8

36

Specific Risk Capital
Charge for Credit-
Linked Notes and
Similar Product

Specific Risk Capital
Charge for Credit
Default Swaps and
Total Return Swaj

SPECIFIC RISK
CAPITAL

CHARGE FOR
DEBT SECURITIES
AND DEBT
DERIVATIVES

57.715

105.588

209.01¢

884.51

7 1,256.8

36

General Market Risk — Peso

The Bank’s total General Market Risk of its Pesdtdsecurities and interest rate derivative expossire
P2,213.457 million. In terms of weighted positiptise greater portion (51%) of the Bank’s capitahige
comes from the Over 5 years to 7 years bucket #it381538 million as well as Over 7 years to 10 gear

bucket (21%) at P477.729 million or a combined wdptharge of P1,616.267 million.

weighted positions (28%) are distributed over #maaining buckets.

The remaining

Currency: PESO
PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P millio n)
Debt Securities & Debt
Derivatives/Interest Rate
Derivatives
Time Bands Total Individual Positions Risk Weighted Positions
Zone Coupon 3% or more Coupon less than 3% | Long Short Weight Long Short
1 1 month or les 1 month or les 52,503.17 20,956.37¢ 0.00% - -
Over 1M to 3N Over 1M to 3M 10,255.30: 11,605.242 0.20% 20.511 23.210
Over 3M to 6N Over 3M to 60N 331.40€ 11,376.87¢ 0.40% 1.326 45.508
Over 6M to 12\ Over 6M to 12N\ 3,311.70¢ 1,490.30C 0.70% 23.182 10.432
2 Over 1Y to 2\ Over 1.0Y t0 1.9' 4,011.54¢ - 1.25% 50.144 -
Over 2Y to 3\ Over 1.9Y1t0 2.8 10,196.941 - 1.75% 178.44¢€ -
Over 3Y to 4\ Over 2.8Y t0 3.6 1,189.947 - 2.25% 26.774 -
3 Over 4Y to 5\ Over 3.6Y t0 4.3 10,568.20: - 2.75% 290.62€ -
Over 5Y to 7\ Over 4.3Y t0 5.7 35,031.93¢ - 3.25% 1,138.53¢ -
Over 7Y to 100 Over5.7Yt0 7.3 12,739.427 - 3.75% 477.72€ -
Over 10Y to 15" Over 7.3Y 10 9.3 641.647 - 4.50% 28.874 -
Over 15Y to 20° Over 9.3Y to 10.6' 6.602 - 5.25% 0.347 -
Over 20V Over 10.6Y to 12 - - 6.00% - -
Over 12Y to 20" - - 8.00% - -
Over 20Y - - 12.50% - -
Total 140,787.84« 45,428.80( 2,236.49% 79.150
Overall Net Open Positit 2,157.34¢
Vertical Disallowanc 3.227
Horizontal Disallowance
52.885
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL CHARGE 2,213.45

General Market Risk — US Dollar

The capital charge on the Bank’s General Markek Rism dollar-denominated exposures is P673.313
million. The exposure is concentrated under therQvgears to 10 years’ time bucket with risk weigifit
3.75% resulting in a capital charge of P217.007ionil The balance is distributed across other thuekets

up to over 20 years with capital charge rangingnfie0.244 million to P178.974 million.

1€



Currency: USD

PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P0.000 mill ion)

Debt Securities & Debt
Derivatives/Interest Rate
Derivatives Risk
Time Bands Total Individual Positions Weight Weighted Position:
Coupon 3% or
Zone more Coupon less than 3% | Long Short Long Short
1 1 month or les 1 month or les 41,116.741 24,739.78¢ 0.00% - -
Over 1M to 3N QOver 1M to 3M 19,856.30% 13,073.622 0.20% 39.713 26.147
Over 3M to 6N Over 3M to 6N 13,951.53:¢ 240.115 0.40% 55.806 0.960
Over 6M to 12\ Over 6M tc12M 6,906.298 - 0.70% 48.344 -
2 Over 1Y to 2) Over 1.0Y1t0 1.9 3,869.50¢ - 1.25% 48.369 -
Over 2Y to 3\ Over 1.9Y to0 2.8 4,949.27¢ - 1.75% 86.612 -
Over 3Y to 4\ Over 2.8Y 10 3.6 676.527 - 2.25% 15.222 -
3 Over 4Y to5Y Over 3.6Y 10 4.3 6,508.15€ 4,114.560 2.75% 178.974 113.150
Over 5Y to 7\ Over 4.3Y 10 5.7 2,016.50% - 3.25% 65.536 -
Over 7Y to 10° Over5.7Y10 7.3 5,786.85¢ - 3.75% 217.007 -
Over 10Y to 15" Over 7.3Y 10 9.3 5.427 - 4.50% 0.244 -
Over 15Y to 20" Over 9.3Y t0 10.6' 795.091 - 5.25% 41.742 -
Over 20Y Over 10.6Y to 12' 13.155 - 6.00% 0.789 -
Over 12Y to 20" - - 8.00% - -
QOver 20Y 9.491 - 12.50% 1.186 -
Total 106,46(.859 42,168.08¢ 799.54€ 140.258
Overall Net Open Positit 659.288
Vertical Disallowanc 14.026
Horizontal Disallowanc -
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL CHARGE 673.313

General Market Risk — Third currencies

The Bank is likewise exposed to various third cacies contracts most of them are in less than $8 thas
carries a 0% risk weight. The combined general etarikk charge for contracts in Australian Dollatup),
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD), Euro (EUR), and CanadianliBo (CAD) is P8.712 million with risk weight
ranging from 0.20% and 0.40%.

PART IV.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK (Amounts in P millio n)

Total Debt Securities & Total
Debt General
Derivatives/Interest Weighted Overall Horizontal | Market
Rate Derivatives Positions Net Vertical dis Risk
Risk Open dis allowance | Capital
Currency | Time Bands Long Short Weight Long Short | Position | allowance within Charge
AUD 1 month or - 14.565 0.00%
less ) )
- 0,
3Qder 1M to 68.029 0.20% 0.136 )
TOTAL 68.029 14.565 0.136 - 0.13¢ - - 0.13¢
- 0,
SGD Iésr‘nonth or 434.364 0.00% ) )
Over 1M to - } 0.20% } )
3M
TOTAL - 434.364 - - - - - -
JPY Iésr‘nonth or ) 509.364 0.00% } )
Over 1M to - - 0.20% ) )
3M
TOTAL - 509.364 - - - - - -
0,
HKD t;r)onth or 424660 0-00% ) )
0,
ueriMto | 432256 0-20% - | 0865
0,
over3Mto | 1488564| 040% - | 5954
TOTAL 2,345.48( - 6.819 6.81¢ - - 6.81¢
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EUR I:(lasrl"lonth or 7.963 133941 0-00% ) )

oueriMito 862515 0-20% -] 1725
TOTAL 7.963 996.45€ - | 172t 1.725 - - 1.72¢
GBP 1 month or - 161.621 0.00% ) )

lest

Over 1M to - - 0.20% ) )

3M
TOTAL - 161.621 - - - - - -
CAD l:}egjonth or - 56.117 0.00% ) )

Over 1M to - ) 0.20% ) )

3M

(CSJI\\/Iler 3Mto - 7.963 0.40% -1 o032
TOTAL - 64.08( - | 0.03 0.032 - - 0.03:
NzZD 1 month or - 11.938 0.00% ) )

lest

Over 1M to - - 0.20% ) )

3M
TOTAL - 11.938 - - - - - -
TOTAL THIRD
CURRENCIES 8.712

Equity Exposures

The Bank’s holdings are in the form of common stotiladed in the Philippine Stock Exchange, with 188k
weight both for specific and general market riskeTBank’s capital charge for equity weighted possi is
P163.610 million or total risk-weighted equity espoes of P2,045.128 million.

Stock Markets
Item Nature of ltem Positions
Philippines
Al Common Stocks Long 0.6
Shor -
A9 Others Long 1,021.93¢
Shor -
A.10 TOTAL Long 1,022.56¢4
Shart -
B. Gross (long plus short) positions (A. 1,022.564
C. Risk Weight 8%
D. Specific risk capital (B. times C. 81.805
E. Net long or short positions 1,022.564
F. Risk Weight 8%
G. General market risk capital charges (E. time 81.80¢
H. Total Capital Charge For Equity Exposures (sum ofidl G. 163.61C
. Adjusted Capital Charge For Equity Exposures (iMeg 125% 204513
J. TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED EQUITY EXPOSURES (. X 1I 2,045.12¢

Foreign Exchange Exposures

The Bank's exposure to FX Risk carries a capitargh of P6,519.450 million. This includes P3,968.89
million arising from exposure in Non-Deliverable rii@rds (NDFs) which carries a 4% risk weight while
P2,557.552 million is from FX Exposures with 8%kniseight in FX assets and FX liabilities in USD dathird
currencies not limited to Japanese Yen (JPY), Swissic (CHF), Pound Sterling (GBP), EUR, CAD, AUD,
Singapore Dollar (SGD) and other minor currencies.
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Part IV. 3 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURES (as of Decembr 31, 2020

D

Closing Rate USD/P 48.02:
In Million
In Million USD Equivalent Peso
Net Long/(Short) Position Net Delta-
(excluding options Weighted Total Net Total Net
Subsidiaries Positions of Long/(Short) Long/(Short)
Banks [Affiliates FX Options Positions Position
Nature of ltem Currency | 1 2 3 4=1+2+7 5
Currenc
A.1 U.S. Dolla usD (54.998 2.16( (52.839 (2,537.46¢
A.2 Japanese Yi JPY 1.081 0.00( 1.081 51.89:
A.3 Swiss Fran CHF 0.64( 0.00( 0.64( 30.74¢
A.4 Pound Sterlin GBF 1.27¢ 0.00( 1.27¢ 61.18!
A.5 Eurc EUR 2.00( 0.00( 2.00( 96.04¢
A.6 Canadian Dolle CAD 0.26: 0.00( 0.26: 12.58¢
A.7 Australian Dollal AUD 0.05: 0.00( 0.05: 2.47¢
A.8 Singapore Doll: SGC (0.052 0.00( (0.052 (2.508
A.9 F_(_)relgn currencies not separately 11.502 11.502 76.06
specified abov
Arab Emirates Dirha AED 0.01f 0.01f 0.73]
Bahrain Dina BHD 0.00:z 0.00z 0.08(
Brunei Dollal BND 0.001 0.001 0.02¢
Yuan Renmink CNY (0.325 (0.325 (15.603
Hongkong Dolla HKD (0.032 (0.032 (1.525
Korean Wol KRW 0.01¢ 0.01¢ 0.91¢
Malaysian Ringg MYR 0.00% 0.00% 0.157
Norwegian Kron NOK 0.00( 0.00(¢ 0.00(¢
oo Zealand NZD (0.009) (0.009) (0.447)
Saudi Riys SAR 0.27: 0.27: 13.10:
Thai Baht THB 0.02¢ 0.02¢ 1.361
Taiwan Dolla TWD 0.031 0.031 1.75¢
A.10 Sum of net long positio 273.06¢
A.11 Sum of net short positio (2,557.552
B. Overall net open positions 2,557.55;
C. Risk Weigh 8%
D. Total Capital Charge for Forei Exchange Exposures (B. times 204.60-
E. Adjusted Capital Charge for Foreign ExchangedSkpes (D. times 125¢ 255.75!
F. Total Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchange Exposutgs|uding Incremental Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchang
S ) - 2,557.552
Exposures Arising From NL Transactions (E. times 1
G. INCREMENTAL RISK-WEIGHTED FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPQSRES ARISING FROM NDF 3.961.898
TRANSACTIONS (Part IV.3A, Item F T
H. TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURES{m of F. and G 6,519.45!

Operational Risk — Weighted Assets

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach in dfyamg the risk-weighted assets for Operational kRis
Under the Basic Indicator Approach, the Bank isumeggl to hold capital for operational risk equaltke

average over the previous three years of a fixedepgage (15% for this approach) of positive anmguaks

income (figures in respect of any year in whichuaimgross income was negative or zero are excluded)

(Amounts in P Million) Capital Requirement
Consolidated as of December 31, 20 Gross Income (15% x Gross Income
2017 (Year & 28,41¢ 4,26:
2018 (Year z 32,47 4,871
2019 (Last Yea 41,827 6,27¢
Average for 3 Yea 5,13¢
Adjusted Capital Char Average x 125¢ 6,42(
Total Operational Risk Weighted Asset

64,200

C. Subsidiaries

The following represent the Bank’s significant Sdizgies:



Domestic Subsidiaries:

PNB Savings Bank PNBSB) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB as ailiesf the merger of PNB and
ABC. PNBSB traces its roots from First Malayan Depenent Bank which ABC bought in 1986 to
reinforce its presence in the countryside. In Jand&, 1996, it was renamed First Allied SavingsBa
following the grant of license to operate as arsgwibank. It was in the same year that the Moné&agrd

of the BSP granted a foreign currency deposit Beeiin 1998, First Allied Savings Bank changechéme

to Allied Savings Bank to further establish itsasation with the parent ABC. With the merger of PN
and ABC in 2013, Allied Savings Bank became a wholvned subsidiary of PNB. In November 2014,
the SEC approved the change of name of Allied $svBank to PNB Savings Bank.

On September 3, 2019 the integration of PNBSB aNB Ras approved by the BSP. On February 29,
2020, PNB purchased substantially all of the assetsassumed all the liabilities of PNB Savings lBan
Effective March 1, 2020, all employees and branatifeBENBSB were absorbed by PNB. On March 5,
2020, PNBSB surrendered its thrift bank licenséhto BSP. On October 28, 2020, the Stockholders and
Board of Directors of PNBSB approved the end ofdbiporate life PNBSB on December 31, 2022 and its
conversion into a holding company under the nanliedIntegrated Holdings Inc. This conversion iato
holding company was endorsed by the BSP last Deeerib 2020. This, together with the other
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation andLByvs of PNBSB, was approved by the SEC last
February 23, 2021.

Allied Integrated Holdings Inc. (Formerly: PNBSB)ded the year 2020 with total assets of P9.8 hillio
consisting of P9.3 billion in Cash, Real Estate RO# P263.0 million and Other Assets of P251.6
million. Unaudited balance sheet showed an AmowayaBle to PNB under the Net Asset Integration
Account of P686.0 million. Paid Capital Stock waEOP billion with a Negative Retained Earnings of
P1.4 billion and a Net Loss of P14.0 million in B02

PNB General Insurers Co., Inc.(PNBGen) is a subsidiary of the Bank establisheii981. It is a non-
life insurance company that offers coverage foe FAnd Allied Perils, Marine, Motor Car, Aviation,
Surety, Engineering, Accident Insurance and othperciglized lines. PNBGen is a dynamic company
providing and continuously developing a completegea of highly innovative products that will provide
total protection to its customers at competitiveni® It started operations with an initial paid-agpital of
P13 million. As of December 31, 2020, PNBGen'’s pgidcapital was P912.6 million, one of the highest
in the industry. Unaudited total assets reached Billion with a total net worth of P1.5 billion.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the compeaoyded unaudited net income of P83.9 million from
a net income of P101.4 million in 2019.

PNB Capital and Investment Corporation (PNB Capital), a wholly-owned subsidiary of thenRais
licensed by the SEC to operate as an investmensehaouith a non-quasi-banking license. It was
incorporated on July 30, 1997 and commenced opesatin October 8, 1997.

As of December 31, 2020, PNB Capital had an autbdrcapital of P2.0 billion or 20,000,000 sharethwi

a par value of P100.00 per share and a paid-upatafiP1.5 billion equivalent to 15,000,000 shatées
principal business is to provide investment banlsegrices which include debt and equity underwgitin
private placement, loan arrangement, loan syndicagroject financing and general financial adwsor
services, among others. The company is authorizdaly and sell, for its own account, securitiesiégs

by private corporations and the Philippine Govemmd®NB Capital distributes its structured and
packaged debt and equity securities by tapping datrkist companies, insurance companies, retail
investors, brokerage houses, funds and otheremnthat invest in such securities.

Investment banking is a highly regulated indusRggulatory agencies overseeing PNB Capital include
the BSP, the SEC, the Bureau of Internal Revensewell as several affiliates, support units and
regulatory commissions of these entities.

The primary risks of the company include underwgtireputational and liability risks. First, undeitmg

risk pertains to the risk of market's non-accepéan€ securities being offered and underwritten biBP
Capital. In such scenario, the company would havpurchase the offered for its own account. Second,
reputational risk arises from the possibility thla@ company may not be able to close mandated dsals
committed. Third, liability risk refers to the riskom possible lawsuits filed by the client duerton-
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performance of committed duties or gross negligdncéhe company. These primary risks are addressed
by:

- ensuring that the staff is well-trained and capahtethe functional and technical level, to provide
the services offered;

- understanding the clients’ specific needs and goals

- clarifying and documenting all goals, methodologidsliverables, timetables and fees before
commencing on a project or engagement and inclugewgral indemnity clauses to protect PNB
Capital from being held liable for actions and aftans beyond its control. These indemnity clauses
are revised and improved upon after each engagerasrdnd when new protection clauses are
identified,

- having clients filllup client suitability forms fortheir investments in instruments
underwritten/arranged by PNB Capital; and

- all transactions are properly documented and ampordy the Investment Committee and/or Board
of Directors.

As of December 31, 2020, PNB Capital’'s unauditadltassets and total equity stood at P2.4 billind a
P2.2 billion, respectively. Its unaudited net ineoffor the year ended December 31, 2020 was P34.0
million.

PNB-Mizuho Leasing and Finance Corporation (formerly PNB-IBJL Leasing and Finance
Corporation), was incorporated on April 24, 199@lemnthe auspices of the Provident Fund of the Bemk
PF Leasing and Finance Corporation. It was largegtive until it was used as the vehicle for tbm{
venture between the Bank (60%), Mizuho Leasing @b, LTokyo (35%), and Industrial Bank of Japan,
now called Mizuho Corporate Bank (5%). The corppnaame was changed to Japan-PNB Leasing and
Finance Corporation and the joint venture companyraenced operations as such in February 1998.

On January 31, 2011, PNB increased its equity eésten JPNB Leasing from 60% to 90%. The Bank’s
additional holdings were acquired from minority tpars, IBJ Leasing Co., Ltd. (IBJL) and Mizuho
Corporate Bank, which divested their 25% and 5%itgqgaterests, respectively. IBJL remains as an
active joint venture partner with a 10% equity ret.

PNB-Mizuho Leasing and Finance Corporation operatea financing company under Republic Act No.
8556 (the Financing Company Act of 1998, as amendeximajor activities are financial lease (direct
lease, sale-leaseback, lease-sublease and forgigmcey leasing), operating lease (through whollred
subsidiary, PNB-Mizuho Equipment Rentals Corporgtiterm loans (for productive capital expenditures
secured by chattel mortgage), receivable discogn{purchase of short-term trade receivables and
installment papers) and Floor Stock Financing (steym loan against assignment of inventories,, e.g.
motor vehicles).

Majority of the principal products or services @mepeso leases and loans. Foreign currency (USD an
JPY) leases and loans are mostly funded by IBJL.

On April 3, 2014, the PNB-IBJL Leasing and Fina@mrporation’s Board and stockholders approved the
increase of the company’s authorized capital frabtBPmillion to P1.0 billion, representing 10,00000
shares with a par value of P100.00 per share gpgvation for the declaration of stock dividen@n June

27, 2014, PNB-IBJL Leasing and Finance Corporatiddoard approved the declaration of 2 shares to 1
share stock dividends to stockholders of recorof dsine 30, 2014.

On November 28, 2014, PNB and IBJL entered inthar& Sale and Purchase Agreement covering the
buy back by IBJL from PNB of 15% equity ownership Japan-PNB Leasing with a closing date of
January 30, 2015.

On January 13, 2015, the SEC approved the inciieaise authorized capital stock from P150.0 million

consisting of 1.5 million shares with a par valdfePd00.00 per share to P1.0 billion consisting 0f 1

million shares with a par value of P100.00 per sh&ubsequently, the stock dividends declaratios wa
implemented with the issuance of 300,000 new stameklanuary 23, 2015.

On January 30, 2015, the buyback of the 15% efityapan-PNB Leasing by IBJL from PNB was
consummated, resulting to an equity ownership Bews: PNB - 75% and IBJL - 25%.
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On March 27, 2015, the SEC approved the changeaofienof Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance
Corporation to PNB-IBJL Leasing and Finance Corpora

On December 15, 2017, the Bank’s BOD approved ditiadal capital infusion of up to P400 million to
PNB-IBJL Leasing and Finance Corporation. The Bgpraved on February 26, 2018 the additional
capital infusion of P400 million to PNB-IBJL Leagirand Finance Corporation. PNB paid the P400
million additional capital infusion on April 6, 281

On August 29, 2018, PNB and IBJL entered into ar&lgale and Purchase Agreement covering the
buyback by IBJL from PNB of the 25% share or P1GDion on the additional capital infusion of P400
million.

On March 2019, Mizuho Bank Ltd increased its shaldihgs in IBJ Leasing Co., Ltd. And as a result,
IBJL changed its corporate name to Mizuho Leasiogm@any, Limited effective October 1, 2019.

On March 3, 2020, the Securities and Exchange Casian approved the change of name from PNB-
IBJL Leasing and Finance Corporation to PNB-Mizleasing and Finance Corporation.

As of December 31, 2020, PNB-Mizuho Leasing ancafi@ Corporation’s consolidated unaudited total
assets and total equity stood at P5.4 billion aBiell7 million, respectively. Its consolidated uniéedi net
loss for the year ended December 31, 2019 was P27ilion.

PNB-Mizuho Equipment Rentals Corporation (formerly PNB-IBJL Equipment Rentals Corporafids

a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB-Mizuho Leasing dfidance Corporation. It was incorporated in the
Philippines on July 3, 2008 as a rental companysarded commercial operations on the same dai®. It
engaged in the business of renting all kinds dfaad personal properties.

On March 11, 2015, the SEC approved the changeaaofenfrom Japan-PNB Equipment Rentals
Corporation to PNB-IBJL Equipment Rentals Corpanati

On March 2019, Mizuho Bank Ltd increased its shaldihgs in IBJ Leasing Co., Ltd. and as a result,
IBJL changed its corporate name to Mizuho Leasiogy@any, Limited effective October 1, 2019.

On March 4, 2020, the SEC approved the changemérfeom PNB-IBJL Equipment Rentals Corporation
to PNB-Mizuho Equipment Rentals Corporation.

As of December 31, 2020, it had a paid-up capift&49.0 million and a total capital of P20.6 mitlidts
unaudited total assets and net loss for the yededeiDecember 31, 2020 were P1.1 billion and P61.1
million, respectively.

PNB Holdings Corporation (PHC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, watablished on May 20,
1920 as Philippine Exchange Co., Inc. The SEC amutdhe extension of the corporate life of PHC for
another fifty (50) years effective May 20, 1970. 1991, it was converted into a holding company\aad
used as a vehicle for the Bank to engage intortherance business where it owns 34% of PNBGen. On
December 29, 2020, PHC sold its shares in PNBG@lierbankers Insurance Corp. (ABIC).

As of December 31, 2020, PHC had an authorizedalagfiP500.0 million consisting of 5,000,000 stsare
with a par value of P100 per share. PHC has apaidiup capital of P255.1 million and additionaigxin
capital of P3.6 million, while total assets andatotapital were P750.5 million and P551.2 million,
respectively. PHC realized a net income of P143Itlomin 2020.

The SEC approved on January 13, 2021 the increaBHC's authorized capital stock by P50 billion.
PHC acquired ownership over three (3) major pragerof PNB which were transferred as capital
contribution in exchange for PHC shares.

PNB Securities, Inc. (PNBSecyvas incorporated in January 18, 1991 and is a reemibthe Philippine

Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) As a securities dedlés, engaged in the buying and selling of seocesiti
listed in the PSE either for its own account asl&ear for account of its customers as Brokerslfi
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wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB and ranked 3Zmdong 129 active members in the PSE with 0.48%
market share in terms of value turn-over as of Ddmr 31, 2020.

a. As of December 31, 2020, it has a total paid-uptabpf P100.0 million with unaudited total assets
and total capital of P346.0 million and P174.2 iwil| respectively.

b. PNBSec had no bankruptcy, receivership, or sinptaceedings in the past three (3) years.

c. There are no material reclassification, mergersobidation, or purchase/sale of a significant asset
not in the ordinary course of business.

Relative to its competitors, the company’s strerigth in the fact that it is backed up by PNB, dvarsal
bank and considered one of the top commercial bizntkee countrytoday.

Inherent to all engaged in the stockbrokerage lssinthe company is exposed to risks like Operaltion
Risk, Position Risk, Counterparty Risk and Larged&sure Risk. To address, identify, assess and reanag
the risks involved, the company submits semi-mgntbl the SEC and the Capital Markets Integrity
Corporation (CMIC) of the PSE the required Risk &hLapital Adequacy (RBCA) Report which
essentially measures the broker's net liquid chpitansidering said risks. Further, PNB's Risk
Management Group is overseeing/ monitoring the @mis risk management / exposures.

Foreign Subsidiaries:

Allied Commercial Bank (ACB), a 99.04% owned subsidiary of the Bank amherly known as Xiamen
Commercial Bank, ACB was established in Xiamen,idfujProvince, China in September 1993 as a
foreign-owned bank. It obtained its commercial kiiag license in July 1993 and opened for business i
October 1993. In 2003, ACB opened a branch irsthghwestern city of Chongging.

In December 2015, China’s banking regulator, then&Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC),
Xiamen Office approved ACB's application to engagedCNY-denominated business for all clients
except citizens within the territory of China.

In April 2016, ACB completed the preparatory wodk fts CNY business and the CBRC Xiamen Office
issued the opinions on passing the inspection oB’a@pplication for its CNY business.

On January 16, 2017, the Fujian Administration fimdustry and Commerce (FAIC) issued a business
license to ACB to engage in foreign currency-dentéd business servicing all types of clients and i
CNY-denominated business servicing all clients pk&hinese resident citizens.

The ACB formally launched its CNY business on AQ£, 2017.

In May 2020, China’s banking regulator, the ChinanBing and Insurance Regulatory Commission
(CBIRC, formerly CBRC), Xiamen Office allowed ACB tonduct CNY-denominated business serving
all clients including Chinese resident citizens.

On December 15, 2020, the Market and Quality Sugerv Commission of Xiamen Municipality issued a
business license to ACB to engage in foreign cugretenominated and CNY-denominated business
servicing all types of clients.

The ACB formally launched CNY business servicingypes of clients on December 25, 2020.

Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (ABCHKL) is a private limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong in 1978 and is licensedaarestricted license bank under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. By virtue of the merger betw®NB and ABC in February 2013, PNB now owns
51% of ABCHKL.

It provides a full range of commercial banking sees predominantly in Hong Kong, which include
lending and trade financing, documentary credittipipation in loans syndications and other risks,
deposit-taking, money market and foreign excharggrations, money exchange, investment and general
corporate services.



ABCHKL has one branch license and a wholly ownelosiliary incorporated also in Hong Kong, ACR
Nominees Limited, which provides non-banking gehgeavices to its customers. It is a Trust or Conypa
Service Provider (“TCSP”) licensee in Hong Kong.

Philippine National Bank (Europe) Plc (PNB Europe)was originally set up as a PNB London Branch in
1976. In 1997, it was converted as a wholly ownebisgliary bank of PNB, incorporated in the United
Kingdom with a full banking licensén 2007, PNB Europe opened its branch in Parisnédaawhere it
engaged in remittance services and ceased itstaperafter August 31, 2017. PNB Europe is autleakis
by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulatey the Financial Conduct Authority and the
Prudential Regulation Authority.

In April 2014, Allied Bank Phils (UK) was mergedtwiPNB Europe Plc.

PNB Global Remittance & Financial Company (HK) Limited (PNB Global) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Bank and is registered with tlegiBtrar of Companies in Hong Kong.

On July 1, 2010, PNB Global assumed the remittdnusiness of PNB Remittance Center, Ltd. with the
former as the surviving entity. It now operatesadending and remittance company. As of December 3
2020, it maintains 7 offices in Hong Kong. Its igance business is regulated by the Customs an&x
Department of Hong Kong.

PNB International Investment Corporation (PNBIIC), formerly known as Century Holding
Corporation, PNBIIC is a wholly-owned subsidiary thie Bank. It is a non-bank holding company
incorporated in California, USA on December 21, 497It changed its name to PNB International
Investments Corporation on November 16, 1999. @eainly a holding company, PNBIIC does not
conduct business operations.

PNBIIC owns PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. (PNBRCHick was incorporated in California, USA on
October 19, 1990. PNBRCI is a company engagelddrtisiness of transmitting money to the Philippine
As of December 31, 2020, PNBRCI has 16 branchesxistates in the USA. PNBRCI owns PNBRCI
Holding Company, Ltd. which was also incorporatedCalifornia, USA on August 18, 1999. PNBRCI
Holding Company, Ltd. is the holding company of PNE@mittance Company Canada (PNBRCC).
PNBRCC is also a money transfer company incorpdrateCanada on April 26, 2000. PNBRCC has 6
branches and 1 sub-branch as of year-end 2020.

PNBRCI is regulated by the U.S. Internal Revenue/iSe and the Department of Business Oversight of
the State of California and other state regulatdiecensed money transmitters. PNBRCC is regdldtg

the Office of the Superintendent of Financial hdions of Canada and Financial Transactions and
Reports Analysis Centre of Canada.

Item 2. Directors and Executive Officers

Please refer to pages 14 to 38 of the Informatitaie®nent.

ltem 3. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

The Audited Financial Statements (AFS) of the Banll its Subsidiaries, which comprise the Statements
of Financial Position as of December 31, 2020 a@#92 and the Statements of Income, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes inyEgnd Statements of Cash Flows for each of the
three (3) years in the period ended December 30,24nd Notes to the Financial Statements, inctudin
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and otlegplanatory information, Independent Auditor’s
Report and the Statement of Management's Resptitystrie filed as part of the Bank’s SEC 17-A refpor
for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Item 4. Information on Independent Accountant, Changes in &counting Principles and Other Related
Matters

A. Audit and Other Related Fees
The following are the engagement fees billed anid par each of the last two fiscal years for the

professional services rendered by the Bank’s eatexaditor, SyCip Gorres Velayo and Co. (inclusive
of out-of-pocket expenses and value-added tax):

Professional fees
(in P millions)

Nature of Service Description 2020 2019
Audit and Audit- Audit of the consolidated and separate finangial25.459 33.109
Related Services statements of the Bank; audit of the combined firan

statements of the trust and managed funds of thetTr
Banking Group; limited reviews of interim condensed
consolidated  financial  statements;  agreed-upon
procedures on issuance of comfort letters relative
issuances of debt andpital securitie

Tax-Related Service | Business tax advisory servi 0.28( -

All Other Services Accounting advisory, consultancysustainable finance  2.202 4.544
framework, training and other servi

TOTAL 27.941 37.653

There are no fees billed and paid for the lastetl{®} years for tax accounting performed by thekB&an
external auditor.

The approval of the above audit engagement febaded on the Bank’s existing Manual of Signing
Authority. All engagements of the external audiamd the corresponding engagement fees are subject
to the approval of the BOD as endorsed by the BACC.

The BACC has primary authority to select, evaluapgoint, dismiss, replace and reappoint the Bank’s
external auditors, subject to the approval of tiéDBand ratification of stockholders, based on &aid
transparent criteria such as (i) core values, orltind high regard for excellence in audit qualiy;
technical competence and expertise of auditind;qiaf independence; (iv) effectiveness of theddu
process; and (v) reliability and relevance of tkiemal auditor's reports.

B. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thibise of the previous financial year except fa& th
amendments and improvements to Philippine FinanBi@porting Standards (PFRS) which are
effective beginning on or after January 1, 2020 €hanges in the accounting policies that havedr d
not have any significant impact on the financiasipon or performance of the Group are discussed
under Note 2 (Summary of Significant AccountingnBiples) of the audited financial statements of the
Group.

C. Disagreements with Accountants

The Bank and its subsidiaries had no disagreemétht itg auditors on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statements disgte, or auditing scope procedure.

After careful reevaluation, Management has ditito recommend SGV & Co. for reappointment as
external auditor of the Bank and its domestic slibges for the year 2021. The BACC has thereafter
endorsed the reappointment of SGV & Co. to the BadDirectors. The reappointment of SGV & Co.
as external auditor of the Bank was approved byBiberd of Directors on March 10, 2021 and will be
presented for ratification of the stockholdershat Bank’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to be held o
April 27, 2021. Ms. Vicky B. Lee-Salas, one of thre experienced audit partners in the banking
industry in the Philippines, was the lead auditmerfor the year 2020.



Item 5. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

The financial statements have been prepared irrédacoe with PFRS.

2020 vs 2019

The Group’s consolidated total assets stood at3112billion as of December 31, 2020, 7.8% or P388.8
billion higher compared to P1,142.3 billion repdri@s of December 31, 2019. Changes (more thanirb%)
assets were registered in the following accounts:

e Cash and Other Cash Items as of December 31, 20@@absed by P5.4 billion from P30.5 billion as of
December 31, 2019. Due from Bangko Sentral ngiRds, Due from Other Banks, Interbank Loans
Receivables and Securities Held Under Agreemeniesell as of December 31, 2020 at P202.1 billion,
P19.7 billion, P39.7 billion and P15.8 billion, pextively, increased by P96.1 billion, P2.0 billid*14.9
billion and P13.3 billion compared to P106.0 billjoP17.8 billion, P24.8 billion and P2.5 billion,
respectively, as of December 31, 2019.

Please refer to the interim consolidated statemehtssh flows of the Audited Financial Statemeoftshe
Bank for more information relating to cash and ceghivalents.

e Trading and investment securities which considtiohincial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit os&0
(FVTPL), Financial Assets at Fair Value Through @tiComprehensive Income (FVOCI) and Investment
Securities at Amortized Cost, representing 20.5% 208% of the Group’s total assets as of December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, increased by 7Phflion or 6.6%, mainly due to purchases of vaso
investment securities, net of maturities and diafss

» Loans and Receivables represent 48.7% and 57.6¥edBroup’s total assets as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively. Loans and Receivablesdsed by P57.9 billion or 8.8%, at P600.0 billigro&
December 31, 2020 from P657.9 billion as of Decenttly 2019, mainly due to P41.0 billion net
paydowns of loans and receivables and additionaVigion for impairment, credit and other losses of
P16.9 billion.

* Investment in an Associate decreased by P0.3 ihio11.3%, at P2.3 billion as of December 31, 2020
from P2.6 billion as of December 31, 2019, mainle do additional share in net comprehensive losées
the associate.

e Deferred Tax Assets increased by P6.5 billion d.2%, at P9.0 billion as of December 31, 2020 from
P2.6 billion as of December 31, 2019 mainly duéhe recognition of additional deferred tax assets o
allowance for expected credit losses, which theu@rbas the benefit of tax deductions against future
taxable income only upon actual write-offs.

¢ Intangible Assets decreased by P0.3 billion or % .6t P2.5 billion as of December 31, 2020 from8P2.
billion as of December 31, 2019 due to amortization

e On December 11 and October 9, 2020, the Group upgrthe sale of all its shareholdings in PNB
General Insurers Co., Inc. (PNB Gen) to AlliedbasKasurance Corporation, an affiliate. As a reshe
Group reclassified all the assets and liabilitie®NB Gen to* Assets of disposal group classifiecheld
for sale’ and ‘Liabilities of disposal group cld#sil as held for sale’, respectively, in the coidated
statement of financial position.

* Other Assets amounted to P6.3 billion as of Decemfie 2020 or a decrease of P1.7 billion or 21.6%
from P8.1 billion as of December 31, 2019.
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The Group’s consolidated total liabilities stoodPdL,075.2 billion as of December 31, 2020 whichreéased
by 8.9% or P87.8 billion from P987.3 billion as Bécember 31, 2019. Major changes in liabilitiegave
registered in the following accounts:

» Deposit Liabilities totaling P890.3 billion and R8BQ billion which represent 82.8% and 83.7% of the
Group’s total liabilities as of December 31, 202@1 2019, respectively, increased by P64.2 billion o
7.8%. Demand, Savings and Time Deposits went up2g.5 billion or 16.0%, P33.8 billion or 8.6%,
P9.8 billion or 4.3%, respectively. The increasddtal deposits was partially offset by the dezlin
Long-Term Negotiable Certificates of Deposits (LTDNCby P6.9 billion or 19.7% mainly due to
maturities in June 2020.

* Financial Liabilities at FVTPL increased by P455d@lion or 185.5% from 2019 year-end balance of
P245.6 million mainly from the increase in the vokiof transactions for the period.

» Lease Liabilities decreased by P0.4 million or 24.4t P1.4 billion as of December 31, 2020 mainlg du
to lease payments.

» Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses decrdgsE0.5 billion, from P6.9 billion as of December
31, 2019 to P6.4 billion as of December 31, 2028inty due to lower accrual of expenses.

« Bills and Acceptances Payable increased by P31li@rbor 55.7% from P56.0 billion to P87.2 billicas
of December 31, 2019 and 2020, respectively, brbbgthe increase in the level of interbank bormoyvi
and repurchase agreements.

* Income Tax Payable increased by P326.9 million fRB@6.2 million as of December 31, 2019 to P903.0
million as of December 31, 2020.

» Other Liabilities amounted to P17.9 billion as oéd@mber 31, 2020 or a decrease of P11.2 billion or
38.6% from P29.1 billion as of December 31, 201&inty from the decrease in reclassification of
insurance contract liabilities to ‘Liabilities ofsposal group classified as held for sale’ as dised above.

The Group’s consolidated total equity stood at PABfllion as of December 31, 2020 from P155.0dvillas
of December 31, 2019, or an increase of P1.0 hilliiributed mainly to the consolidated net incdorethe
year ended December 31, 2020 amounting to P2i6rb#ind P0.2 increase in Other Equity Reservesgbff
by the following:

* decline in Net Unrealized Gains on Financial Assets FVOCI from P3.3 billion as of
December 31, 2019 to P3.1 billion as of DecembeRB20;

» decrease in share in Aggregate Reserves on Litgdnse Policies of P1.1 billion;

» decreases in Remeasurement Losses on RetiremeraftlaAccumulated Translation Adjustment of P0.8
billion and PO0.2 billion, respectively.

Further, transfer to surplus reserves in 2020 ohefuthe appropriation of surplus amounting to Bdlidn for
the excess of 1% general loan loss provision dwercomputed expected credit losses for Stage luatcin
accordance with BSP Circular 1011.

2019 vs 2018

The Group’s consolidated total assets stood at fillidn as of December 31, 2019, 16.1% or P158likon
higher compared to P983.6 billion reported as afddeber 31, 2018. Changes (more than 5%) in assgts w
registered in the following accounts:

e Cash and Other Cash Items, Due from Bangko SemgrRilipinas (BSP) and Interbank Loans Receivable
registered increased by P13.7 billion, P3.3 billard by P13.6 billion, respectively from P16.8ibitl,
P102.7 billion and P11.2 billion, respectively &ecember 31, 2018.

» Due from Other Banks and Securities Held Under Agrents to Resell as of December 31, 2019 at P17.8

billion and P2.5 billion, respectively, decreasgd™3.2 billion and P18.2 billion compared to P24ildon
and P20.7 billion, respectively, as of December281.,8.
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Please refer to the statements of cash flow forenmdormation relating to cash and cash equivalents

* Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit os&dFVTPL) at P13.5 billion was higher by 34.7% or
P3.5 billion from P10.0 billion as of December 2018 attributed mainly to higher purchases over
securities sold.

* Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comensive Income (FVOCI) was higher at P123.1
billion as of December 31, 2019, an increase of. ®Billion or by 136.2% from the P52.1 billion le\as
of December 31, 2018 due to acquisitions of variausstment securities net of securities sold.

* Investment Securities at Amortized Cost amountd@1t00.5 billion as of December 31, 2019, a deaihe
P0.3 billion from the P100.8 billion level as of &enber 31, 2018 due to sale and maturities of tmerst
securities.

« Loans and Receivables is at P657.9 billion or PBilldn higher than the P586.7 billion as of Dedsn
31, 2018 level due mainly from increase in corpotasns.

* Property and Equipment went up by P1.5 billion fr&0.7 billion as of December 31, 2018 to P21.2
billion as of December 31, 2019, mainly due toRe5 billion recognition of the right to use agse®U)
as a result of the adoption of Philippine Finan8laporting Standard (PFRS) 16 — Leases. The tiamsit
adjustment at January 1, 2019 resulted in the rétog of ROU and lease liability amounting to P1.8
billion and P1.9 billion, respectively.

* Investment Properties increased by P1.6 billionmfi813.5 billion as of December 31, 2018 to P15.1
billion as of December 31, 2019 due mainly to féveares during the year.

¢ Intangible Assets decreased by P0.2 billion fromOR8llion as of December 31, 2018 mainly due t® th
amortization of core banking integration costs atiter IT assets and Software.

« Deferred Tax Assets was higher by P0.4 billion fi@th1 billion to P2.5 billion as of December 31120
mainly due to the recognition of additional defdrtax assets on allowance for credit losses, wtiieh
Group has the benefit of tax deductions againsiréutaxable income only upon actual write-offs.

* Other Assets amounted to P8.1 billion as of DecerBtte 2019 or an increase of P0.7 billion from P7.4
billion as of December 31, 2018.

Consolidated liabilities increased by 15.5% or P238llion from P855.1 billion as of December 3013 to
P987.3 billion as of December 31, 2019. Major cleanig liability accounts were as follows:

« Deposit Liabilities totaled P826.0 billion, P92.Bdlion or 12.6% higher compared to its year-end 20
level of P733.3 billion. Demand deposits, Time d8fsoand Long-Term Negotiable Certificate of
Deposits (LTNCD) went up by P19.2 billion or 12.5P%,9.7 billion or 54.1% and P3.7 billion or 11.9%,
respectively, partially offset by the decreaseaniBgs deposits by P9.9 billion or 2.5%.

¢ Financial liabilities at FVTPL decreased by PO.Hidi from 2018 year-end balance of P0.5 billion
mainly from the decrease in negative fair valueabeé of interest rate swaps and forwards.

« Bonds Payable increased by P51.0 billion, from @billion as of December 31, 2018 to P66.6 billam
of December 31, 2019, mainly accounted for by theeRt Company’s issuance of P13.7 billion fixearat
bonds on May 8, 2019 due 2021 and additional issian US$750 million fixed-rate senior notes from
its Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) Program on JuneZ¥19 maturing on September 27, 2024.

¢ Bills and Acceptances Payable decreased by P1Midntor 20.1% from P70.1 billion to P56.0 billicas
of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, régphrtdue to settlement of interbank loans from th
BSP and local banks.

¢ Lease liability of P1.8 billion pertains to the $ealiability of the Group as a result of the adoptdf
PFRS 16 — Leases. Refer to the Property and Equipdiscussion above.
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» Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses waghighP0.5 billion, from P6.4 billion as of Decembe
31, 2018 to P6.9 billion as of December 31, 2018jnhg due to the increase in accrued interest from
deposits and bonds.

* Income Tax Payable decreased by P0.3 billion frén® Billion to P0.6 billion as of December 31, 2018
and December 31, 2019, respectively.

Total equity accounts stood at P155.0 billion frd?28.6 billion as of December 31, 2018, or an
improvement of P26.4 billion attributed mainly tetfollowing:

- Capital Stock and Additional Paid-In Capital incged by P11.8 billion from the net proceeds from the
2019 Stock Rights Offering.

- current period’s net income attributable to Eqittylders of the Parent Company of P9.7 billion.

- decrease in Accumulated Translation Gain of Pdli®ii

- Remeasurement loss PO0.7 billion

- improvement in Net unrealized gains/(losses) orakdial Assets at FVOCI from a P3.2 billion losés
December 31, 2018 to a gain amounting to P3.2ohillas of December 31, 2019, resulting in an
unrealized gain of P6.4 billion for the period.

2018 vs. 2017

The Group’s consolidated total assets stood at P988ion as of December 31, 2018, 17.6% or P147.5
billion higher compared to P836.2 billion reportasl of December 31, 2017. Changes (more than 5%) in
assets were registered in the following accounts:

e Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell as afeDier 31, 2018 at P20.7 billion, which represents
lending transactions of the Bank with the BSP, Waher by P6.1 billion compared to P14.6 billioncds
December 31, 2017.

¢ Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit osé@t P10.0 billion went up by 246.9% or P7.1 duilli
from P2.9 billion attributed mainly to the purchasef various investment securities, net of sold and
matured securities.

¢ Investment Securities at Amortized Cost was higtted?100.8 billion while Financial Assets at Fairliv&a
Through Other Comprehensive Income was lower atlPBilion as of December 31, 2018, an increase of
P74.0 billion or by 276.1% and a decline of P17illiobn or by 25.4% from the P26.8 billion and P69.8
billion level, respectively, as of December 31, 2@Ue to purchases of various investment secuyritietsof
disposals and maturities.

« Loans and Receivables registered an increase & PB5ilion or P84.6 billion higher than the P502.1
billion as of December 31, 2017 level mainly duddan releases, net of pay downs, mainly to various
corporate and retail borrowers.

* Investment Properties decreased by P2.1 billiomfR15.6 billion as of December 31, 2017 to P13.5
billion as of December 31, 2018, mainly due to digd of foreclosed properties.

¢ Intangible Assets decreased by P0.3 billion from3R3llion in December 31, 2017 mainly due to the
decline in capitalization of core banking integpatcosts and other software acquisitions.

» Deferred Tax Assets were higher by P0.4 billiomfrB1.7 billion to P2.1 billion and a decrease ihedt
Assets of P1.5 billion from P8.9 billion to P7.4libh. Decline in Other Assets was due to decredses
creditable withholding taxes, deferred chargesaurtdtanding clearing items received as of year-end.

Consolidated liabilities went up by 19.4% or P13Bililon from P716.4 billion as of December 31, Z0tb
P855.1 billion as of December 31, 2018. Major cleanig liability accounts were as follows:

» Deposit liabilities totaled P733.3 billion, P95.4libn higher compared to its year-end 2017 levél o
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P637.9 billion due to increases in Demand depdsit®27.5 billion, Savings deposits by P50.2 billion
Time deposits by P17.6 and LTNCD by P0.1 billion.

« Bills and Acceptances Payable increased by P2@liarhifrom P43.9 billion to P70.1 billion, mainly
accounted for by borrowings from other banks.

» Accrued Expenses increased by P1.1 billion fron8Bilion as of December 31, 2017 to P6.4 billian a
of December 31, 2018.

» Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit loss was higher by PO0.1 billion from 2017 yead-e
balance of P0.4 billion.

* Income Tax Payable decreased by PO0.1 billion frdn® Billion to P0.9 billion, due to the declinethme
income tax provisions for the year.

e Other Liabilities increased by P0.4 billion, fro2R9 billion in December 31, 2017 to P28.3 billas of
December 31, 2018.

Total equity accounts stood at P128.5 billion frd®19.7 billion as of December 31, 2017, or an
improvement of P8.8 billion attributed to curreetripd’s net income of P8.2 billion, improvementfiease in
Net Unrealized Loss on Available-for-Sale InvestisenAccumulated Translation Adjustments and
Remeasurement Losses on Retirement Plan.

Results of Operations

2020 vs 2019

* For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Groupded net income of P2.6 billion, P7.1 billion or
73.1% lower than the P9.8 billion net income lasaty The Group recognized significant provisionis f
impairment, credit and other losses of P16.9 Milliehich resulted in lower net income compared & la
year. However, the Group’s core income comprisirigarily of net interest income recorded substdntia
improvements in the current period. The resultste current period also included significant ease in
net gains from trading and investment securities.

¢ Net interest income amounted to P35.8 billionhkigby 10.7% or P3.5 billion compared to the same
period last year, mainly driven by lower fundingstodue to the reduction in levels of high-costodis
during the year. Total gross interest income deszd by 7.1% or P3.6 billion to P47.0 billion fré180.5
billion last year due to aggregate decreases irast income from loans and receivables, tradird) an
investment securities, and interbank receivableR4? billion, offset by increase in interest inafrom
deposits with banks of P0.7 billion. Total groagerest expense decreased to P11.1 billion or b§ P7
billion from P18.2 billion last year primarily due decline in interest expense from deposit litib#i
bills payable and other borrowings, partially offbg increase in interest expense from bonds payabl
49.3% or P1.0 billion from P1.9 billion last yearRP2.9 billion. Net interest margin remained atl33in
both periods.

¢ Net service fees and commission income decreagd®DIb billion or 11.5% at P3.7 billion for the yea
ended December 31, 2020 from P4.2 billion last ykee to lower transactional volumes and waivers of
fees on interbank transfers and overseas remiance

e Other income increased to P6.0 billion compare®4@ billion last year mainly due to improvememt i
net gains on trading and investment securities@ Billion.

« Administrative and other operating expenses anszutd P44.8 billion for the year ended December 31,
2020, P16.1 billion or 56.3% higher compared to shene period last year, mainly due to additional
provisions for impairment, credit and other losagsunting to P16.9 billion in anticipation of thregact
of the COVID-19 pandemic to the Group’s loan pditio

* Provision for (benefit from) income tax for the yemded December 31, 2020 amounted to (P1.8) millio
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compared to P2.5 billion for the same period l&strymainly due to the tax benefit from the recagnibf
additional deferred tax assets on allowance foeetqul creditosses.

Total comprehensive income for the year ended Dbee3il, 2020 amounted to P0.4 billion.

2019 vs 2018

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Groluipteegd a net income of P9.8 billion, P0.2 billion
2.1% higher than the P9.6 billion net income foe game period last year. The Group’s core income
comprising primarily of net interest income and setvice fees and commissions recorded substantial
improvements in the current period. Net incometlfi@r current period also included increase in natgga
from trading and investment securities.

Net interest income totaled P32.4 billion, highgrl®.8% or P5.4 billion compared to the same pelasd
year mainly due to the expansion in loan, interblaaks, and trading and investment securities plot
which accounted for the P9.7 billion, P0.3 billid?).5 billion and P4.2 billion increase in intergstome,
respectively, partly offset by the increase of R8illon in deposits with banks and others. Tatéérest
income increased by 40.3% or P14.5 billion from B38llion to P50.5 billion. Total interest experaso
increased to P18.1 billion or by P9.1 billion frét8.0 billion for the same period last year primadle to
growth in deposit liabilities and other borrowings.

Other income decreased to P4.2 billion compard@8d billion for the same period last year maihle
to decline in net gains on sale or exchange oftagdeP5.1 billion, partly offset by higher net gsiin
trading and investment securities by P0.9 billion.

Net service fees and commission income stood &t Biflion, 20.2% or P0.7 billion higher comparduzet
same period last year driven by growth in depasit eredit card related fees.

Administrative and other operating expenses ansaltd P28.7 billion for the year ended December 31,
2019, or 12.6% higher compared to the same pedstlylear as strong revenue growth, particularly in
interest income and trading gains, translatedgbdr business-related taxes.

Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended Dbeerdl, 2019 amounted to P14.6 billion which is
P6.5 billion higher than the same period last y&ae mainly to increase in net unrealized gains on
financial assets at FVOCI.

2018 vs 2017

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Banktezgd a net income of P9.6 billion, P1.4 billian o
17.2% higher than the P8.2 billion net income fog same period last year on account of substantial
improvements in core income primarily net inteiasbme and gains from the sale of foreclosed assets

Net interest income totaled P27.1 billion, highgr22.6% or P5.0 billion compared to the same peliast
year mainly due to the expansion in the loan arédtment securities portfolio which accounted far t
P7.5 billion and P1.5 billion increase in interé@stome, respectively. This was partly offset by th
decrease in interest income of deposits with banid others by P0.6 billion. Total interest income
increased by 30.6% or P8.5 billion from P27.6 billito P36.1 billion. Total interest expense howgver
was also higher at P9.0 billion or by 62.6% or ByShbillion from P5.5 billion last year.

Other income increased significantly to P8.4 hillmompared to P7.1 billion for the same period yastr
mainly due to higher net gain on sale or exchanfy@ssets by P1.9 billion and improvement in
miscellaneous income by P0.5 billion partly offegtP0.7 billion decrease in foreign exchange gaih a
P0.4 billion decline in trading and investment sé@s gains.

Net service fees and commission income stood & BiBion, 12.7% or P0.4 billion higher comparea th

same period last year. The minimal growth wagsbatted to lower levels of underwriting and invesirhe
banking fees.
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« Administrative and other operating expenses amautat€25.7 billion for the year ended December 31,
2018.

« Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended Dbeeil, 2018 amounted to P8.1 billion.

Key Performance Indicators
» Capital Adequacy/Capital Management

The Bank’s Capital Management (Sub-Committee of Alsset/Liability Committee) has been created to
specifically handle policies and procedures peiragirto the capital planning and assessment as agll
possible equity investments of the Bank.

The Sub-Committee shall be responsible for the¥dlhg:

- Determine the appropriate level of capital thatl veilipport the attainment of the Bank’s strategic
objectives, meet the minimum regulatory requirerseartd cover all material risks that the Bank may
encounter in the course of its business;

- Periodically monitor and assess the capital raifabie Bank. Monitoring shall include capital ceiwith
and without the regulatory stress test prescribethb regulators, based on both the consolidatddsalo
financial statements of the Bank;

- Report to the Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO) thgank’s capital ratio and position based on the
consolidated and solo financial statements on athhorbasis and to the Board ICAAP Steering
Committee on a quarterly basis;

- Inform the ALCO/ Board ICAAP Steering Committee passible breach of ICAAP capital thresholds,
particularly during period of stress and activatihg Bank’s capital contingency plan, if needed;
> The Sub-Committee will evaluate and endorse toBbard the options to improve the Bank’s capital
adequacy as provided for in the Capital Contingefley;
> In case of capital sourcing, the Sub-Committeel gmlorse to the Board ICAAP Steering Committee /
Board the manner, the amount and time period fpitalaraising;

- Ensure that the capital ratios resulting from tiree-year strategic business plan under the BaGIR&P
shall meet the minimum regulatory requirement a§ agethe Bank’s internal thresholds;
» The Sub-Committee shall determine the Bank’s irtetiiresholds and shall endorse the same to the
Board ICAAP Steering Committee / Board;

- Undertake the optimal allocation of the capitalthe different business groups in accordance with th
portfolio diversification policy and subject to tisastainability of earnings, risk weights of assataong
others;

The Bank and its individual regulatory operationavén complied with all externally imposed capital
requirements throughout the period.

Regulatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determinatibthe Bank's compliance with regulatory requirenseand
ratios is based on the amount of the Bank’s “uninggiacapital” (regulatory net worth) reported t@ tBSP,
which is determined on the basis of regulatoryqiedi, which differ from PFRS in some respects.

As required under BSP Circular 781, the risk-baseplital ratio of a bank, expressed as a percertége
qualifying capital to risk-weighted assets, shoutd be less than 10.00% for both solo basis (héfékand
branches) and consolidated basis (parent bank @gldéaries engaged in financial allied undertakitgit
excluding insurance companies). Other minimunosaitnclude Common Equity Tier (CET) 1 ratio andrTie
1 capital ratios of 6.0% and 7.5%, respectivelycofiservation buffer of 2.5%, comprised of CET fiit, is
likewise imposed.
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Banks and their subsidiaries are subject to tHewviahg risk-based CARs:

a. Common Equity Tier 1 — must be at least 6.0% df weighted assets at all times;

b. Tier 1 capital must be at least 7.5% of risk wegghassets at all times; and

c. Qualifying capital (Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Ctgd) must be at least 10.0% of risk weighted assetd|
times.

Qualifying capital consists of the sum of the fallng elements, net of required deductions:

a. Common equity Tier 1 capital consists of 1) paidagmmon stock that meet the eligibility criterig, 2
common stock dividends distributable, additionaldpa capital resulting from the issuance of common
stock included in CET1 capital, 3) deposits for coom stock subscription, 4) retained earnings, 5)
undivided profits, 6) other comprehensive incomet ¢mrealized gains or losses on AFS and cumulative
foreign currency translation) and minority interestsubsidiary banks which are less than wholly-eayn

b. Additional Tier 1 capital consists of instrumergsuied by the Bank that are not included in CETpitaka
that meet the criteria for inclusion in additionigr 1 capital, meet the required loss absorbeeeyufes
for instrument classified as liabilities and lossarbency feature at point of non-viability as dedl in the
BSP guidelines;

c. Tier 2 capital is composed of 1) instruments issoedhe Bank (and are not included in AT1 capitagt
meet the criteria for inclusion in Tier 2 and méet required loss absorbency feature at point of no
viability as defined in the guidelines, 2) deposis subscription of T2 capital, 3) appraisal imoent
reserves on Bank premises as authorized by the fdlgnBoard, 4) general loan loss provision, limited
a maximum of 1.00% of credit risk weighted assed ainority interest in subsidiaries which are g
wholly owned as defined in the guidelines.

A capital conservation buffer of 2.5% of risk weligth assets, comprised of CET 1 capital, shall beired.
This buffer is meant to promote the conservatiorcapital and build-up of adequate cushion that lan
drawn down to absorb losses during period of fifelrend economic stress.

The Group’s consolidated capital adequacy ratiocfambined credit, market and operational risks oateqh
based on BSP Circular No. 781 (for 2014) and BSEBUGir No. 538 (for 2013 and 2012) were 15.14%830%,
and 14.35% as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 263gectively, above the minimum 10% required by BSP
For the detailed calculation and discussion kimgfer to Item 1, no. 10 — Risk Management.

e Asset Quality
The Parent Company’s non-performing loans (grossnefarned and other deferred income and allowaorce f
credit losses) increased to P66.0 billion as ofdbawer 31, 2020 compared to P12.0 billion as of B 31,
2019. NPL ratios of the Parent Company based on @fdRelines, net of valuation reserves is at 6.98%at
December 31, 2020, compared to 0.68% at end of.2@@&ss NPL ratio is at 10.09% at end of 2020 and
1.99% at end of 2019.

< Profitability

Years Ended

12/31/20 12/31/19
Return on equity (RO 1.69% 6.89Y%
Return on assets (RO? 0.22% 0.92%
Net interest margin (NIN¥ 3.21% 3.30%

UNet income divided by average total equity forgheod indicated
2Net income divided by average total assets foptréod indicated
3Net interest income divided by average intereshisay assets

e Liquidity

The ratio of liquid assets to total assets as afebwer 31, 2020 was 37.37% compared to 27.86% as of
December 31, 2019. Ratio of current assets to cutiabilities was at 68.35% as of December 31,02
compared to 59.04% as of December 31, 2019.



» Cost Efficiency

The ratio of total operating expenses (excludingvigion for impairment, credit and other losses)dtal
operating income resulted to 61.27% for the yededrDecember 2020 compared to 63.16% last year.

Known trends, demands, commitments, events, and uedainties

The Bank presently has more than adequate liqgietsso meet known funding requirements and thereaa
known trends, demands, commitments, events, orrtaicges that will have a material impact on thenB's
liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation

In the normal course of business, the Group make®us commitments and incurs certain contingent
liabilities that are not presented in the finangttements, including several suits and claimsiihémain
unsettled. No specific disclosures on such uregktiksets and claims are made because any suldsuliss
would prejudice the Group’s position with the otlparties with whom it is in dispute. Such exemptitom
disclosures is allowed under PAS 37, Provisionqjtidgent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The@r
and its legal counsel believe that any lossesmgrifiom these contingencies which are not spedifica
provided for will not have a material adverse efffat the financial statements.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangemeror obligation

The summary of material off-balance sheet transasti arrangement or obligations (including contirige
obligations) is discussed in Note 35 (Provisionsnidigent Liabilities and Other Commitments) of the
accompanying audited financial statements of trmu@as attached under Exhibit 111.

Capital Expenditures

In line with the Bank’s digital transformation itives and enhancing customer banking experietmategy,
technology upgrades and branch physical infrastracwill account for the bulk of the Bank’s capital
expenditures for 2019. Capital expenditures willfbeded from the proceeds of the sale of acquisetis
and funds generated from the Bank's operations.

Significant Elements of Income or Loss

Significant elements of the Bank’s revenues consiginly of net interest margin, service fees, matling
gains and gains from disposal of reacquired praerthile the Bank’'s expenses consist mainly df si@st,
depreciation and amortization of assets and prawssfor probable losses. Please refer to the dismus on
the results of operations for further details.

Seasonal Aspects

There was no seasonal aspect that had materiat efighe Bank’s financial condition or resultsopierations.

Item 6. Market Price, Holders and Dividends
A. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant's Comma Equity and Related Stockholders
1. Market Price

PNB’s common shares are listed and traded at tiie PF®ie high and low sales prices of PNB shares
for each quarter for the last three fiscal yeaesaar follows:

2018 2019 2020
High Low High Low High Low
Jan — Mar 59.15 53.80 60.42 40.98 36.70 18.50
Apr —Jun 56.00 47.95 58.82 47.54 25.60 18.80
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43.00 57.35
38.95 45.90

43.60
34.00

25.20 5219.
32.50 @3.1

49.90
44.60

Jul — Sep
Oct — Dec

The trading price of each PNB common share as ofugey 28, 2021 was P24.95.
Holders

There are 36,374 stockholders as of February 281,28l of whom have the same voting rights. As
there are 36,374 stockholders, it will be too vahmos to reflect the nationality, number of shaaed
percentage to total outstanding capital stock chesiockholder. For the guidance of any stockholder
hereunder are the top twenty (20) holders of comstares, the number of shares held by the same,
the percentage to total shares outstanding whiatstitotes approximately 76.33% of the total
outstanding capital stock, and the voting rightih®} each stockholder:

Percentage To Total
Nationality Common Outstanding Voting
No. Stockholders Shares Capital Stock Status
1 | PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipin Filipino 181,573,92 11900518353 *
2 Key Landmark Investments, L. Filipino 133,277,92 8.735154961 *
3 | PCD Nominee Corporation (N-Filipino) . Non-Filipino 90,879,11 5.956298573 *
4  Caravan Holdings Corporati Filipino 82,017,18 5.375479976 *
5 | Solar Holdings Corporatic Filipino 82,017,18 5.375479976 *
6 True Success Profits Li Filipino 82,017,18 5.375479976 *
7 | Prima Equities & Investments Corporal Filipino 71,765,03 4.703544979 *
8 Leadway Holdings, In Filipino 65,310,44 4.280505216 *
9 Infinity Equities, Inc Filipino 61,512,88 4.031609824 *
1C | Pioneer Holdings Equities, It Filipino 34,254,21 2.245051850 *
11 | Pan Asia Securities Corporat Filipino 33,126,78 2.171159074 *
12 | Multiple Star Holdings Corporati Filipino 30,798,15 2.018538505 *
13 | Donfar Management Lt Filipino 30,747,89 2.015244878 *
14 | Uttermost Success, L Filipino 30,233,28 1.981516876 *
15 | Mavelstone Int'l Ltc Filipino 29,575,16 1.938383100 *
1€ | Kenrock Holdings Corporatic Filipino 26,018,27 1.705261397 *
17 | Fil-Care Holdings, In Filipino 25,450,96 1.668078931 *
18 | Fairlink Holdings Corporatic Filipino 25,207,79 1.652141547 *
1¢ | Purple Crystal Holdings, In Filipino 24,404,722 1.599507551 *
2C : Kentron Holdings & Equities Corporati Filipino 24,361,22 1.596656588 *
O Pursuant to Article IV, Section 4.9 of the Bank’g-Baws, every stockholder shall be entitled to ¢hjevote for

each share of common stock in his name in the bobkise Bank. The right to vote or direct the vgtiof the
Bank’s shares held by the foregoing stockholdelsdged in their respective Boards of Directors.

3. Dividends

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is contingent @is ability to set aside unrestricted retained
earnings for dividend distribution. In addition,ethBank’s declaration of dividends, including
computation of unrestricted retained earnings, lbjext to compliance with certain rules and
regulations prescribed by the BSP as provided utiteManual of Regulations for Banks (MORB)

and subject to compliance with such financial ratuly requirements as may be applicable to the
Bank at the time of such declaration.

PNB has adopted the following general policy ondhelaration of dividends:
"Dividends shall be declared and paid out of thephis profits of the Bank at such

times and in such amounts as the Board of Directoay determine in accordance
with the provisions of law and the regulations bé tBangko Sentral ng Pilipinas



(BSP) and the Securities and Exchange CommissiB)(Ssubject to compliance
with such financial regulatory requirements as rbayapplicable to the Bank.”

The Bank did not declare cash dividends on its comahares for the fiscal years 2019 and 2020.

The Bank recognizes its shareholders’ interests @mterns and have been working very hard to
sustain the growth in its profitability which widlventually allow a declaration of cash dividendsaon
regular and sustainable basis without compromisiegBank’s growth trajectory. The Bank did not
declare dividends during the previous year as tgnekBieeded to comply with the BSP’s regulations on
capital adequacy to absorb potential losses, ealpeduring the prolonged pandemic, and build up th
capital requirements for its business growth ferititerest of its stockholders.

The foregoing information addresses the requireragBection 49 of the Revised Corporation Code to
present to the stockholders the dividend policthefBank.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securitiedncluding Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction

On August 4, 2015, the SEC issued the Certifichfeeomit to Offer Securities for Sale authorizihg t
sale of 423,962,500 common shares of the Bank aviplar value of P40.00 per share. The Certificate
covers the shares to be issued to the stockhatd&BC pursuant to the merger of the Bank and ABC
which was approved by the SEC on January 17, 28 shares were listed with the PSE on July 22,
2019.

Computation of Public Ownership
As of February 28, 2021, PNB’s public ownershipeleg 21.22%, which more than complies with the

minimum percentage of 10% for listed companies,compliance with the public ownership
requirement of the PSE.

Description of PNB’s Securities

As of February 28, 2021, PNB's authorized capitatls amounted to P70,000,000,040.00 divided into
1,750,000,001 common shares having a par valud@DB per share.

The total number of common shares outstanding abebfuary 28, 2021 is 1,525,764,850. This
includes the 423,962,500 common shares issuedveetatthe merger of PNB and ABC.

As of February 28, 2021, a total of 1,434,718,0d8hmon shares (or 94.03%) are held by Filipino-
Private Stockholders while the remaining 91,046,86tmon shares (or 5.97%) are held by Foreign-
Private Stockholders. PNB has an outstanding dagfifa61,030,594,000.00.

The Bank’s stockholders have no pre-emptive righsubscribe to any new or additional issuance of
shares by the Bank, regardless of the class oesharhether the same are issued from the Bank’s
unissued capital stock or in support of an incréasmpital Article Seven of PNB’'s Amended Articles
of Incorporatior).

At each meeting of the stockholders, every stoaktrokntitied to vote shall be entitled to one (ddev
for each share of stock standing in his name irbtieks of the Bank at the time of the closing @& th
transfer books for such meeting or on the recotd faed by the Board of Director§éction 4.9 of
PNB’s Amended By-Layvs

Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code of thédigpines provides that % x x stockholders
entitled to vote shall have the right to vote thenber of shares of stock standing in their own reame

the stock books of the corporation at the timedfiikethe bylaws or where the bylaws are silenthat
time of the election. The said stockholder mayv(#g such number of shares for as many persons as
there are directors to be elected; (b) cumulatelsdiares and give one (1) candidate as many vates a
the number of directors to be elected multipliedh®y number of the shares owned; or distribute them
on the same principle among as many candidatessgsb® seen fit x x x”
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Item 7.

Iltem 8.

Discussion on Compliance with Leading Prdices on Corporate Governance

Please refer to pages 45 to 66 of the InformatitateBnent.

Undertaking

The Bank shall, on written request and without chage, provide stockholders a copy of the
Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A. Such requests shadilbe directed to the Office of the
Corporate Secretary, Philippine National Bank, 9/FPNB Financial Center, President Diosdado
Macapagal Blvd., Pasay City, Metro Manila, Philippnes.
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